situated on the brow of a high hill, about two miles
to the morth-west of Dunstable, and congisting of &

cireular mount, surrounded by two distinet ram-
: a little south-eastward of this is a camp in
the form of a parallelogram, about five hundred feet
long, and two hundred and fifty broad. About a mile
from Dunstable is the large circular encampment called
Maiden-Bower, about two thousand five hundred feet
in circumference, and formed by a single ditch and
rampart: another extensive fortification of the same
kind, and nearly of a circular form, is seen near Leigh-
ton-Buzzard ; and a third circular intrenchment, one
hundred and twelve feet in diameter, is gituated about
four miles from Bedford, adjoining the road from that
town to Eaton-Socon.

At the period of the Reformation, this county con-
tained fourteen religions houses, besides a preceptory
of the Knights Hospitallers, six hospitals, and one
college of priests. There are considerable remains of
Elstow abbey and Dunstable priory; and smaller ves-
tiges of Warden abbey, of the Grey friars' monastery
at Bedford, and of the priories of Bushmead, Har-
rold, Newenham, and Caldwell. The most ancient
specimens of ecclesiastical architecture are seen in the
church of Elstow, anciently belonging to the monastery
at that place, which was founded, and the present
church built, soon after the Norman Conqguest. The
parish church of Dunstable, also originally conventual,
and built in the reign of Henry L., yet exhibits consider-
able remains of its original style of architecture, The
other churches pmes:ﬁﬂ any remarkable architectural
feature are those of St. Peter at Bedford, Caddington,
Little Barford, Puddington, and Thurleigh, ail of which
have doorways of Saxon architecture; and those of

swade, Eaton-Bray, Eaton-Socon, Felmersham,
Leighton - Buzzard, Luton, Marston, Northill, Odell,
Studham, Willington, and Wymington. Many of the
churches have richly ornamented niches, and contain
fonts curiously decorated, and in some instances of
great antiquity. Hardly any traces of mural fortresses
now exist, excepting the strong earthworks which yet
‘mark their ancient sites. The most remarkable of these
are situated at Arlsey, Bedford, Bletsoe, Cainhoe, Mep-
pershall, Puddington, Ridgmont, Risinghoe, Sutton,
Hlﬁe:?hg'foddingtm, and Yielding. Among the man-
sions of the landed proprietors, those most worthy of

3 notice are, Woburn Abbey, Ampthill Park,
Luton Hoo Park, Wrest Park, Broghorough Park, Blet-
. Barton, Bedford, Bletsoe, Blunham, Brom-

Cranfield, Holeutt, Milton-

, Odell, lm% oS

‘ants. The living is a discharged vicarage, with 1
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and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books
at £10. 3. 9., and in the of Andrew Reid,
Esq. This parish is within the jurisdiction of the
Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thursday, for
the recovery of debts under 40s.

BEDINGFIELD, a parish in the hundred of
I?oxn;, county of SurroLk, 4 miles (8. 8. E.) from
Eye, containing 316 inhabitants. The living is a dis-

b vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £8,
and in the patronuge of J. J. Bedingficld, Esq. The
church is dedicated to St. Mary, .

BEDINGHAM, a parish in the hundred of Lob-
pon, county of NorroLk, 4% miles (N, W. by W.) from
Bungay, containing 343 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£5, endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200
royal bounty, and in the presentation of R. Stone, Esq.
on the nomination of the Bishop of Norwich, The
church is dedicated to St. Andrew. Another church,
dedicated to St. Mary, formerly stood in the church-
yard ; and the living consisted of medieties, which have
long been united.

BEDLINGTON, a parish in the eastern division of
Cuestenr ward, eounty palatine of Durmam, of which
it is a detached portion, lying at the south-eastern cor-
uner of Castle ward, county of Northumberland, 54 miles
(8.E. by E.) from Morpeth, comprising the townships
of Bedlington, North Blyth with Chambois, Chopping-
ton, Netherton, East Sleckburn, and West Sleckburn, and
coptaining 1862 inhabitants, The living is a vicarage,
in the archdeaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of
Durham, rated in the king's books at £13. 6. 8., and
in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Durham.
The church, dedicated to St.Cuthbert, whose remains
rested here for one night in 1069, when the monks fied
from Durham, at the menacing approach of the Con-
queror, was enlarged and vepaired in 18i8. There are
places of worship for Primitive ‘and Wesleyan Metho-
dists and Presbyterians. This parish, commonly termed
Bedlingtonshire, is situated on the coast of the North
sea, and is bounded on the north and south by the river
Blyth: it had anciently courts within its ,own limits,
and the officers of justice were appointed by the Bishop
of Durham, to whom the manor belongs. Petty ses-
sions for the district are held menthly at one of the
inns in thevillage. Bedlington iron-works rank among
the oldest and most extensive in the kingdom : they
are romantically situated on the buuks of the river
Blyth, which is navigable for small craft, and affords
the means of conveying their produce, consisting of
chain cables, bolts, bar and sheet iron, and nearly all
the heavier articles in wrought iron, tothe port of Blyth,
where it is shipped for London. The viginity contains
several stone quarries, producing grindstones and
whetstones of a superior quality; and there are some
extensive collieries, A petrifying spring rises at the
western end of the vi 3

BEDMINSTER, a parish in the hundred of Hanr-
cravee with Bepminster, county of Somerser, 14
mile (8.by W.) from Bristol, containing 7979 inhabit-

1

perpetual curacies of St. Thomas' Redcliffe and Abbot's

-



BED

cese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£10. 3. 4., and in the patronage of the Pre! of
Bedminster in the Cathedral Church of .Salisbury. The
church, dedicated to St. John the Baptist, displays

of the kind in the kingdom; the

principal entrance is adorned with Grecian columns,
and the exterior coated with freestone. Bedminster
anciently consisted only of a few , but, from
its proximity to Bristol (being separated from it by the
new cut, whereby the natural channel of the river Avon
has been converted into a floating harbour for vessels
frequenting the port), and the main road to that city
from the western counties passing through it, it has
+ become a considerable suburb to Bristol, participating
in its manufactures, trade, &c. Here are tan-yards
and -walks ; and in the environs are several gar-
dens, with the produce of which the occupiers supply
the city of Bristol; but many of the imhabitants, the
number of whom now exceeds ten ‘are em-
ployed in the collieries within the the
close of the twelfth century, Robert de Berkeley founded

of it has disappeared. A court baron
is held here.

BEDNALL, *a joint chapelry and township with
Acton-Trussell, in the parish of Baswicon, eastern divi-
sion of the hundred of CurrLesTong, county of Star-
roRD, 4 miles (N.E. by N.) from Penkridge. The po-
pulation is returned with Acton-Trussell. The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the

miles (N.E.) from Knighton, con-
165 inhabitants. ~ The living is a discharged
, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of
Hereford, rated in the king's books at £4. 13. 4., en-
dowed with £200 private benefuction, and £200 royal

king’rhenhld £18. 6. 8, and in the patronage of the
church, dedica-

Dean and of Worcester. The

ted to St, John the Baptist, is an ancient edifice, partly

- It was anciently a city of great
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from which it is separated
na held on ithe Friday before Pﬂhlilnﬁunday :fnwhioh

day (by ancient usage, mhﬂ:ng agrmt certain
privileges to the bailiffs the prior of
Worcester, in the reign of Edwu'd 1v.) the mayor and
corporation of Worcester walk in procession through
the village,

BEDWAS, a parish comprising the hamlet of Van,
in the hundmd of CagrpEILLY, county of GLAMORGAN
(Wales), and the hamlets of Lower and Upper Bedwas,
in the lower division of the hundred of WenTLLOOG,
county of MonmouTs, and containing 650 inhabitants,
of which number, 208 are in the hamlet of Upper, and
272 in that of Lower, Bedwas, 9 miles (W. by N.) from
Newport. The living is a rectory, with the perpetual
curacy of Ruddry annexed, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Llandaff, rated in the king's books at
£10. 14. 94., and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Llandaff. The church is dedicated to St. Barrog.

BEDWELTY, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of WenrLLooG, county of Monsmourn, 16
miles (N.W.) from Newport, comprising the hamlets
of Ishlawreoed, Mamhole, and Ushlawreoed, and con-
taining 6382 inhabitants, The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Llandaff,
endowed with a&go Wyﬂth bounty, nnr:_ :;;600 pa.rlu-
mentary t, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Llandaﬂ'.% church, dedicated to St. Sannan, is of
early English architecture ; and the churchyard, which
commands extensive and variegated prospects, is sur-
rounded with some trifling remains of an intrenchment.

BEDWIN (GREAT), a .
borough, parish, and mar-
ket town, in the hundred
of KinwARDSTONE, county
of Wiurs, 64 miles (S.W.
by Ww.) from Hungerford,
23 (N.) from Salisbury,
and 704 (W. by 8.) from
London, umum with

 This plm. mppoud

Dr.SmkdeymbetheLemmgu vzmu,ddo:lr
its name from the Saxon Beeguyn, or Bedgwyn, expres-

dudhmwummmu &ﬂkycnﬂ. :
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right of eclection is vested
in the freeholders and in-
habitants of the ancient
burgage messuages, in num-
about ninety-five: the
is the returning officer, and the influence

of The living

g

in the king's books at £8, 10, 10., endowed with £400 .

private benefaction, £400 royal bounty, and £ 600 par-
linmentary grant, and in the of the Marquis
of Ailesbury. The church, dedi to St. Mary, and
the only remaining one of seven which are said to have
anciently existed here, appears to have been erected
at various times, and exhibits good specimens of all
of architecture, from the Norman to the
later English; it is a cruciform structure, with a

, and died in Imdon,ﬁ 1675,
IN (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
oNE, counity of WiLrs, 4} miles (W,8. W.)
504 The liv-

e '-ﬂ'-e‘ﬂww-;-fv-. bin

. of woul;ip for
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e amtofﬂ&ﬂﬁm the Incor-
or enlarging churches and chapels.

a place of worship for Particular

village is a coal mine, from which a rail-

extends to the Ashby de la Zouch and

, which form a junction within the parish, the

terminating here. Two charity schools, and

almshouses for twenty-four persons, are endowed with

ing £700 per annum, bequeathed by the

Rev. Nicholas Chamberlain, in 1715.

BEEBY, a parish in the eastern division of the
hundred of Goscor, county of Lriosster, 6 miles
(N.E. by E.) from Leicester, containing 120 inhabitants.
The li is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Leices-
ter, and di of Lincoln, rated in the king

i
i
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‘s books
at £15. 2. 6, and in the patronage of the Earl of
Shaftesbury. The church is dedicated to All Saints.

BEECH, a liberty in the parish of Stoxg, southern
division of the hundred of Prremivy, county of Stae-
FORD, containing 838 inhabitants.

BEECHAMWELL, comprising the parish of All
Saints, and the united parishes of St. John and St.
Mary, in the hundred of Crackcrosg, county of Nox-
roLk, 5§ miles (W.8. W.) from Swaffham, and contain-
ing 288 inhabitants. The living of All Saints’ is a dis-
charged rectory, with that of Shi annexed, rated
in the king's books at £6. 13. 4., and in the
of the Crown, St. John's and St. Mary's are discharged
rectories consolidated, rated jointly at £9. 13. 4., and
in the of J. Motteaux, Esq.: they are in the

of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich.

BEECH-HILL, atyt.hhgin that part of the purish
of Strarrierp-Saye which is in the hundred of
Reaping, county of Berxs, 6 miles (S.byw.) from
i 274 inhabitants. There is a place
Particular Baptists,

BEECHING, or BEAUCHAMP-STOKE, a parish
in the hundred of Swannoroven, county of WiLrs,
5% miles (E. by 8.) from Devizes, containing 156 inha-
bitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's

books at £7. 2. 11, and in thap-nmdﬂe«p
Wylde Heneage, Esq. The church is to St.
Stephen. On opening a tumulus in this parish lately,
a considerable quantity of stags' horns and human

. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
dlm.-uddhmadm_,w

in the king's books at £8, and in the patronage of the
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of Henry VL. The navigable river Adur runs in the

m.npuhh-inthuw d‘f‘mno-.
county of Brrxs, 24 miles (8. W.by W.) from East
&lq,mhhlngsw‘inh‘gm ‘l'haﬁzngu a
discharged in archdeaconry Berks,
and Mm.whmhhfahmhu
:ndd. 10. 10., endowed with £250 private benefaction,

£200

ing 701 inhabitants, of which number, 620 are in the
township of Beeford, 9 miles (E. 8. E.) from Great Drif-
field. The living is a rectory, within the peculiar ju-
risdiction of the manor court of Beeford, rated in the
king's books at £22, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to St. Leonard. There are
places of worship for Independents and Wesleyan Me-
thodists. ~ A free school here is conducted on the
National plan.

BEELEY, a chapelry in the parish of BaxewzLy,
hundred of Hica Prax, connty of Derny, 4 miles
(E. by 8.) from Bakewell, containing 350 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, within the peculiar
jurisdiction of the Dean and Chapter of Lichfield, en-
dowed with £400 private benefaction, and £ 1200 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Duke of Devon-
The chapel is dedicated to St. Anne, There is
of for Wesleyan Methodists. Several
ions have been made for the relief of

the -

g:;:LSBY. a parish in the wapentake of BraprLEy-
Haverstor, parts of Lixpsey, county of Lincoux,
54 miles (E,) from Caistor, containing 160 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8. 17. 6.,
and in the patro of the Chapter of the Collegiate
Church of Southw: The church is dedicated to St.
Andrew. ;

BEENHAM, a parish in the hundred of Reaping,
county of Benks, 8§ miles (W.8.W.) from Reading,
mhh:in; 437 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of
, rated in the king's books at £7. 17,, and in
of Mrs. Stevens. The church is dedi-
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of Elizabeth, since which time the borough has returned
two members to parliament: the right of
vested by tenure in those who have land in the
borough, and pay an acknowledgment to the lord of
the manor, upon whose will their number is entirely
dependent : the portreeve is the returning officer. H
was formerly a chapel of ease to the rectory of Beer-
Ferris. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. .

BEER-CROCOMBE, a parish in the hundred of
Aspick and Buusrone, county of Somekser, 6 miles
(N.W. by N.) from Ilminster, containing 186 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells,
rated in the king's books at £11. 12. 6, and in the
patronage of the Earl of Egremont. The church is

BEER-FERRIS, a parish in the hundred of Rono-
rovuGH, county of+Dxvon, 74 miles (8. by w.) from
Tavistock, containing, with the borough of Beer-Alston,
2198 inhabitants. 'The living is a rectory, in the arch-

of Totness, and diocese of Bath and Wells,
rated in the king's books at £24. 1. 04, and in the pa-
tronage of Viscount Valletort, The church is dedicated
to St. Andrew. Tharrinh is bounded on the west by
the navigable river Tamar, and on the east by the
Tavey, which unite at its southern extremity, and fall
into the English channel on the western side of De-

vonport.

BEER-HACKET, a parish in the hundred of Saer-
norng, Sherborne division of the county of Dorser, 5
miles (8. W, by 8.) from Sherborne, containing 78 in-
habitants, The living is a disc rectory, within
the peculiar

of the Dean of Salisbury, rated




situated on the small river Beer; the houses,
in general, are modern and well built, and the inhabit-
ants are amply supplied with water. The market is on
Wednesday : a fair is held, ber 18th and the four
following days, on Woodbury hill, for horses, horned
eattle, gheep, cloth, and cheese, The living, which, in
cotijunction with Charmouth, formerly constituted the

prebend in the Cathedral Church of Salisbury,
and ig now in the jurisdiction of the Dean of
Salisbury, is a vicarage, with the perpetual curacy of
Winterbourne-Kingston annexed, rated in the king's
hooks at £25. 5., and in the of the Master
and Fellows of Balliol College, Oxford. The church,
dedicated to St.John the Baptist, is a spacious ancient
structure, with a square embattled tower erowned with
pinnacles. There are places of worship for Indepen-
dents and Wesleyan Methodists ; that for the Indepen-
dents has an endowment of £18 per annum. A cha-
rity school was founded and endowed by Thomas Wil-
liams, Esq., and further endowed by the Rev, Thomas
Williams, for two additional scholars. In 1773, the
Rev. Henry Figher bequeathed £ 100 to this institution :
the master has a salary of £ 10 per annum, with a house

the town, there is a circular camp, comprehending an
area of ten acres; and to the west of it are the site
of the ancient chapel of Sancta Anchoretta, and a well
called Anchoret's well. Dr. John Moreton, Archbishop
of Canterbury, and a cardinal; and Dr. Tuberville,
Bishop of Exeter; were natives of this place; the for-
mer also di hed himself in the wars, and pro-
the union, of the houses of York and Lancaster.
BEERHALL, a tything in the parish and hundred
of AxminsrER, county of oN, containing 331 in-
habitants,
* BEES (ST.), a parish in ALuerpane ward above
Darwent, county of CuMBERLAND, comprising the port
and market town of Whitehayven, the chapelries of
D bt it Medhiorvtsilas e scowaiips
Mbh,_ m, W asdale uding “‘i‘l"pﬂ
of St. Bees, Kinneyside, Lowside-Quarter, Preston-Quar-
ter, Rottington, Sandwith, and Wheddicar, and contain-

FESY RSN e
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and garden. On Woodbury hill, about half a mile from
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have retired hither to avoid suspicion ; and King John, abbey of St. Mary at York : its revenue, at the dissolu-
who occasionally made this his residence, in-  tion, was estimated at £149. 19. 6. The church is era-
habitants the lege of n market, in the seventeenth ciform, hgving a strong tower of early Norman archi-
vear of his reign. 1. made it a free borough, but tecture, but the rest of the edifice is in the decorated
‘does not appear to have ever returned any members English style : the nave is used for the celebration of
to parlimment. A part of the town was destroyed divine service; and the chancel, which had long lain

for divinity, in connexion with a clerieal i

founded by Dr. Law, a' late bishop of Chum%
benefit of young men intended for holy orders, who do
not mean to complete their studies at Oxford or Cam-
bridge, and who receive ordination after having studied
fora certain period at this place; but they can only enter
upon their ministry within the province of York. In ad-
dition to this, there is a celebrated free grammar school,
founded by letters patent, dated April 24th, 1583, ob-
tained by Edmund Grindall, Archbishop of Canterbury,
whereby its management is entrusted to a corporation
of seven governors, of whom the Provost of Queen's
College, Oxford, and the Rector of Egrémont, are always
two, the former enjoying the privilege of nominating
the master, who chooses an usher. The annual income,
arising from land, is £125: of this sum, £50 are paid
to the master, and £ 10 to the usher, but their salaries
receive considerable angmentation from entrance-fees
and donations at Shrovetide, and the former takes
boarders : gratuitous instruction is limited to the clas-
sics, The school enjoys the advantage of a fellowship
and two scholarships at Queen's College, Oxford, with
the privilege of sending a candidate to be examined for
one of five exhibitions, founded at the same college by
Lady Elizabeth Hastings ; a fellowship and three scho-
larships at Pembroke College, Cambridge ; a sch

of £4 a year ut Magdalene College, Cambridge, and, in
failure of scholars from the school at Carlisle, eligibi-
lity to two exhibitions, founded by Bishop Thomas, at
Queen's College, Oxford. A good library is connected
with the school. The parish extends for about ten
miles along the coast, which in some parts 1s rocky and
precipitous, and contains coal, limestone, and freestone:
lead-ore is obtained at Kinneyside, where there are
smelting -furnaces, and iron-ore was formerly got in
Eskdale. A lighthouse was erected in 1717, on a pro-
montory called St. Bees' Head.

BEESBY, formerly a distinct parish, now united
to Hawenrsy, in the wapentake of Bravrrey-Haver.
STOE, of Linpsey, county of Linconn, 8} miles
(N.W. by N.) from Louth. The population is returned
with Hawerby. The living is a rectory, consolidated
with that of Hawerby.

BEESBY in the MARSH, a parish in the Wold
division of the hundred of CaLceworTs, parts of Linp-
sey, county of Linconw, 24 miles (N. by E.) from
Alford, containing 132 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £13. 10. 2., and in the
patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated to
Bt.Andrew. P 4

BEESTON, a hamlet partly in the parish of
Nowrruiiy, and partly in the parish of Sanoy, hundred
of WixamTrER, county of Beprorp, 3 miles (N.N.W.)

Biggleswade, - 214 inhabitants, .

BEESTON, a township in that part of the pa-
rish of Bunpury which is in the first division of the
hundred of Eppispury, county palatine of Cuzsren,
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33 milu(ss.w)from'l‘lrpoﬂey containing 441 in-
babitants, On a rocky eminence, affording a fine view
over the Vale Royal, are the massive ruins of Beeston
Castle, comprising part of a tower which the
pﬂnmpa.l entrance, flanked by semicircular ones, which
formed the inner ward, occupying nearly an acre of
ground, and protected by a moat excavated in the
solid rock; the outer walls were guarded by eight
round towers irregularly placed, and are now, for the
greater part, mmnmﬂyoovmdwithwyandothar
foliage: in the outer court is a considerable stone
quarry. This fortress, founded by Ranulph de Blun-
deville, about 1220, was made a royal n in the
war between Henry II1. and the barons ; and, in 1643,
it was held by a detachment of the parliamentary forces.
Having been subsequently taken by the royalists, it
was surrendered by them for want of provisions, after
a long siege, in 1645, and, early in the following year,
was demolished. Courts leet and baron are held here.
There is a small endowment for the instruction of
mnchlldmn. A mineral spring was discovered about

BEESTON a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of Bnox'row, county of NorriNemAM, 3%
miles (8.W. by W.) from Nottingham, containing 1534
inhabitants, The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £4, 15., and in the patron-
age of the Duke of Devonshire. The church is dedi-
cated to St. John the Baptist. The inhabitants are prin-
mpully employed in the manufucture of hosiery and

silk-mill has also recently been erected.
Abranch the Nottingham canal, called Beeston Cut,
crosses the parish on the south-east, to its jmction
with the Trent. Considerable portions of a Roman
road, uniting with the “old Coventry road” in the ad-
joining parish of Attenborough, and the remains of an
ancient building, ave discernible here. There are some
wells in the village, the water of which is slightly chaly-

BEESTON, a chapelry in the parish of St. PETER,
within the liberty of the borongh of Lurps, though lo-
cally in the wapentake of Morley, West riding of the
county of York, 2% miles (8.W.by 8.) from Leeds,
com the townships of Beeston-Shaw,

Hall, New Hall, Parkside, Royds, and Snickells, nnd
containing 1670 inhabitants. The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, in the uchdmonry and diocese of York,
eu;l:lw;gmwith::w - benefnctlefm. and £200
ro ty, in patronage of the Viear of
Leeds, The chapel is a very ancient structure, dedi-

cated to St. Mary. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists. Extensive coal mines near the
village have been worked since the reign of CharlesI1.;
and there are various establishments connected with
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BEESTON (ST. LAWRENCE), a parish in the
hundred of TuxsTEAD, cmtyome:,&mlh
Yty v g s

v a in deaconry
and diocese of N h, rated in the king's books at
£6, endowed with £200
royal bounty, and in the of J. Preston, Esq.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

BEESTON (ST. MARY), a parish in the hundred
of Launprrcs, county of NorroLk, 7 miles (N.E. by E.)
from Swaffham, cont thhthepamhofbitﬂe
Bittering, 666 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and dioceSe of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £13, and in the patronage
of the King, as e of Lancaster. A sum of money
has been left for the instruction of poor children; and
there is an almshonse with a small endowment.

BEESTON-REGIS, a parish in the northern di-
vision of the bundred of Errinciam, county of Non-
¥oLK, 3 miles (W.N.W.) from Cromer, containing 238
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £16, and in the patro of the
King, as Duke of Lancaster. The church is cated
to All Saints. The sea has made considerable encroach-
ments on this part of the coast. Here are some
remains of a priory of Augustine canons, founded in
the reign of John, by Lady Isabel de Cressey, the
revenue of which, at the tion, was £50, 6. 4.

BEETHAM, a parish In*SenpAL ward, county of
WrsTMORLAND, comprising the chapelry of Witherslack,
and the townships of Beetham, Farleton, Haverbrack,
and Methop with Ulpha, and containing 1618 inhabit-
ants, of which number, 830 are in the township of
Beetham, 3 miles (N.W. by W.) from Burton in Ken-
dal. The living is a discharged vic , in the arch-
deaconry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, rated
in the king's books at £13. 7. 4., endowed with £400
private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the

parish is situated at the south-western extremity of
the county, on both sides of the mstuary of the river
Kent, which is navigable for small craft as far as the
hamlet of Storth, and on the shore of which are twe



BEL

the south are the ruins of Helslack and Arnside
owers, which were probably erected to guard the bay
“of Morecambe, there © - remains of similar towers
~on the wite shore. At Beetham Mill is a waterfall
" on the river Belo, near where the new rond crosses that
river by means of a bridge.
: STLEY, a parish in the hundred of Lavxpiren,
county of Nonvork, 33 miles (N. by w.) from East
De , CO 356 inhabitants. The living is a
ed rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £9. 7. 11., and
in the patronage of the Rev, C. Munnings. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary,

BEGBROOKE, a parigh in the hundred of Woor-
rox, county of Oxrorn, 2} miles (S.E. by 8.) from
Woodstock, containing 102 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory not in charge, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Oxford, and in the pa of Sir G. Dash-
wood, Bart,, for three turns, and the Principal and
Fellows of Brasenose Co , Oxford, for one. The
church is dedicated to St. Michael. A little westward
from it is an ancient military work, called Round
Castle. :
BEIGHTON, a parish in the hundred of Scars-
paLE, county of Densy, 74 miles (E. 8, E.) from Shef-
field, containing 856 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
ch vi , in the archdeaconry of Derby, and
diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
books at £6. 11. 104., endowed with £10 per annum
private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of Earl Manvers. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Mary. ~In 1666, William Jessop bequeathed
land, producing about £ 14 per annum, for apprenticing
poor children of this parish, and other charitable pur-
poses. A echool for the instraction of ten children has
an endowment of about £5 pgr annum.

BEIGHTON, a parish in the hundred of WawLs-
uam, comnty of Norrork, 2 miles (8. W. by 8.) from
Acle, containing 244 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, in the archdeaconry and di of
Norwich, rated in the king's books at £13, and in the
patronage of R. Fellowes, Esq. The church is dedicated
to All Saints.

+ BEIGHTON, county of SvrrorLk.—See BEYTON,

BEILBY, a chapelry in the parish of Havron,
Holme-Beacon division of the of HarTarLy,

of the county of Yonxk, 34 miles (5. by w.)
from - 239 inhabitants. The

%thz.ﬂnm
- BELAUGH, a parish in the southern division of

mmu-enmm connty of NorvoLk, 1§

from Coltishall, containing 138 inhubitants,
is l--'llhnhlrg rectory, amnexed to the
‘Scottow, in the | and diocese
ch, rated in the king's books at £6. The

-mm'
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5 miles (N.W. by N.) from Bromsgrove, ennxmg ing 1476
inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdea- '
conry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's
bhooks at £19, and in the patronage of the President
and Fellows of St. Johm's College, Oxford. The church,
dedicated to the Holy Trinity, ias recently received
an additional number of sittings, by means of a grant
of £100 from the Incorporated Society for enlarging
churches and chapels. Here is an extensive manufac-
tory for scythes, hay-knives, &e, Fairs are held ou the
last Monday in April, and the Monday before 8t. Luke's
day. A sheriff’s court, for the recovery of small debts,
is held on the third Wednesday in every month. There
is an endowment of about £10 per annum for the in-
struction of poor children. The parish is divided into
four yields, viz., those of Belbroughton, Brian’s Bell with
Moor-Hall Bell, Forfield, and Broomhill,

BELBY, a township in the parish of Howprx,
wapentake of Howpensuime, East riding of the connty
of Yorg, 14 mile (E. by N.) from Howden, contain-
ing 49 inhabitants,

BELCHAMP (OTTON), a parish in the hundred of
Hinckrorp, county of Essex, 54 miles (N. by E.)
from Castle - Hedingham, containing 352 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Mid-
dlesex, and diocese of London, rated in the king's
books at £12, and in the patro of the Rew. John
Cox. The church is dedicated to St. Ethelbert and
All Saints. Albright's chapel, formerly in this parish,
has been long since demolished,

BELCHAMP (ST. PAUL'S), a parish in the hun-
dred of Hinckrorp, county of Essex, 2 miles (8. E.
by E.) from Clare, containing 685 inhabitants, The
living is a vicarage, in the peculiar jurisdiction and pa-
tronage of the Dean and Chapter of St. Paul's, London,
rated in the king's books at £14. The church is de-
dicated to St. Andrew.

BELCHAMP (WALTER), a parish in the hundred
of Hinckronp, county of Essex, 8 miles (W.) from
Sudbury, containing 608 inbabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, consolidated with that of Bulmer,
in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and diocese of Lon-
don, rated in the king's books at £6, and endowed
with £100 and £6 per annum private benefaction, and
£200 royal bounty. The church is dedicated to St.

BELFORD, a parish partly in Isuaxpsaine, a de-
tached portion of the county palutine of Durmam, but
chiefly in the northern division of Bamproven ward,
county of NORTHUMBERLAND, comprising the market
town of Belford, and the townships of Detchant, Easing-
ton, Easi - , Elwick, Middleton, and Ross,



the aevcr‘a.ltbwmhtps. The living is a perpetual curacy,
in the ofNurthnﬁgahnd, d
vate benefaction, £ 600

Durham,endo::iiwith £800

royal bounty £1100

the e of William Clarke, Esq., as lord of the
manor. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a hand-

some structure, erected in 1700, at the narth-western

A charity school is supported by subscription. About u
mile to the south-west of the town is u quadrilateral in-
trenchment, baving an entrance on the north-east, and
defgndtd by a wide ditch nnd';mdmble mﬁ: it
is some supposed to have a strong hold, or
plan:uf security from the incursions of the Scots,
during the border wars ; by others it is thought to be
of Danish origin. The races, formerly held at Beaduell,
have been removed hither, where a course has just been

Birstall in the western, division of the hundred of Gos-
coTe, connty of Leicester, 1§ mile (N. N.E.) from Lei-
cester, and containing
o vicarage, in the

of Lincoln, rated in the

1904 inhahitants. The living is
of Leicester, and diocese

BELLEAU, a parish in the Marsh division of the
hundred of Carceworta, of Linnsey, county of
Lincowny, 5 miles (N.W. by W.) from Alford, containing
88 inhabitants. The living is a discharfged rectory, to
which the vicarage of Aby was united in 1732, in the

and diocese of Lincoln, vated in the king's
books at £13. 3. 9., and in the of Lord
Gwydir, The church is dedicated to St, John the Bap-
tist. The name (Belle ean) is derived from a fine stream
of water, which issues from a chalk hill with consider-
able force.

BELLERBY, a chapelry in the parish of Srexsi-
THORN, western division of the wapentake of Hawe,
North riding of the county of Youx, 1§ mile (N.) from
Leyburn, containing 407 inbabitants, The living isa
perpetual curacy, in the archdenconry of Richmond, and
diocese of Chester, endowed with £400 private bene-
faction, and £800 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of W. Chaytor, Esq.

BELLESTER, a township in the parish of Harz- |
wiisTLe, western division of Tinvare ward, county of
NorruumnErraxp, 16 miles (W, by 8.) from Hexham, |
containing 118 inhabitants, On the bank of the South
Tyne are the ruins of an ancient castle, once belonging'
to the Blenkinsop family.

BELLINGHAM, a parish in the north-western di-
vision of Tixpare ward, county of NorTRusnsrLaND,
com the market town of Bell und the
townships of East Charlton, West Charlton, Leemail-
ing, the Nook, and Tarretburn, and containing 1396

, of which number, 404 are in the town of
ham, 30 miles (W. N.W.) from Newcastle upon |

the remains of British fortifications. The lords de
are said to have had a castle, or baron

. seat, here, erected on an eminence still called Fie

In the reigns of Richard H. and Henry IV., the manor

m h *‘m e ¥ mwich " [ i ! __:-"':“-!‘-"_ )

b




. A book club was established in the town in
e market is on Saturday : a fuir is held on
‘Saturday after September 15th, and there are
o th"{h&maayt before May l%thfqnd

h. This parish was forregly ~of the
arish of Simonburn, which was divided into
uct parishes by act of parlisment obtained in
1811, The llviung is @ rectory not in charge, in the
archdeaconry of Northumberland, and diocese of Dur-
ham, and in the of the Governors of Green-
wich Hospital. The church, dedicated to St. Cuthbert,
is a small ancient structure, with a finely
of stone; the chancel contains many tablets and
monuments ¢ the churchyard, ocenpying an elevated si-
tuation, forms a beautiful terrace overlooking the river.
There is o place of worship for Seceders from the Scot-
tish church, besides a Roman Catholic chapel. A
school was endowed here with £200, by Mrs, Reed of

'l‘n;ﬁhmﬂ, with which sum, and a legacy of £40 left

by John Charlton, in 1782, the third part of a farm
was , which would have now produced £50
per annum, but the Reeds of Chipchase having pur-

chased the whole estate, sold it without any reserve, and
the trustees having lost their deeds, the school has been
deprived of the endowment,

BELPER; a market town and chapelry in the pa-
rish of Durrigup, hundred of ArrrETREE, county of
Derny, 8 miles (N,) from Derby, and 134 (N.N.W,)
from London, containing 7235 inhabitants. This place,
at which was formerly a park and hunting seat belong-

to John of Gaunt, Duke of Lancaster, was an in-
considerable village, inhabited principally by nailers, till
the year 1777, when the cotton manufacture was intro-
duced by Messrs, Strutt, since which time it has risen
into a considerable town. It is pleasantly situated on
the river Derwent, over which a handsome stone bridge
of three arches has been recently erected, the former
dge, said to have been built by John of Gaunt,
having been destroyed, in 1705, by a great flood. The
town, consisting of several streets, is partially paved,
&:t:d with gas, and amply supplied with water,

are five mills for the spinning of cotton, all be-
longing to Messrs. Strutt, who make their own machi-
nery on the spot; two of these, and also a bleaching
mill, are-about & mile and a half lower down the river,
over which the proprietors have built n neat stone

i two arches, for their own accommodation.

the 1 establishments in the king-
cotton hose, in which upwards of four

g
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‘dicated to St. John the Baptist,

ined roof Th
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royal bounty, and £2300 parliamentary grant, and in
the patronage of the Vicar of Duffield. , de-

b was ereg:g in 1524, at
an expense of upwards of £12,000, w was par
defrayed by a parliamentary grant: it is am{
gome structure in the decorated style of English archi-
tecture, with a lofty tower, and contains one thousand
eight hundred and four sittings, of which one thonsand
two hundred and four are free. The old chapel, built
by John of Gaunt, the burial-ground of which is still
used, is now appropriated to the use of a Sunday school,
erc are places of worship for Baptists, Indepen-
dents, Wesleyan Methodists, and Unitarions. A Lan-
casterian school is“Supported by the proprietors of the
cotton-works, for the benefit of the children belong-
ing to the factory. Henry Smith, Esq. endowed two
almshouses for poor persons, and bequeathed an estate
producing £30 per annum, directing the rental to be
divided equally between the minister and the poor of
Belper : two other almshouses were endowed by James
Sims, with £12 per annum. In a field in the neigh-
bourhood may still be traced the massive foundations
of the mansion in which John of Geunt resided.

BELSAY, a township in that part of the parish of
Boram which is in the north-eastern division of Tix-
paLe ward, county of NorrnumsErrLaxDp, 15 miles
(N.w.) from Newcastle upon Tyne, containing 327 in-
habitants, There are considerable remains of an an-
cient castle, occupying an elevated site, above which is
a stone cross. Belsay Hall is a splendid edifice of Gre-
ciun architecture, but the entire design has not been
completed.

BELSHFORD, a parish in the northern division of
the wapentake of GarTner, parts of LiNpsey, county
of LincoLn, 4% miles (N.E. by N.) from Horncastle,
containing 490 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £18. 6. 8, and in the patronage of
the Crown. The church is dedicated to St. Peter
and St. Paul. The parish abounds with excellent lime-
stone.

BELSTEAD, a parish in the hundred of Simrorp,
county of Surrork, 3} miles (S.W. by W.) from
Ipswich, containing 255 inbabitants, The living is
a discharged rectary, in the archdeaconry of Suffalk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£7.6. 04, and in the of Ambrose Steward,

. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

BELSTONE, a parish in the hundred of Brack
TorriNGToN, county of Devown, 3 miles (E.8.E.) from
Oakhampton, containing 157 inhabitants, The living

is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Totness,

and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£9. 0, 1., endowed with £200 private benefaction, and
£300 parliumentary grant, and in the patro of the
Rev. John Hole. The church, dedicated to St. Mary,
containg the remains of a cucking stool. The rivers
Ockment and Taw, having their sources in Dartmoor,
through the parish, in which several copper mines
were formerly worked. P BT T
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Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln, rated in
books at £8. 18. 4., and in the patronage of the Mar-
q::l B.fp Hastings, The chlu.t;h o}l dedimdbwgt John
t tist. There is a pi worship for Wesleyan
Methodists. A considerable fair for horses is held here
annually, on the Monday next after Trinity week. A con-
vent for nuns of the order of 8t. was founded
at Grace-Dieu, in the reign of Henry I11., the revenue
of which, at the dissolution, was £101. 8. 2}. Sir John
Beaumont, author of a poem entitled “Bosworth Field,”
brother of Francis Beaumont, the celebrated dramatist,
was born at Grace.Dieu, in 1582,

BELTON, a parish in the soke of GranTHAM,
parts of Kesteves, county of Lincoun, 24 miles
(N.N. E.) from Grantham, containing 178 inhabitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
rated in the king's books at £12. 3. 64,
and in the patronage of Brownlow. The church
i dedicated to St. Peter and St, Paul. Here is an alms-
house for six poor persons. Belton gives the title of
baron to Earl Brownlow,

BELTON, a parish in the western division of the
wapentake of Maxiey, parts of Linpsey, county of
Lixcownx, 1§ mile (N.) from Epworth, containing 1437
inhabitants. The living is a curacy, in the
archdeacoury of it:w. and diocese of Lineoln, and in
the patronage of the Mayor and Corporation of Lincoln.
The church is dedicated to All Snints, There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,

BELTON, a parish in the soke of Oaxnam, county
of Ruruaxn, 4 miles (W.N.W.) from Uppingham, con-
taining, with Gunthorpe Lodge, 401 inhabitants, The
living is a viearage, annexed wthemchoryof}\"nﬂley,

Peterborough, .
A school for the instruction of twelve poor children is
endowed with about £10 per annum.

BELTON, = parish in the hundred of Mm-man
and LorminGranp, county of Surrork, 44 miles (8.w,)
from Great Yarmonth, containing 385 inhabitants, The
living is a discharged rectory, in the

, and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's

2

books at £17. 15., and in the patro

S, v i 4 e ok, gty g
W - ol :
the church, and rebuilt the parsonage-house, um

royal
ley, Esq. The church is dedicated to St, Michael, There
is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, :
BENACRE, county of SurroLk.—See BINACRE,
2 BENAGER, county of SoMmErspr.—See BINE-
AR.
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the village are nine of those cavities
in the earth, commonly called “ Swallows,” into which
the waters of the land floods flow and disappear,
BENENDEN, a parish in the hundred of Row-
vENDEN, lathe of Scray, county of Kenr, 8§ miles

on May 15th and August 4th,
mmmbmmmfow: school, which has
been  subsequently with property

£114 per annum. There is another school wim




in the king's books at £7. 8. 64,, and in the patronage
of T. H. . y Esq.  The church is dedicated to St.
Leonard.

BENGWORTH (ST. PETER), a parish within the
jurisdiction of the borongh of Evesuam, locally in
the lower division of the hundred of Blackenhurst,
county ofWoncssr:m a mile (8.8.E.) from Eves-
ham, containing 858 i itants. It is situated on the
southern side of the navigable river Avon, opposite the
town of Evesham, with which it was incorporated in
the reign of James I. The living is a tual curacy,
in the peculiar jurisdiction of the Bishop of Worcester,
rated in the king's books at £7. 10. 10., endowed with
£200 private benefuction, and £400 royal bouaty, and
in the patronage of the Rev.W. Alies. The church,
which has a handsome tower and spire, is dedicated to
St. Peter : it stands on the site of a castle which be-
longed to the abbey of Evesham, and which was de-
stroyed by William D'Andeville, one of the abbots, who
recovered it from William de , hereditary
sheriff of the county, by whom it had been held, in con-
travention of the abbot's rights, JohifDeacle, alderman
of London, who was born here, left £ 2000 for the en-
dowment of a free school for thirty boys, who are
clothed, educated, and apprenticed. See Evesmam.

BENHALL, a parish in the hundred of Promes-
GATE, county of Surrork, 2 miles (W. by 8.) from Sax-
mundham, ing 710 inhabitants, The living is a

vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£7. 1. 8, and in the of Edward Hollond,
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. «Sir Ed-

BENHAM, & ty‘thingin that of the parish of
Smu'ﬂich is in the hundred ﬁ:mu“-ﬂmu,

, 3 miles (W.) from Speenhamland,
inhahltum.

MGH,ntowmhip in the parish of
‘Ouze, wapentake of Burmer, North
m of Yonk, 74 miles (N. W.) from
: 'W joht“towﬁlhi with Grange,
P o 3
h of Swing which is in the
of HoLperness, East
Yo ﬂmﬂel(n.bys.a}from
Gr inhabitants,

97
‘bundred of Broan-
n&t(ﬂ.s.l.) from

‘_ ,-.“F .__:-.||-|.-|.; (L m
he king's books at £19, and in
Procter, Esq.  The church is

141

in the wapentake of Skimseck, parts of

The livia;h.a :
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dedicated to St. Peter. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists. On an intrenched eminence on
the western side of the church anciently stood a castle.
The kings of Mercia are stated to have had a
ll;:ﬂre’hsevenlancienteem have been found in the

BENNINGTON, a parish {furmer!y a market town)
Hovranp,
county of Lincoun, 5 miles (E.N.E.) from Bow:u,
containing 406 inhabitants.  The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £33. 8. 114, and in the patronage of
Viscount Goderich, The church is dedicated to All
Saints. A free school is endowed with about £60 per
anoum,

BENNINGTON (LONG), a parish in the wapen-
take of Lovepen, parts of Kesteves, county of Lin-
coLy, 7 miles (N.W.) from Grantham, containing 881
inhabitants. The living is a dmchnrged vicarage, with
the perpetual curacy of Foston annexed, in the arch-
deacoury and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £20. 1, 10, and in the patronage of the
King, as Duke of Lancaster. The church is dedicated
to All Saints. There is a of worship for Wes-
leyan Methodists, The river Witham forms the north-
eastern boundary of the parish, in which there is a
mineral spring strongly impregnated with iron. An
Alien priory of Cistercian monks was founded here
about 1175, the revenue of which, in the reign of
Richard 1., was £50 per annum.

BENNIWORTH, a parish in the eastern division of
the wapentake of WraGGoE, parts of LiNpsey, county
of LincoLn, 6 miles (E.N.E.) from Wraghy, contain-
ing 346 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £23. 8. 64., and in the patronage of R. Ains-
lie, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Julian.

BENRIDGE, a joint township with Kirkley and
Cartermoor (but formerly distinct), in the parish of
PoxTeELAND, western division of CasTie ward, county
of NortHuMBERLAND, 94 miles (N.W. by N.) from
Newecastle upon Tyne. The population is returned with

Kirkley.

l]‘ilgﬁBIDGE, a township in that part of the parish
of Mrrrorp which is in the western division of Mog-
pern ward, county of NorTEUMBERLAND, 2 miles
(W. N. W.) from Morpeth, containing 57 inhabit-
ants,

BENSINGTON, or BENSON, & parish partly in
the hundred of Dorcuester, but chiefly in that of
EwrLMmE, county of Oxrorp, 11 miles (N.W, by N.) from
Henley upon Thames, containing, with the hamlets of
Crowmarsh-Battle m;nd Fifield, itl?i?:l thn;h;hl‘;rtants.ion'l'ho?
living is a perpetual curacy, w isdict
thnngeculm- court of Dorchester, endowed with £200
private benefaction, and £200 rayl.l
patronage of the Dean and Caunons of GhrmGhurch
Oxford. mohumhiadeﬂ::udbg&.ﬂelu T&:
ancient place is reported to have taken from
Britons, about 572, by Ceawlin, third king of the West
Saxons, whose successors retained it for about two
dred years, until it was surrcndered to ng i

A ﬁ!'l palace

SE:.E

Herdl. The Roman wa lmdingfmm
crossed the '

anciently stood in the vicinity,
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of Bmmﬂomnmn which Atherstone division of the NGFORD,
of ERING, county of Essex, !}uﬂh“mw.bym mﬂdWm,S‘m(&W)‘*ﬁmM
from Hwﬂtelm, eomdnhlg 5’13 hhuhit- inhabitants,
ants,

BEN‘I'HAL a township in ‘the pu"ish ‘df Anven-
nuRy, hundred of Forn, oo\m‘ty of Saror. The po-
pulation is returned with Shrawardine,

. BENTHALL, a parish within the liberties of the

of W:m.ocu, of Savor, 2] miles
(N.E. by N.) from Much Wenlock, containing 554 inha-
bitants. The living i= a curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of , and diocese of Hereford, endowed
with £800 royal bounty, and £ 1200 parﬁamentary
%lnt. and in the patronage of the Vicar of Much
b Theehmﬂl;mw] cate:l to St. Bartholomew.

‘population are principally employed in the potteries
e’hhlilhed here. The navigable river Severn flows past

this

gENTHAM a pmah in the western division of the
wapentake of Starncrirre and Ewceross, West riding
of the county of Yonrk, comprising the chapelry of In-
gleton, and the townships of Bentham and Langcliffe,
and containing 3824 inhabitants, of which number, 2102
are im the township of Bentham, 12 miles (W, N.W.)
from Settle. The living is a restory, in the archdea-
conry of Richmond, and diocese of Chester, rated in
the ‘s hooks at £35. 7. 8., and in the patronage
of T. L. Parker, Esq.  The church, dedicated to St.
John the Bajtist, has lately received an addition of two
hundred and eighteen sittings, one hundred and twenty-
seven of which are free, the Incorporated Society for
the t of churches and chapels having granted
£100 toward defraying the se. Here are mills
for the spinning of flax and the manufacture of linen ;
there are also some potteries in the parish. William

Collingwood, in 1726, bequeathed property for the en-
dowment of a free school for boys in Upper Bentham,

. and an hospital for six men and six women, which was

vested in trustees under a deeree of the Court of Chan-
cery, in 1733, and now produces £240 per annum ;
some trifling donnt:uns have since been made to the
school.

- BENTLEY, a parish and liberty in the hundred of
Basiscstoxe, Basingstoke division of the county of
BovrHAMPTON, 4 miles (W,8.W.) from Farnham, con-
taining 690 inhabitants. The living is a perpetunl
mw, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester,
“endowed with £600 private beuefncﬁon, £400 royal
‘bounty, and £800 parliomentary J. Andrews
‘gnd others were patrons in 1820, chmhisdedl-

‘cated to St. Mary, Bentley is within the jurisdiction adorn

rd!mmmcmwdazwmmmnm
, for the recovery of debts to any amount,
Mmm i

,‘a!iba-uyhthepuhhofm.ﬁmz,.
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mm. a township in thepﬁhhnﬁ&tm,
northern division of the wapentake of SrrarrorTn
and Trckmiun, West riding of the ¢ “of Youx,
2 miles (N.W. by N.) from Doneastér, The population
is returned with the parish. There is a place of wor-
ship for Wesleyan Methodists,

BENTLEY (FENNY), a parish in the hundred of
Wirksworrn, county of Derny, 2% miles (N, by W.)
from Ashbourn, containing 242 inhabitants, The living
is a di rectory, in the archdeaconry of Derby,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£6. 12. 10., and in the patronage of the Dean of Lin-
coln. The church, dedicated to St, Mary Magdalene, is
a small structure with a low tower.

BENTLEY (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
Texvring, county of Essex, 8§ miles (E.S.E) from
Colchester, containing 794 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Colches-
ter, and diocese of London, rated in the king's books
at £7, endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
£400 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Bishop
of London. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,
The parochial school is endowed with about £15 per
annum,

BENTLEY (HUNGRY),  liberty in the parish of
Lonerorn, handred of Apvrereee, county of Derny,
5% miles (8.) from Ashbourn, containing 88 inhabitants,
Here was formerly a chapel, long since demolished.

BENTLEY (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
TENDRING, county of Essex, 54 miles (8. by E.) from
Manningtree, containing 402 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the of Colchester, and dio-
cese of London, rated in the king's books at £183, and
in the of Robert Foot, Esq. The church is
dedicated to St. Mary. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists,

BENTON (LONG), & parish in the castern division
of CasTre wud,mnty a;!:gumuus’l?nx;mn, 33 miles
(‘N E. by N.) from New e upon comprising

the townships of Long Benton, Killingworth, Walker,
alxlnd \Wlf.eet-ted, and containing M*ihiemm Thn;

a discharged vicarage, in o
vohrtglmmh&llud.md diocese of Durham, rated in the
king's books at £3. 1. 8., and in the ot‘the
Master and Fellows. of Balliol College, Oxford.
Mmd to St. Bartholomew, is a M

~ southern division of the hundred of Orrrow, county of it

Bfm mile (W. by N.) from Walsall,
14 containing

m m! ’ﬂw udlocn
oty of Sorrovs, 6 miks (8V) fron
unty ﬂ” n{'- )

nd
e

irt e unidved of Sisrvonn, cxpenvelaf
Ipswich,




Isle of Evy, county of Cimsmince, 8% miles (8. W.)
from March, containing 514 inhabitants. ' The chapel is
dedicated to St. James. ;

BEOLEY, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of PemsHore, county of WoRcester, 74
miles (E. by 8.) from Bromsgrove, containing 640 inha-

and in the fwhﬁmﬁ
£7. 16. 104,, n patronage of W, g
Theehmtgiisdedicltedtoﬁt.homd. Here
remains of an ancient castle, which belonged succes-
ﬁvdam noble families of Mortimer, Beauchamp,
and i

g’n
:
|

rivu: Stour flows along the southern side of the parish.
Lettice Dykes, in 1589, gave property, now ing
nmb:i:tobw annum, to endow n free school, W
was y subseription, on land given by Edward
Lamb, in 1594, p G
BERGHOLT (WEST), a parish in the Colchestér -
division of the hundred of Luxpex, county of Esssx,
34 miles (N.W.) from Colchester, containing 694 inha-
bitants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of
Colchester, and diocese of London, rated in the king's
books at £ 10, and in the patronage of William Fisher,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists,
BERKELEY, a market town and parish in the
upper division of the hundred of Berkruey, county
of GrovcesTeR, 17 miles (8, W.) from Gloucester, and
114 (W. by N,) from London, comprising the
of Stone, the tythings of Alkington, Hinton, and Ham,
and the hmmlets of Bradstone and Hamfollow, and
containing 3835 inhabitants, This place is supposed
to have been a British town in the reign of Alectus,
who, as the successor of Carsusius, assumed the im-
perial purple in Britain towards the close of the third
century, It was a place of considerable importance in
the time of the Saxons, and is said to bave had a re-
ligious establishment, and probably a castle, prior to
the Conquest, but little of their history is recorded.
Henry 1. visited this place in 1121, where he remained
during Easter; and in the reign of Henry IL, the castle,
which had been erected by Roger de Berkeley, was con-
siderably enlarged by Robert Fitz-Harding, te whom the
king gave the manor (which is divided into seven con-
si e tythings), and who therenpon ussumed the
title of Baron de Berkeley. The castle, which received
various “additions from its successive proprietors, be-
came one of the principal baronial seats in the country,
and was connected with n:;any tmm:nfﬁu:is ;:f mthe
litical interest, the most important of which was
}:’humnn murder of the misguided king, Edward II.,
who was detained here in confinement under the nominal
custody of the earl. During the civil war in the reign
of Charles L, it was garrisoned for the king, b{:t‘--d’tﬁ

The principal remains of the ancient i
keep, o fine specimen of Norman military cture,
ﬂmkdhymmw-mmil-qmw
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are well supplied with water. It was once of greater
extent than it is at present ; the diversion of the turn-
pikeroni‘l from Gloucester toBrimﬂ, which formerly

passed through it, is supposed to have contributed
to its decay. The mdetspﬁndpallyinﬁmhu corn,
malt, and cheese, for which last the neighbourhood is
celebrated : iron-ore has ‘beén found in the vicinity,
and there are appearances of some works having been
formerly carried on. The Berkeley and Gloucester canal,
navigable for vessels of four hundred tons' bmﬂen
passes to the north of the town, and the ﬁverSevern
bounds it on the west. The market is on Thursday,
but it has considerably declined of late years ; the
faih?;hm on May 14th and December 1st. The ‘town,
Wi was a borough in the reign of Edward L, havi
lost its charter of ion, is within the:uﬂsd:f
tion of the county magistrates, who hold petty sessions
here for the district: a mayor is still annually elected,
but the office is merely nominal ; constables and other
officers are inted at the court leet of the lord of
the manor, and a court for the recovery of =mall debts
i8 held every third week.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at
£32, 15. 74., and in the patronage of Col. Berkeley.
The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a spacious struc-
ture, consisting of a nave, aisles, and chancel, of con-
siderable dimensions, partly of later Norman, and partly
in the early style of English, architecture: the tower,

- which is detached, has been rebuilt within the last cen-
' tury. There is a place of worship for Wealeyan Metho-

dists. The free school was founded, in 1696, by Mr,
Samuel Thurner, who endowed it with lands producing
£16. 5. per annum, which has received an augmentation

of land prod £17 per annum, purchased with a
bequest by Mr, John Smith, amounting in the whole to

' #£83.5. pu-mnnm,forwhichthemamteachuthirty-

nine boys, In 1626, John Attwood left by will, for the
benefit of the poor inhabitants of Berkeley, lands of
the value of nearly £20 per annum ; and various emaller
sums have been given and bequeathed at different times
by other individuals, for. a like purpose. Edward Jen-
ver, M.D. and F.R.S,, who introduced the of
vaccination, was born here in 1749, and died of apoplexy
in 1823.

BERKELEY, a parich in the hundred of Fromz,
county of Somerskr, 2§ miles (E.N.E.) from Frome,
550 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
of Wells, and diocese of Bath and

Walh ﬂhdinthekingulbooksltﬁf 9. f,nndin
d' tha Rev. J. M.

- oty xbm o 1 Mﬁg:':min-
The is a rectory, with the perpetual
curacy of Barstow annexed, ‘archdeaconry

vam.mddbmedﬂdﬂddmd&mtry:ﬂedh
‘e books at £14. 12, 6., mdhthm

family. The church is dedicated to St.
-‘Mmtbem There huW*hhﬂ.

mm;w&mﬂo:
ﬂu wa‘ﬁ a school
w
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BERKHAMPSTEAD _ef
(GREAT, or ST.PETER'S), S
a market town and parish in &f
the hundred of Dacorum,
county of HErtromrn, 25§ °
miles (W. by 8.) from Hert- v
ford, and 26 (N.W. by W.) T
from London, on the road to
Holyhead, containing 2310
inhabitants, The Saxonname
of ‘this place, Berghamstede,
is derived from its situation,
either on a hill, or near a fortress, which latter, from
the site of the present town, appears to be the more pro-
bable, It is a town of considerable antiguity, the ki
of Mercia having had a castle here, to which circum

stance its early growth and t im;

portance ma;

be attributed. According to Spelmur, Wihtred, ng
of Kent, assisted at a ccunml held here, in 697. At
the time of the Conguest, William, on his arrival at
this place, was met by Stigand, Archbishop of Canter-
bury, who tendered his submission; but on leaving
Berkhampstead, his march was greatly obstructed by
the opposition of Frederick, abbot of St. Albans, who
caused the roads to be blocked up, by cutting down the
trees, and, on his arrival at St. Albans, exacted from
him an oath that he would ohserve the ancient laws of
the realm, particularly those of Edward the Confessor.
Robert, Earl of Moreton, to whom the Conqueror gave
this town, built a castle here, which was subsequently
taken from his son William, who had rebelled against
Henry I, and by that monarch's order rased to the

Henry IL held his court here for some time,
and conferred many privileges on the town. The castle
was rebuilt in the reign of John, and soon after besieged
by Lewis, Dauphin of France, who had come over to
assist the barons that were in arms i the
king. In the 11th of Edward III,, Berkhampstead sent
two representatives to the great council at Westminster,
James L, who selected this place as a nursery for his
children, granted the inhabitants a charter of incor-
poration ; bm. they were so impoverished during the
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stend, which is part of the duchy of Cornwall, are held
at’ and Michaelmas. The prison is uded as
ment of malefactors previously to their committal to
m-ﬂﬂh-anng, in the archdeaconry of Hun-
w d diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's

# at £20, and in the patronage of the King, as
Duke of Cornwall. The church, dedicated to St. Peter,
cruciform structure, exhibiting some fine
in the several styles of English architecture :
from the intersection, and hi en-
with sculpture, built by Richard Torrington,

in the reign of Henry VIIL: within the church are two
enstern end, one dedieated to St.
to St. Catherine, and some interesting
are places of worship for Bap-
Friends, and Independents. The
was founded in the reign of
th lands belonging to the

g

Oxford, was appointed visitor. The school was originally
endowed for one hundred and forty-four scholars, but,
for the last twenty years, not one boy has received
any ingtruction ; the establishment is at present under
investigation in the court of Chancery. The premises
are gituated on one side of the churchyard, and con-
gist of n school-room and houses for the master and
usher, A charity school, for twenty boys and ten girls,
was founded in 1727, by Mr. Thomas Bourne, who en-
dowed it with £8000: the property now consists of
£0300 in the New South Sea annuities, and there are

£200, for employment and fuel for the poor,
and there are also several other for chari-
table uses, There are slight v ufthen.ncieni

. ;b.'l.
0at ; the entrance was at the south-cast angle, where

p are two wide piers, between which ly was the
e 1 ‘end of the -street is a spring
St. James' Well, to which medi-
gributed. An ancient hospital,
v existed here, but there
Cowper was born here

in the

LE), a
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Wesleyan Methodists. A National school for boys and
girls is now in of erection, and there are three
almshouses, the inmates of which are supported by the
parish.  On an elevated situation near an old manor-
house, a circular tower of brick, one hundred feet in
height, termed the Observatory, has been erected, which
commands an extensive prospect, ,

BERKHAMPSTEAD (ST, MARY), or NORTH-
CHURCH, a parish in the hundred of Dacorum,
county of Herrromp, 1} mile (N. W, by W.) from
h(_imu ?:rkhmpmd. containing 1028 inhabitants. The

ving is a rectory, in the archdeac of Hunting-
don, and diocese of Lincoln, rated inmtg king's books
at £21. 1. 3., and in the patronage of the King, as
Prince of Wales.

BERKSHIRE, an inland county, bounded on the
north by the county of Oxford, and a small part of the
county of Buckingham, from both which it is separated
by the Thames ; on the east by the counties of Buck-
ingham and Surrey; on the south by the county of
Southampton ; and on the west by that of Wilts: it
extends from 51° 19 to 51° 48' (N, Lat.), and from 34}’
(E.) to 1° 43' (W. Lon.), and, ingluding the detached
parts, contains about four hundred and sixty-four
thousand acres, or seven hundred and fifty-six square
miles, The population, in 1821, amounted to 134,700.
This county was anciently called Barocscire, or Berocseire,
softened in process of time into Barkshire and Berkshire,
and probably derived its name from a thick wood,
catled Barroc, which occupied an extended tract between
Lambourn and Wantage, on or near the downs ; though
some deduce its etymol from Berroe, a bare oak
in some part of Windsor Forest, beneath which the
Britons, as their custom was, assembled for devotional
and legislatorial purposes. The Bibroci occupied the
south-eastern extremity, and the Segontiaci dwelt in
that part which borders on Hampshire, but the greater
part was inhabited by the Attrebatii. The Romans in-
cluded it within the district of Britannia Superior, and
subsequently in that of Britannia Prima. During the
Octarchy, it formed a part of the kingdom of the
West Saxons, or Wessex, and, after the reduction of
the Anglo-Saxon kingdom into one monarchy, it be-
longed to the district called West Saxon Luege. Offa,
King of Mercia, after his victory over Cynewulf, King
of the West Saxons, in 775, seized on all that territory
lying between Iknield-street and the Thames. The
Danes having made an irruption into Wessex, in 871,
were repulsed near Englefield by Earl Athelwolf, who
was slain in a subsequent battle between them and the
army under Ethelred; a few days after which, they
were n routed at Ashdown, and compelled to retreat
to , where they passed the winter of 872, Alfred

a decisive victory over them at Eddington, in
8784 but, in 1006, they committed great devastation in_
the county, and defeated the Saxons near the river
Kéfmet. In 1011, Berkshire was under the dominion of
Ethelred I1., ‘and in the year ensuing, Sweyn, King of

Denmark, was at Wallingford. In the "xm

Stephen and the Empress Matilda, the
lingford was one of the strongest fortresses which were
by the empress, and was the place of her
was
wmmh"rws’m war, ‘hn'thmv arrange-



: hnttiie opem::ms Wi ‘was gar-
~and Windsor for the purlitment ;
and e lace continued in the possession of its own
t:tny il the *gluleofthcw Reading, which had
'  seized on by the parlismentarians, was evacunted
by them on the approach, in October 1642, of a detach-
m: troops, the head-quarters of whose
j ‘At this period, the king held
e county, except the neighbourhood of
fortress sustained but one attack during
th! mr.-iﬂﬁ that an unsuccessful one, from Prince
© Rupert. hﬂpﬂlm Reading was retuken by the
parliamentary army ; and in the month of September

i. following.ﬂgﬁhtbntﬂenf Newbury was fought, and
the victory claimed by both parties; a few days after

! ﬂwnainn,ﬁudi

' who also

ng again fell into the hands of the king,

son in castle, near

of the year, Newbury,
a beendhnmﬂedofm fortifications

i undtr Col.-nuya.‘hy whom it was bravely and . sille
‘against repeated attacks of the -

endmgMnrch 25th, 1827, amuuntud to £118,50! ’.ﬁ
the to £114,970, of which £.no,ﬁp7 4
was d to the relief of the poor.

is uot a manufacturing county, buﬂth
are some oottonmnnufaczonu and a large paper-
near Newbury, a paper-mill at Bagnor, and a lange
manufactory for blankets at Greenham mills, near
Thatcham ; the weaving of sheeting, sail-cloth,
nekmg, the acture of floor-cloth, and that of

ribands and galloons, are carricd on at Readi
ing and sail-cloth were formerly extensively b5

fon and Wantage ; silk is manufactured
Waldng to a small extent, and copper bolts
thnnhry,u the Temple mills in the parish of
7 breweries in the
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The principal rivers are the Thames and the Kennet :
the former skirts the county during a course of more
than one hundred miles, and is navigable as high as
Lechlade; the latter flows into Berkshire at Hungerford,
becomes na le at Newbury, where it is joined by the
Lambourn, and falls into the Thames near Reading : the
river Loddon rises near Aldershot, in Hampshire, enters

Berkshire in the of Swallowfield, and runs into
the Thames near Wargrave ; the Ock rises near Uffing-
ton and flows into the Thames at Abingdon ; the Au-
born rises near Inkpen, pursues an easterly course be-
yond Hide-End, then taking a northerly direction, falls
into the Kennet a little below Wasing ; the Lambourn
- rises amongst the hills above the town of that name,
and falls into the Kennet near Shaw, The Wilts and
Berks canal extends from the Thames, at Abingdon, to
the eastern border of the county, in the upper part; and
the Kennet and Avon canal, from the river Kennet, a
little above Newbury, across the lower part of the county
The great road from London to Bath enters at Maiden-

I

3

to London, near the fifty-eighth milestornie : the
from Silchester to London [F:;sed wi:' g
castern part, bearing for Old Windsor,.or Staines; the
Tknield-street enters Berkshire at Streatley, and the
Portway on its north-westerly border from Wiltshire ;
traces of the Old street are also visible between Wntage
and Thatcham. Of the many ancient camps, the most
remarkable are Letcomb Castle, enclosing an area of
twenty-six acres, the intrenchments and ditches eontain-
ing eight acres and a balf; UMington Castle, seven hun-
dred feet in diameter from east to west, and five hun-
dred from north to south, necar which is the rude
figure of a horse, of very ancient execution, formed by
cutting away the turf on the side of the hill, which has
hence acquired the name of White Horse hill, and the
vale helow, that of White Horse vale ; Hurdwell Cas-
tle, in form a ng to a square ; Cwsar's Camp,
on Bagshot heath, five hundred and sixty paces in
length, and two hundred and eighty in width ; Cherbury
camp, near Pusey, three hundred and ten paces across;
and Alfred’s Castle, on the west side of Ashdown park,
one hundred and forty paces in diameter, The only
mineral springs of any note, are those at Cumner and
Sunninghill, the first a mild cathartic, the other a very
weak chalybeate; a chulybeate spring in the
parish of Wokinghum, called Gorrick Well, and some
springs near Windsor, of the quality of tihe Epsom

BERMERSLEY, a township in the parish of Nor-
ToN on the Moors, northern division of the hundred
of Pirguiri, county of Sravrorn, 6§ miles (N.N.E.)
from Newcastle under Lyne, containing 190 nts,

BERMONDSEY, a parish in the eastern division
of the hundred of Brixton, county of Surrey, Ij mile

E
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ment increased so much in wealth and importance, der being laid out in repairs: the school-room, which
that it was found necessary to enlarge the buildings; was erected in 1718, in the road, is a neat brick
and an hospital was erected adjoining it, for the recep- having a statue of the in a niche over
tion of their converts and the education of their chil- the entrance. united charity schools, established in
dren .which;]!;:l pﬂdedimted to Bt.'lhomlm ;::: Martyr, t1’7153, 'wwmm ﬂy hytL ription, and partly
Though an ory, it was exem : y an Wi 00. 16. 4. annum, ariging
tration in the reign of Edward IIL, who B from several donations: the income is about
dn

ues-
it un-
der the superintendence of an E in whom he
could confide, and whom he made prior. It was subse-
quently elevated into an abbey, and retained its gran-
deur and importance till the dissolution, when its re-
venue was £548, 2. 54. o
very extensive, com present churchyard, and
an adjoining area, still King John's Court. Ves-
tiges of the palace and conventuul buildings may still
he traced in the gardens of the houses which have heen
erected on the site : a gateway, which was standing in
1807, has been taken down, in order to form a new
street, Bermondsey owes its origin to the establish-
ment of this , in the vicinity of which, a
gradual accumulation of buildings had formed an ex-
tensive village in the reign of Edward 1II, when a
church was founded by the prior, for the use of the
inhabitants, In this religious house, Catherine of
France, widow of Henry V., lived in retirement, and

* died in 1436 ; and here also, in 1486, Elizabeth, queen

of Edward IV., who was sentenced by the council to
forfeiture of land and goods, ended her life in confine-
ment, The village is situated on the southern bank of
the Thames, and consists principally of two extensive
streets, meeting obliquely near the church, and inter-
sected by many smaller streets; the houses, in general
ancient and irregularly built, are interspersed with se-
veral modern and handsome structures : the streets are

£550 per annum, for which two hundred and

boys, and one hundred and thirty girls, are !
of whom fifty boys and thirty girls are also clothed :
there is another school with a small endowment, and
numerous benefactions have been made for the relief of
the poor, In 1770, a chalybeate spring was discovered
here, and u spa established, which, for many years, was
a celebrated place of entertainment. Israel Mauduit,
an ingenious writer on politics and commerce, was born
here, in 1708,

BERRICK-PRIOR, a liberty in the parish of New-
ingroN, hundred of Ewenmy, county of Oxrorp, 44
l:::ﬁlem (N.N.E.) from Wallingford, containing 152 inha- ¢

itants,

BERRICK-SALOME, a chapelry in the parish of
Cravgrove, hundred of EwerLme, county of Ox-
¥oRrD, 4 miles (N. N, B.) from Wallingford, i
174 inhabitants. The chapel is dedicated to St. Helen.
Here is a school with a small endowment.

BERRIER, a township in the parish of Grevsrock,
Learn ward, county of CumserLaxp, 8 miles (W, by
8.) from Penrith, containing, with the township of Mur-
rah, 128 inhabitants. Mary Jackson, in 1799, left
£230 in reversion, to found and endow a school for
girls, which, having become the subject of a lawsuit,
was confirmed by the court of Chancery, in 1811,
and the school was built by subscription, in 1828, on
ground given by the Hon. Henry Howard, of Corby
Castle, and endowed with £5 per annum, the remain-
der of the property having been expended in the law- 3
suit.

BERRINGTON, a hamlet in the parish of Carp-
riNG-CamppeN, upper division of the hundred of
KyrrsaaTe, county of GroucesTer, contuining 171
inhabitants. :

BERRINGTON, a township in the parish of Evs,
hundred of Wovreay, connty of Herxronrn, 3§ miles
m&) from Leominster. The population is returned

parish.

BERRINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Cox-
povEr, county of Saror, 5§ miles (8.E. by 8.) from
Shrewsbury, containing 65 i ing i
a rectory, in the archdeaconry f
Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's books at
£10. 12, 1., and in the patronage m
The church is dedicated to All The i

T ERBINITON, o hamiet in fhe, parisk
nun,?u_ﬂlvidm.ofzhw-.@_ .
i 2 '(“_!-n.b,
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g""gnnow, a parish in a detached part of the lower
division of the hundred of OswaLpstow, locally in
the lower division of the hundred of Pershore, county
of WonrcesTeR, 6 miles (8, W.) from Upton upon Se-
vern, containing 464 inhabitants. The living is a dis.
charged vicarage, in the iar jurisdiction and pa
of the Dean and Chapter of Worcester, rated
in the king's books at £7. 18. 4., and endowed with
£1200 parlinmentary grant. The church is dedicated
to St h.

BERRY POMEROY, a parish in the hundred
of Hayronr, county of Devox, 1§ mile (E.N.E.) from
Totness, containing 1255 inhabitants. The living is
a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese
of Exeter, rated in the king's books at £18. 19. 7., and
in the patronage of the Duke of Somerset. The church,
dedicated to St. Mary, contains a finely carved wooden
screen and rood-loft.  The navigable river Dart runs

the south-western side of the parish. Here are
the ruins of Berry castle, founded by Ralph de Pomeroy,
soon after the Conquest,

BERRYN-ARBOR, a parish in the hundred of
BraunTon, county of Devox, 2§ miles (E. by 8.) from
Ifracombe, containing 648 inhabitants, The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple, and
diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£34. 15, 10,, and in the of the Bishop of
Exeter and others. The church is dedicated to St
Peter. Bishop Jewell, celebrated for his controversy in

of the Protestant faith, was born here, in 1522.
ERSTED (SOUTH), a parish in the hundred of
Arvowick, rape of Carcnester, county of Sussex, 6
miles (8. E.) from Chichester, containing, with the mar-
ket town of Bognor; 1851 inhabitants, The living is a
, in the iar jurisdiction and patronage of

the Archbishop of Canterbury, rated in the king's books
at £7, 18. 9. The church is dedicated to St. Mary

ene,

ERWICK, a parish in the hundred of Lowng-
sripGe, rape of Pevenxsey, county of Suvssex, 4§
miles (N.E. by N.) from Seaford, containing 172 in-

The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
f Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's
- books at £13. 6. 8., and in the patronage of Jeremiah

il

. This parish is separated from that of
K (ST. JAMES), a parish in the hundred
d Dove, county of Wiurs, 5§ miles

. 297 inhabitants.
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an intrenchment, called Winkelbury Camp, supposed

to have been coustructed by the Romans,
BERWICK (ST. LEONARD), a parish in the

hundred of DunworTa, county of Wrvrrs,

from Hindon, containing 44 inhabitants.

a rectory, with the perpetual

king's books at £8. 6. 8., and i patronage
the Rev. Charles Henry Grove, el -

BERWICK upon TWEED, -
a port, borough, and mar- 4N 6
ket town, situated between
the boundary line of the
northern of the county
of Durham, and that of Scot- N
land, 64 miles (N. by w.) \{#
from Newcastle upon Tyne,
and 334 (N. by W.) from \|f
London, containing 8723 in- W\
habitants, The name, which
Leland supposes to havebeen
originally dberwick, from the
British terms Aber, the mouth of a river, and wic, a town,
is, by Camden and other antiquaries, considered to imply
ouly a hamlet annexed to a place of greater importance,
such being usually, in ancient records, styled
berewics ; and in this sense of the term Berwick is sup-
posed to have obtained its name from having been the

nge of the priory of Coldingham, ten miles distant.
It is said to have been a place of considerable import-
ance as a barrier town, in the reign of Osbert, King of
Northumbria, and, according to Boéthins, was the place
where the Danes, under the conduct of Hubba, landed,
on their invasion of England, in the year 867, The town
having come into the possession of the Saxons, they,
on the defeat of their king, abandoned it, when, with
that part of the kingdom of Northumberland called Ber-
nicia, it was ceded, or sold, by Eadulf-Cud#l, Earl of
Northumberland, to Malcolm IL., King of Scatland, in
1020. The earliest authentic notice of Berwick occurs
in the reign of Henry L; and in that of Henry IL, it
was, with four other towns, given up to that monarch
by William the Lion, in 1176, as a pledge for the per-
formance of the treaty of Falaise, by which, in order to
obtain his release from captivity, after the battle of Aln-
wick, in 1174, he had engaged to do homage to the En-
, a8 lord paramount, for all his Scottish
Richard 1., to obtain a supply of money
for his expedition to the Holy Land, sold the vassalage
of Scotland for ten thousand marks, and restored this
and the other towns to William, content with
homage olly for the territories which that
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year, he lished a court of Exch for the re-
ceipt of the revenue of the kingdom of S d.  Wal-

lace having laid siege to the town, took possession
of it, but was unsuccessful in his attempt on the cas-
tle, whichwas relieved by the arrival of a numerous

Seutland assembled his u-myhmrapmdly and made
several inroads into the enemy's . Robert
Bruce obtained possession of it in 1318, and having
raised thewalls, and strengthened themwith towers, kept
it, notwithstanding several attacks from Edward 11. and
Edward IIL, until it surrendered to the latter, after the
celebrated battle of Hallidown Hill, in this neighbour-
hood, which took place on the 19th of July, 1333, As
a frontier town it was invariably the first object of at-
tack, on the renewal of hostilities between the two
Idngdmm, and, after repeated surrenders and sieges, it
was ceded to Edward IV., from whom and his succes-
sors it received several charters and extensive privileges.
After having been exposed, during the subsequent reigns,
to the continued aggressions of the Scots and the En-
glish, it was made a free town, independent of bhoth
kingdoms, by treaty between Edward V1., King of En-
_gland, and Mary, Queen of Scots, signed at Greenwich,
" on the part of the former, on the 10th of May, and, on
the part of the latter, at Norham, in the vicinity of this
town, on the 10th of June, 1551, It was strongly for-
tified in the reign of Elizabeth, who placed a garrison
in it, which was kept up till the accessipn of James to
the English throne, when its importafice as a frontier
town ceased. During the eivil war in the reign of
Charles 1. it was garrisoned by the parlinment,

The town is pleasantly situated on the northern
bank, and near the mouth, of the river Tweed : the ap-
proach from the English side is over a handsome stone
bridge of fifteen arches, connecting it with Tweedmouth
on the south. The streets, with the exception of the
High stre¢t and Hidehill, are narrow, but well paved,
and lighted with gas, and the houses are in general well
built : some of the inhabitants are supplied with water
brought into their houses by pipes, from a spring at the
distance of a mile and a half; the others are supplied
from public cisterns placed in situations convenient for
the purpose. The new fortifications, which are exceed-
y strong, have displaced those of more ancient date,
whi there remain only the ruins of the fortress at

the south-west e of the old town walls, and those
near the castle e ramparts afford an agreeable pro-
menade, much by the inhabitants. The bar-

ucklforthegm'rim on the north-east side of the

town, form a small quadrangle, neatly built of stone ; the

establishment consists of a govunar, lieutmmt-govar-

nor, town-major, town ﬁm

mdafewinva!idgmen the dinslmcapebleof
- seven hundred men. . Connected with
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belonging to the port, according to the return made to

g

parliament in 1828, was fifty- four a
burden : the harbour is t, from the bar at
entrance, it is inaccessible to ahipa of large burden,
The pier, which has been recently constructed, extends
nearly half a mile in length ; a lighthouse has been
erected on it, to guard mariners against the rocks
and shallows by which the navigation is endangered.
About eight hundred men are employed in the fish-
ery: the salmon and trout, which are caught in abun-
dance, are packed in boxes stratified with ice, by which
they arc conveyed fresh to the London and other mar-
kets : a great quantity of lobsters and herrings is also
found kere. The annual rental of the fisheries has been
estimated at £10,000, and the supply of eggs, which
are sent from this place for the use of sugar refiners,
has been returned as exceeding the value of £ 13,000
per anmum, but this branch of the trade has materially
diminished. The principal articles of manufacture, ex-
clusively of such as are connected with the shipping,
are damask, diaper, sacking, sail-cloth, cotton, hosiery,
carpets, hats, boots, and shoes. The market, which is
abundantly supplied with grain, is on Saturday; and
there is a fair, for black cattle and horses, on the Friday
in Trinity weck ; statute fairs are also held on the se-
cond Wednesday in May, the Wednesday before Angust
26th, and the first Wednesday in November,

The government, by charter of incorporation granted
in the reign of James L., is vested in a mayor, recorder,
four bailiffs, and an indefinite number of burgesses,
assisted by a town clerk, coroner, four serjeants at
mace, and subordinate officers. The mayor, who, with
the bailiffs, is elected annually at Michaelmas, the re-
corder, and such of the burgesses as have filled the office
of mayor, are justices of the peace by virtue of their
office : the freedom of the horough is inherited by birth,
acquired by servitude, or obtained by gift. The corpo-
ration hold courts of quarter session and gaol delivery
for the borough, and a court of pleas every alternate
Tuesday, for the recovery of debts to any amount. A
court leet is held under the charter, at which a high
constable and six petty constables are appointed. The
town hall is a spacious, handsome building, with a por-
tico of four massive circular columus of theTuscan order:
a portion of the lower part, called the Exchange, is ap-
propriated to the use of the market ; the first story
contains two spacious halls, and other apartments in
which the courts are held, and the public business of the

uoniatnnncted and the upper part is used as

ninety tons"

55




built

quently wi a ." There are two places of
worship for those connected with the Scottish Kirk,
d one each for Particular sts, Burghers, Anti-
burghers, the Scottish relief, and Wesleyan Methodists.
The free grammar school, founded originally by the cor-
poration, and endowed, in the middle of the seventeenth
century, by Col. Strother, with the estate of Coldmarten,
is under the management of the corporation, who ap-
point the master ; he has a salary of £80 per annum, and
a house and garden, and reccives ten shillings per quar-
ter for every scholar who is not the son of a freeman.
A school for the instruction of the sons of b in
English, Latin, and the mathematics, was founded and
endowed by the corporation in 1798; to each department
there is a separate master, each of whom, in addition to
his salary, has a house and en. The Blue-coat
charity school, in which forty-two boys are clothed
and educated, was founded by Captain James Bolton,
in 1725, and endowed with £ 800, since augmented by
various benefactions ; the master has a salary of £50 per
annum, The school of industry for girls, established in
1810, is supported by the ladies of Berwick, and affords
instruction to one hundred and six girls. There is also
a school in connexion with the workhouse, in which
about one hundred children are educated ; the master
has a salary of £60 per annum, which is paid out of
the poor's rate. A pauper lunatic asylum was erected
in 1813; and there is a di , established in 1814,
under the patronage of the Bishop of Durham, which
affords relief to the poor within twelve miles of the
town, and is attended by four physicians, three surgeons,
and a ng apothecary. There are some trifling
remaing of the castle, and a tower near it, a
square fort in Magdalene fields, and some intrenchments
on Hallidown Hill. A Benedictine nunnery is stated to
have been founded by David, King of Scotland, who
died in 1153; here were also monasteries of Black, Grey,
White, and Trinitarian friars, and three or four hospi-

disappeared.
a township in the parish of
LAND, western division of Castre ward, county
D, miles (N.N.W.) from New-

of the parish

of PiMuiLL,
by k.) from wml

river and Lorepripge, lathe of
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Abingdon, ; .
adtlc_hargedrecgin the of Berks,
and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's books
at £4, 17. 34, and in the of W. J, Lenthall,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Lawrence, The
parishioners are entitled to participate in the
of the school at Appleton, endowed by Sir R.
The old manor-house, formerly the seat of Lenthall,
Speaker of the House of Commons in the Long Parlia-
ment, was pulled down about forty years ago. Crom-
well, who was a frequent visitor here, usually concealed
i in aroom to which the only access was by a
chair let down and drawn up with pullies.

BESSINGBY, a parish in the wapentake of
Dickenineg, East riding of the county of Yonk, 2}
miles (8. W.) from Bridlington, containing 83 inhabit-
ants,. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of York, endowed with £1400
royul bounty, and in the patronage of H. Hudson, Esq,
The church is dedicated to St. Magnus.

BESSINGHAM, a parish in the northern division
of the hundred of Enrincuam, county of Nomrorx,
5% miles (8.W.) from Cromer, containing 149 inha-
bitants. The living is a di rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £4. 6. 8,, and in the
patronage of Viscount Anson. The church is dedicated
to St, Mary.

BESTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of Sunop-
aam, county of Norvork, 14 mile (E. by 8.) from
Attleburgh, containing 519 inhabitants, The living is
u discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£5. 6. 104., and in the patronage of the Earl of Win-
terton. The church is dedicated to All Saints,

BESTHORPE, a in the parish of Souru
ScanrLe, northern division of the wapentake of Newarx,
county of NorriNcaam, 8 miles (N.N.E.) from Newark,
containing 271 inhabitants, There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. A school is endowed with
£8, 12, per annum,

BESWICK, a chapelry in the parish of Kinn-
wick, Bainton-Beacon division of the wapentake of
Hanrminy, East ridipg of the county of Yomk, 64
miles (N. by W.) from Beverley, containing 192 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of the East riding, and diocese of York, en-
dowed with £600 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
J. Denison, Esq.

BETCHWORTH, a parish in the first division of
the hundred of Reigarte, county of Surney, 3§ miles
(W. by 8.) from Reigate, containing 909 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Surrey, and diocese of Winchester, rated in the
king's books at £7. 8. 11}., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Dean and Canons of Windsor, The church
is dedicated to St. Michael, A school is endowed with

a?:pu mwﬁ.wwww
BETHERSDEN, a parish in the hundred of Cuant
Scray, county of Kenr,

E
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year, he established a court of Exchequer for the re-
ceipt of the revenue of the kingdom of Scotland. Wal-
lace having laid siege to the town, took possession
of it, but was unsuccessful in his attempt on the cas-
tle, whlch was relieved by the arrival of a mumerous
army. Edward IL, in prosecuting the war against
Secotland, assembled his army here repeatedly, and made
several inroads into the enemy’s territory. Robert
Bruce obtained possession of it in 1318, and having
raised thewalls, and strengthened themwith towers,kept
it, notwithstanding several attacks from Edward 1L and
Edward 111, until it surrendered to the latter, after the
celebrated battle of Hallidown Hill, in this neighbour-
hood, which took place on the 19th of July, 1333. As
a frontier town it was invariably the first object of at-
tack, on the renewal of hostilities between the two
kingdoms, and, after repeated surrenders and sieges, it
was ceded to Edward IV., from whom and his succes-
sors it received several charters and extensive privileges.
After having been exposed during the subsequent reigns,
to the continued aggressions of the Scots and the En-
glish, it was made a free town, independent of both
kingdoms, by treaty between Edward V1., King of En-
gland, and Mary, Queen of Scots, signed at Greenwich,
on the part of the former, on the 10th of May, and, on
the part of the latter, at Norham, in the vicinity of this
town, on the 10th of June, 1551, It was strongly for-
tified in the reign of Elizabeth, who placed a garrison
in it, which was kept up till the accession of James to
the English throne, when its importance as a frontier
town ceased. During the civil war in the reign of
Charles 1. it was garrisoned by the parliament.

The town is pleasantly situated on the morthern
hank, and near the mouth, of the river Tweed : the ap-
proach from the English side is over a handsome stone
bridge of fifteen arches, connecting it with Tweedmouth
on the south. The streets, with the exception of the
High street and Hidehill, are narrow, but well paved,
and lighted with gas, and the houses are in general well
built : some of the inhabitants are supplied with water
brought into their houses by pipes, from a spring at the
distance of a mile and a half; the others are supplied
from public cisterns placed in situations convenient for
the purpose. The new fortifications, which are exceed-
ingly strong, have displaced those of more ancient date,
of which there remain only the ruins of the fortress at
the south-west angle of the old town walls, and those
near the castle. The ramparts afford an agreeable pro-
menade, much frequented by the inhabitants. The bar-
racks for the garrison, on the north-east side of the
town, form a small quadrangle, neatly built of stone ; the
establishment coneists of a governor, licutenant-gover-
nor, town-major, town-adjutant, surgeon, master gunner,
and a few invalid gunners : the buildings are capable of
accommodating seven hundred men., Connected with
the barracks are the guard-house, an hospital, and an
ordnance house. A public library was established in
1812. The theatre, a small neat building, is opened
apnually in summer,  The assembly-rooms are opened
on public occasions ; and subscription balls teke place
regularly during the ‘winter.

The trade of the port' is somewhat eanwe coast-
wise ;- the exports ave corn, wool, salmon, herrings,
pork, and eggs; the imports are timber, deals, staves,
irom, hemp, tnllmv, and blubber. Tbe mmber of vessels
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belonging to the port, according to the return made to
parliament in 1828, was fifty-four, averaging ninety tons”
burden : the harbour is good, but, from the bar at the
entrance, it is inaccessible to ships of large burden.
The pier, which has been recently constructed, extends
nearly half a mile in length; a lighthouse has been
erected on it, to guard mariners against the rocks
and shallows by which the navigation is endangered.
About eight hundred men are employed in the fish-
ery: the salmon and trout, which are caught in abun-
dance, are packed in boxes stratified with ice, by which
they are conveyed fresh to the London and other mar-
kets : a great quantity of lobsters and herrings is also
found here. The annual rental of the fisheries has been
estimated at £10,000, and the supply of eggs, which
are sent from this place for the use of sugar refiners,
has been returned as exceeding the value of £ 13,000
per annum, but this branch of the trade has materially
diminished. The principal articles of manufacture, ex-
clusively of such as are conmected with the shipping,
are damask, diaper, sacking, sail-cloth, cotton, hosiery,
carpets, hats, boots, and shoes. The market, which is
abundantly supplied with grain, is on Saturday; and
there is a fair, for black cattle and horses, on the Friday
in Trinity week ; statute fairs are also held on the se-
cond Wednesday in May, the Wednesday before August
26th, and the first Wednesday in November. )
The government, by charter of incorporation granted
in the reign of James L, is vested in a mayor, recorder,
four bailiffs, and an indefinite number of burgesses,
assisted by a town clerk, coroner, four serjeants at
mace, and subordinate officers. The mayor, who, with
the bailiffs, is elected annually at Michaelmas, the re-
corder, and such of the burgesses as have filled the office
of mayor, are justices of the peace by virtue of their
office : the freedom of the horough is inherited by birth,
acquired by servitude, or obtained by gift. The corpo-
ration hold courts of quarter session and gaol delivery
for the borough, and a court of pleas every alternate
Tuesday, for the recovery of debts to any amount. A
court leet is held under the charter, at which a high
constable and six petty constables are appointed. The
town hall is a spacious, handsome building, with a por-
tico of four massive circular columns of the Tuscan order:
a portion of the lower part, called the Exchange, is ap-
propriated to the use of the market; the first story
contains two spacious halls, and other apartments in
which the courts are held, and the public business of the
corporation is transacted ; and the upper part is used as
a gaol the whole forms a stately plle of fine hewn stongf
and is surmounted with a lofty spire containing a peyl
of eight bells, Which on the Subbath day summon the
inhabitants to the parish church, bﬂ!‘ﬁ mcénvmently
situated in the centre of the High- s by whi¢h the
thoroughfare is greatly obstructed. Berwick was one
of the four Scottish burghs which anciently sent repre-
sentatives to the court of the four burghs in Scotland ;
on being annexed to the kingdom of England, its pre,
scriptive usages were confirmed by royal charter, It
first sent representatives to the English parliament in
the reign of Henry VIIL, since which time it has con-
tinued to return two members : the right of ‘election’ls
vested in the burgesses at large, in numbet sbous e
thousand ; -the- muyér and lmhmsmthe‘ ,
ﬁw E T T
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. The living is a vicarage, within the jurisdiction of
the Consistorial Court of Durham, rated in the king's
hooks at £20, endowed with £1000 private benefaction,
and £1500 parliamentary grant, und in the patronage
of the Dean and Chapter of Durbam. The church, de-
dicated to the Holy Trinity, is a handsome structure
in the decorated style of English architecture; it was
built during the usurpation of Cromwell, and is conse-
quently without e steeple.  There are two places of
worship for those connected with the Scottish Kirk,
and one each for Particular Baptists, Burghers, Anti-
burghers, the Scottish relief, and Wesleyan Methodists.
The free grammar school, founded originally by the cor-
poration, and endowed, in the middle of the seventeenth
century, by Col. Strother, with the estate of Coldmarten,
is under the management of the corporation, who ap-
point the master ; he has a salary of £80 per annum, and
a house and garden, and receives ten shillings per quar-
ter for every scholar who is not the son of a freeman,
A school for the instruction of the sons of burgesses in
English, Lutin, and the mathematics, was founded and
endowed by the corporation in 1798; to each department
there is a separate master, each of whom, in addition to
hig salary, has a house and garden. The Blue-coat
charity school, in which forty-two boys are clothed
and educated, was founded by Captain James Bolton,
in 1725, and endowed with £ 800, since augmented by
various benefactions ; the master has a salary of £50 per
annum. The school of industry for girls, established in
1819, is supported by the ladies of Berwick, and afords
instruction to one hundred and six girls. There is also
a school in connexion with the workhouse, in which
about one hundred children are educated ; the master
has a salary of £60 per annum, which is paid out of
the poor's rate. A pauper lunatic asylum was erected
in 1813; and there is a dispensary, established in 1814,
under the patronage of the Bishop of Durham, which
affords relief to the poor within twelve miles of the
town, and is attended by four physicians, three surgeons,
and a dispensing apothecary, There are some trifling
remains of the castle, and a pentagonal tower near it, a
square fort in Magdalene fields, and some intrenchments
on Hallidown Hill. A Benedictine nunnery is stated to
have been founded by David, King of Scotland, who
died in 1153; here were also monasteries of Black, Grey,
White, and Trinitarian friars, and three or four hospi-
tals, but every vestige of them has long disappeared.

BERWICK-HILL, a township in the parish of
PonTELAND, Western division of CasTLe ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 9} miles (N.N.W.) from New-
testle upop Tyne, containing 111 inhabitants.

BESFORIY:a township in that part of the parish
of Byawnury which is in the hundred of Pimuini,
eounty. of SavLop, 34 miles (8. E. by E.) from Wem,
BOHMM%MQ inhabitants.

" BESFORD, s -parish in the upper division of the
wundred ‘of PERsHORE, county of WoncesTER, 3 miles
W. by 8.), from Pershore, containing 1564 inhabitants.
#he living in a ‘perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage
of St. Andrew's, Pershore, in the archdeaconry and dio-

8 of Worvester, rated in the king’s books at £3. The
# dedicated to St. Andrew. The navigable river
long the border of the parish.

Howiro? s LEIGH, a parish in the hundred of
HONNER, dounty of Berks, 5 miles (N.W.) from
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Abingdon, containing 130 inbabitants, The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Berks,
and diocese of Salisbury, rated in the king's bhooks
at £4. 17, 3%, and in the patronage of W. J. Lenthall,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Lawrence. The
parishioners are entitled to participate in the advantages
of the school at Appleton, endowed by Sir R. Fettiplace.
The old manor-house, formerly the seat of Lenthall,
Speaker of the House of Commons in the Long Parlia-
ment, was pulled down about forty years ago. Crom-
well, who was a frequent visitor here, usually concealed
himself in a room to which the only access was by a
chair let down and drawn up with pullies,

BESSINGBY, a parish in the wapentake of
Dickering, Kast riding of the county of York, 2}
miles (8. W.) from Bridlington, containing 83 inhabit-
ants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
desconry and diocese of York, endowed with £1400
royal bounty, and in the patronage of H. Hudson, Esg.
The church is dedicated to St. Magnus.

BESSINGHAM, a parish in the northern division
of the hundred of Erringuam, county of NoRFOLK,
5% miles (8.W.) from Cromer, containing 149 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdcaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £4. 6. 8, and in the
patronage of Viscount Anson. The church is dedicated
to St. Mary.

BESTHORPE, a parish in the hundred of Surop-
gaM, county of Norrouk, 1% mile (E. by 8.) from
Attleburgh, containing 519 inhabitants, The living is
& discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's bouks at
£5. 6. 104, and in the patronage of the Karl of Win-
terton. The church is dedicated to All Saints.

BESTHORPE, a chapelry in the parish of Soutu
SCARLE, northern division of the wapentake of NEWARK,
county of NoTTiNguaM, 8 miles (N.N.E.) fron Newark,
containing 271 inhabitants. There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. A school is endowed with
£8, 1¢. per annum,

BESWICK, a chapelry in the parish of KiLn-
wick, Bainton-Beacon division of the wapentake of
Hartaiun, East ridipg of the county of York, 64
miles (N. by w.) from Beverley, containing 192 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry of the East riding, and diocese of York, en-
dowed with £600 royal bounty, and in the patronage of
J. Denison, Esq.

BETCHWORTH, a parish in the first division of
the hundred of Reicate, county of SURREY, 3% miles
(W. by 8.) from Reigate, containing 909 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Surrcy, and diocese of Winchester, rated in the
king's books at £7. 8. 114., endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the pagon-
age of the Dean and Canons of Windsor. The chirch
is dedicated to St. Michael. A school is endowed with
£20 per annum, and is further supported by subscrip-
tion.

BETHERSDEN, a parish in the hundred of Cuaanrr
and Lonemripee, lathe of Scray, county of KenT,
6 miles (W.8,w.) from Ashford, containing 1001 inha-
bitants, The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the king's book:
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at £12, endowed with £200 parliamentary grant, and
in the patronage of the Archbishop of Canterbury.
The church is dedicated to St. Beatrice. There is a
place of worship for Particular Baptists. A fair §s held
here on the lstgof July. A considerable quantity of a
species of grey marble, used for columns wud the in-
ternal ornaments of various neighbouring churches, is
obtained in the northern part of the parish. The inha-
bitants are entitled to send six children to the free
school at Smarden.

BETHNAL-GREEN, a parish in the Tower division
of the hundred of OssuLsToNE, county of MiDDLESEX,
2% miles (N.E. by E.) from St Paul's, containing 45,676
inhabitants, This very extcnsive parish, which was
severed by act of parliament, in 1743, from the parish
of Stepney, to which it was formerly a hamlet, is
divided into four districts, called Church division,
Green division, Hackney-road division, and Town divi-
sion, It is supposed to have derived its name from
Bathon Hall, the residence of a family of that name,
who had considerable possessions here in the reign of
Edward I, and from an extensive green, to the east of
which is the site of an episcopal palace, called Bishop's
Hall, which is said to have been the residence of
Bonner, Bishop of London. The popular legendary bal-
lad of the Blind Beggar of Bethnal Green, the hero of
which is said to have been Henry de Montfort, son of
the Karl of Leicester, has reference to an ancient cas-
tellated mansion in this parish, built in the reign of
Elizabeth, by John Kirby, a citizen of London, and now
converted into a private lunatic asylum, The houses in
general are meanly built of brick, and consist of large
ranges of dwellings, inhabited chiefly by journeymen
silk-weavers, who work at home for the master weavers
in Spitalfields, in cach of which two or three families
live, end exercise their sedentary occupation. ‘The parish
is watched, and lighted with gas; the streets are par-
tially paved, and the inhabitants are supplied with water
by the East London Company's works. There is a very
extensive cotton-factory, besides a large manufactory
for water-proof hose, made of flax, without seam, and
of any length and diameter, chiefly for the use of
brewers and for firemen. A great guantity of land
in the parish is in the occupation of market-gardeners,
who raise fruit and vegetables for the London mar-
ket; and there are extensive beds of clay, which is
much used for the making of bricks. The fair formerly
- held here has been suppressed, in consequence of the
riotous proceedings which usually took place during
its continuance. The Regent’s canal passes through
the parish. This district is within the limits of the
New Pulice act, and under the jurisdiction of a court of
requests for the Tower Hamlets, for the recovery of
debts under 40s.

The living is a rectory, in the peculiar juriediction
of the Commissary of London, concurrently with the
Consistorial Court of the Bishop, and in the patronage
of the Principal and Fellows of Brasenose Cﬂ%:ge, Ox-
ford. The church, dedicated to St, Matthew, and
erected in 1746, is a neat brick building, ornamented
with stone, St. John's church was built 'in 1828, by
- grant from the parliamentary commissioners, ot an ex-
pense of £17,688, 18.; it is a handsome ‘edifice of
stone, in the Grecian style of architecture, with a tower,
and is capable of accommodsting two thousand per-
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sons ; one thousand two hundred of the sittings are
free. There are places of worship for Baptists, Inde-
pendents, and Methodists. An episcopal chapel was
erected, in 1814, by the Society for Promoting Chris-
tianity among the Jews, attached to which are two
schools, wherein fifty boys and nearly sixty girls are
maintained and instructed. St. Matthew's school,
founded in 1771, by the inhabitants, for clothing and
instructing forty-five boys and forty-five girls, and a
National school for one thousand children, are sup-
ported by subscription. In 1722, Mr, Thomas Par-
miter left an estate in Suffolk, now producing £25 per
annum, for the erection and endowment of a free school
and almshouse in this parish; for the promotion of
which purpose, Mrs. Elizabeth Carter gave the ground
rent-free for six hundred years, and £10 per annum:
Mr. William Lee also gave £10 per annum towards the
maintenance of the school ; and Mr. Edward Mayhew
£5 towards the clothing of the children. The income,
under the management of trustees, has greatly im-
proved ; there are fifty hoys in the school ; the master
has a salary of £50, and the almspcople an allowance
of £5 per annum and a supply of coul. The alms-
houses founded, in 1711, by Captain Fisher, and those
belonging to the rompanies of Drapers and Dyers, are
situated in this parish. Trinity Hospital, at Mile-End,
was erected in 1695, on land, in this parish, given by
Captain Henry Mudd, an elder brother of the Trinity
House, and endowed, in 1701, by Captain Robert Sandes,
for twenty-eight masters of ships, or their widows, who
bave each a pecuniary allowance, apartments, and other
advantages. The Roman road from the western coun-
ties of England to the ferry over the river Lea at Old
Ford, passes through the northern part of the parish.
Sir Richard Gresham, father of Sir Thomas Gresham,
who built the Royal Exchange; Sir Thomas Grey,
Knt.; and Sir Balthazer Gerbier, a celebrated painter
and architect, who designed the triumphal arch for the
entrance of Charles I1. into London, on his restoration;
were residents at this place. Ainsworth, the celebrated
compiler of the Latin Dictionary, kept an academy here
for some years, and the noted Caslon, who established
‘the celebrated type-foundry in Chiswell-street, lived
here in retirement till his decease in 1766.

BETLEY, a parish (formerly a market town) in the
northern division of the hundred of PirEHILL, county
of Starrorp, 7} miles (W.by N.) from Newrastle
under Line, containing 932 inhabitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Stafford,
and diocese of Lichficld and Coventry, endowed with
£ 600 private benefaction, und £600 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of George Tollet, Esq. The charch,
dedicated to St. Margaret, is an ancient structure; with
a tower, supposed to have been erected in 1713, as that
date appears on the vane : the nave is separated from
the gisles by pillars and plain pointed arches -of wood ;
several handsome monuments adorn the walls of the
chancel, which is of modern coustruction. There is 2
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The willage
is remarkably cheerful and pleasunt, and containg seve:
ral respectable houses; in the neighbourhood are -ex.
tensive gardens, from which the town of Newcastle i
supplied with vegetables, for the cultivation of which
the ol is. particularly adapted.  Courts leet and hifon
are held aunually ; and a fair for cattle takes plwwou
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the 313t of July. ~Here is.a charity school with a small
endowment. : ‘ v

BETTERTON, a tything in the parish of Lock-
inee, hundred of Wanraek, county of Bxrxs, 24
miles (E.8. E.) from Wantage. The population is re-
turned with the parish,

BETTESHANGER, a parish in the hundred of
Easrry, lathe of 8r, AvgusTine, county of Kent, 4
miles (8.5. W.) from Sandwich, containing 21 inhabit-
ants. The living is & discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Canterbury, rated in the
king's books at £6. 4. 4, and in the patronage of
F. E. Morrice, Esq. The church is dedicated to St.

Mary.

BETTISCOMBE, a parigh in the liberty of Framp-
Tow, Bridport division of the county of Dorser, 6
miles (W. by 8.) from Beaminster, containing 62 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
of Dorsct, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's
books at £8. 2. 3}., and in the patronage of F. J.
Brovme, Esq.

BETTUS, & parish in the hundred of PursLow,
county of Savor, 6 miles (N. W.) from Knighton,
containing 341 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of
Hereford, endowed with £600 royal bounty, and £200
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Vicar
of Clun. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

BETTWS, a parish in the upper division of the
hundred of WENTLLOOG, county of Mowmoutn, 23
miles (N. W. by W.) from Newport, containing 76 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpetunl curacy, annexed to
the vicarage of St. Woollos, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Llandaff. The church is dedicated to St.
David. ” ‘

BETTWS-NEWYDD, a parish in the lower divi-
sion of the hundred of RaeLAND, county of Mon-
MoUTH, 4 miles (N. by E.) from Usk, containing 84 in-
habitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed
to the vicarage of Llanarth, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Llandaff, endowed with £200 royal bounty.

BEVERCOATES, a parish in the South-clay divi-
sion of the wapentake of BassETLAW, county of Not-
TINGHAM, 2% miles (W.N.W.) from Tuxford, containing
48 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, united to that
of West Markham, in the archdeaconry of Nottingham,
and diocese of York. The church, now desecrated, was
dedicated to St. Giles.

;g g BEVERLEY, a borough,
market town, and the head
of a liberty, having sepa-
A4 rate jurisdiction, in the East
riding of the county of
York, 9 miles (N.E.) from
\ . Kingston upon Hall, 29
“ ' (R.8.E.) from York, and 183
(N.) from London, contain-
' ing 6728 inbabitants. This
place, from the woods with
which it was formerly co-

3 " veredl, was ‘called Deirwalde,
forest of ‘the Deiri, the ancient inhabitants
f the eountry. By the Saxons, probably
et 'of bénvers with which the river Hull
wl it was ‘called Beverlega, from

..
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which its present name is deduced, . About the year 700
Johp, Archbishop of York, partly refounded the chupch
dedicated to St. John the Evangelist, and establishes
an oratory, in honour of St. Martin. These he subnse
quently converted into a monastery, in which, afte
having filled the archiepiscopal see of York for thirty-
three years, with a reputation for extreme sanctity, he
spent the remainder of his life in retirement andgzvo-
tion; and dying in 721, was canonized by the title of St.
John of Beverley. In the year 887, this monastery wase
destroyed by the Danes, and, after remaining for three
Years in a state of desolation, was partly restored by the
monks. In the early part of the tenth century, Athel-
stan, marching against the coufederated Britons, Scots,
and Danes, caused the standard of St. John of Beverley
to be carried before his army, and having returned vic-
torious, bestowed many privileges upon the town and
monastery. He founded a college for Secular canons,
which, at the dissolution, had an establishment consist.
ing of a provost, eight prebendaries, a chancellor, pre.
centor, seven rectors, and nine vicars choral, and &
revenue of £597. 19. 6.; and he conferred on the churck
the privilege of sanctuary, the limits of which, extending
for a mile around the town, were marked out by fow
crosses, erected at the four principal entrances. Frow
this time the town began to increase rapidly in popu.
lation and importance. About the year 1060, Kinsius
the twenty-third archbishop of York, built a hall, nearly
rebuilt the church, to which he added a tower, and con-
tributed greatly to its internal decoration. . The memo-
ry of St. John of Beverley was held in such veneration,
that William the Conqueror having advanced within
seven miles of the town, gave strict orders to his army
that they should not damage the church; the day of his
death was appointed to be kept holy, and the festival of
his translation, October 25th, was, in 1416, ordered tc
be annually celebrated, in commemoration of the battle
of Agincourt, which was superstitiously thought to have
been gained through his intercession, At the commence-
ment of the parliamentary war, the king fixed his head-
quarters at Beverley, and attempted to gain possession
of Kingston upon Hull, which was then defended by
Sir John Hotham, who, having subsequently madec
overtures to the king, and entered into a negociation
for surrendering the town, fled from Hull, upon the
discovery of his intention, and was made prisoner at
Beverley, which had fallen into the hands of the par-
liamentarians.

The town is situated at the foot of the Wolds, about
a mile from the river Hull, and consists of several spa-
cious streets, in which are many handsome well-built
houses : the approach from the Driffield road is re-
markably fine, having, particularly on the north-east
side, many elegant buildings, and terminating in an an-
cient gateway, which leads into the town. The streets
are well paved, and the inhabitents are amply supplied
with water: the air is salubrious, and the environs
afford agreeable walks. The races are held annually ir
June, on Hurn meadow, about a mile distant, on whick
a commodious stand has been erected. The theatre wa
built in 1805, assemblies are held periodically in a suits
of rooms for that purpose. The trade is in coal, corn
oatmeal, malt and tanned leather, and has been greath
extended by means of & canal, called Beverley: Beck
constructed. nnder an act of parliament, in 1727, am
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conpecting the town with the river Hull: a considerable
quantity of bone lace is also made.  The market is on
Saturday : the market-place occupies an area of four
acres, in the centre of which is a stately cross - -sup-
ported on cight pillars, each of one entire stone. “Fairs
are held on the Thursday before Old Valentine's day,
Holy Thursday, July 5th, the Wednesday before Sep-
tember 25th, and November 6th, chiefly for horses,
horned cattle, and sheep, and on every alternate Wednes-
day there is a great market for sheep and horned cattle,
The government of the bo- Q

rough, by charter of Queen
Elizabeth, is vested in a
mayor, recorder, twelve al-
dermen, and thirteen bur-
gesses, assisted by a town-
clerk and subordinate offi-
cers: the mayor and bur-
gesses are elected annually,
and the aldermen are cho-
sen by a8 majority of their
own body, as vacancies
oceur. The freedom of the
borough is inherited by the sons of freemen, if born
within the liberty, acquired by scrvitude, or obtained
by purchase: among the privileges which it conveys
are, exemption from toll and custom in every town
or port in England, and the right of depasturing
twelve or thirteen head of cattle, at a trifling cost,
on four large pastures, containing about one thousand
acres. The corporation have the power of trying for
capital offences, but do not exercise it; they hold
courts of session for the borough and hberty which
* latter comprises the townships of Molscroft, Stockhill
- with Sandholme, Thearne, Tickton with Hull-Bridge,
© Weel, and. Woodmansey with Beverley - Park, and
part of the township of Aike, all in the parish of St.
John; and a court of record is also held, called the
Provost court, which takes cognizance of all pleas,
except those respecting titles to landed property. A
court of requests is holden under an act passed in the
218t of George IIl., the powers of which were extended
by a subsequent act in the 46th of the same reign,
whereby debts under £5 are vecoverable. The guildhall,
or, as it is here called, the Hallgarth, is a neat building,
containing, in addition to the apartments in which the
public business of the corporation is transacted, a court~
room in which the general quarter sessions for the East
riding are held, and a registrar's office. The house of
correction is & small neat building, about half a mile
from the town. The elective franchise was conferred in
the reign of Edward 1., but was not exercised from the
end of that reign till the 5th of Elizebeth, since which
time the horough has continued to return two members
to parlinment: the right of election is vested in the
freemen generally, whether resident or not, the number
of whom is about one thousand four hundred; the
mayor is the returning officer.

Beverley comprises the pariehes of St.Jehn, St.
Martin, St. Mary, and 8t. Nicholas, all within the arch-
deaconry of the East riding, and diocese of York : the
parish of St. John extends into the northern division
of the wapentake of Holderness. It was:fi the
head of o peorliar und exempt jurisdiction, underthe

Lorporate Seal.

provomt of the ‘colleginte chumh which expired at the.
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dissolution of monasteries. The Jiving of St. John's is.
a perpetual curacy, with that of St. Martin's united,,
endowed with £200 private bemecfaction, and £400
royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Mayor and-
Corporation, The church, anciently belonging to the
monastery of St. John, and still called the Minster,
was almost entirely rebuilt in 1060, by Kinsius, Arch-
bishop of York. In 1664, some workmen opening a
grave in the chancel, discovered a sheet of lead, en-
veloping some relics, with an inscription in Latin,
purporting that the ancient church having been de-
stroyed by fire, in 1188, search was made for the re-
lics of St. John of Beverley, which having been found,
his ‘bones were again deposxted near the altar. It is
not known at what precise period the present church
was built, though probably it was in the early part of
the reign of Henry 1IL; it is a venerable and spacious
cruciform structure, in tke early, decorated, and later
styles of English architecture, with two lofty towers
at the west end. Though combining these several
styles, it exhibits in each of them such purity of com.
position, correctness of detail, and elegance of execution,*
as to raise it to an architectural equality with the finest
of the cathedral churches, to which it is inferior only
in magnitude. The west front is in the best character
of the later style, and the nave and transepts are of the
early English, of which the fronts of the north and south
transepts are pure specimens. The choir is partly in
the decorated style, with an exquisitely besutiful altar,
screen, and rood-loft, which, though unequalled in
elegance of design and richness of detail, has been con-
cealed by one of very inferior composition, put up
within the last century: the enst window is decorated
with stained glass, which has been collected from the
other windows, and skilfully arranged : near the altar
is the seat of refuge, formed of one entire stone, with
a Latin inscription, offering &n asylum to all criminals
who should flee to this sanctuary; and on an ancient
tablet are the portraits of St. John of Beverley and
King Athelstan, with a legend recording the monarch's
grant of freedom to the town. In the choir there is
a superb and finely executed monument to the memory
of one of the Percles, and in the north transept is a
fine altar-tomb, both in the decorated style. The hvmg
of St. Mary's is a vicarage, with those of St. Nicholas
and Holme on the Wolds united, rated in the king's
bouks at £14. 2. 8., and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is a hlghly mterestmg structure, and con-
tains fine portions in the various styles of architecture,
from the Norman to the later English: the towers at
the weatern end are finely pierced, and the octagonal™
turrets flanking the nave are strikingly elegant: the
roof of the chancel, which is in the decorated stylé; is
richly gromed, and the piers and arches are well pro-
portioned ; there are some interesting monuments, and
a fine font in the later style. The churches of 8t
Martin and 8t. Nicholas have long since gone to da&y.
There are places of worship for Baptists, the Soclety of
Friends, Indepéndents, and Primitive and Wealaynn
Methodists.’ :
The lchool is of uncertain:
it appears to have existed &t'a remote.

‘in 16589, by Dr. Meall, ﬂutiimﬁ
mented with a Gonition of £20 permnmbymM o
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Bers for -the bovohigh, and one of £70 per annum by
thes corporetion, in whom the management is vested ;
these stns are paid as a salary to the master, who re-
. peives ulso 408, ‘gnmutn from each of the scholars,
and -has ‘the privilege of taking boarders. There are
three scholarshipsof £86. 18, 4. per annun each, found-
ed by Dr. Metcalf; one of £6 per annum by William
Coates; Esq., in 1681 ; two of £8, at St. John's College,
Cambridge; -founded by Dr. William Lacey, in 1670;
one of £20 at Corpus Christi, or St. Jobn's, Colleges,
Cambridge, founded by Dr. Green, Bishop of Lincoln,
in 17778, who bequeathed £ 1000 for that purpose, or to
the charity school ; and one of £5 by Margaret Ferrer,
to astudent at the latter college. The Blue-coat charity
school was established by subscription, in 1709, for the
maintepance, clothing, and -education of poor children ;
the annualincome, arising from subsequent benefactions,
is at present about £126: there are ten boys in this
establishment, with each of whom, on leaving school, an
apprentice fee of £3 is given. There is also a scheol,
founded in 1804, by Mr, James Graves, who endowed
it with stock in the Navy five per cents., producing £84
per snnum, in which two bundred children of both
sexes are instructed, the boys on the Lancasterian,
and the girls on Dr. Bell's, system. Almsehouses for
four aged widows, each of whom receives 10s. per
mouth, were founded and endowed by Mr. Thwaite Fox,
in 1636. Almshouses also for thirty-two widows, who
receive n weekly allowance of 5s. each, were founded by
Mrs. Anne Routh, in 1721, and endowed with estates
now producing £675 per annum ; the matron receives
two shillings and sixpence, and two nurses two shil-
lings each, per week, in addition to their regular allow-
ance. An hospital, containing fourteen apartments,
was founded in 1712, by Mr. Charles Warton, who en-
dowed it with property now producing about £400 per
annum, for fourteen widows, who have a weekly allow-
ance of 4s. cach. There are also unendowed almshouses,
erected by the corporation, comprising twenty-six tene-
ments, the oceupiers of which receive a portion of va-
rious bequests for charitable uses, Sir Michael Warton,
Kaut,, in 1724, bequeathed £4000, as a perpetual fund
for keeping the minster in repair ; and Mr. Robert Ste-
phenson, in 1711, left an estate, now producing from
€70 to £100 per annum, for the maintenance of *“Non-
conformist preaching ministers.” Alfred of Beverley, a
monkish histerian of the twelfth century, is supposed
to have been born here; Dr. John Alcock, Bishop of
Ely, and founder of Jesus' College, Cambridge; Dr.
Fisher, Bishop of Rochester, a martyr to his religious
tenets jn the reign of Heury VIIL; and Dr. Green,
Bishop of Lincoln, an elegant scholar, and one of the
riters of . the Athenian Letters, published by Lord

;. -weze patives of this town.
{ERSTONE,.a parish in the upper division of
bundred of Brrxziny, county of GLOUCESTER, 2
bes {W.N. W) from, Tetbury, containing 160 inhabit-
Aiving 48.8. rectary, with the perpetusl cu-
ygscote sanexed, in the archdeaconry and
ey, rated in the king's books at
‘patropage.of the Crown, . The church
Mary. | One of the sources of the
is..parish, .in which also there axre
#beng wiedd for: Toofing; houses, . Here ave
%ok a:mionted custle, built. by Thomas, Lord
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Berkeley, in the reign of Edward IIL, which, aftéer re-
peated sieges, was taken and burnt in the early part of
the parliamentary war. It is a noble ruin overgrown
with ivy; and its chapel, still perfect, has a beautiful
arched roof, a fine window, and an elegant shrine of
tabernacle-work on the right hand side of the altar.

. BEWALDETH, a joint township with Snittlegarth,
in the parish of TorPENHOW, ALLERDALE ward below
Darwent, county of CUMBERLAND, 6} miles (N.E. by
E.) from Cockermouth, containing, with Snittlegarth,
97 inhabitants,

BEWCASTLE, a parish in EsgkpaLe ward, county
of CuMBERLAND, comprising the townships of Bailie,
Belbank, Bewcastle, and Nixons, and containing 1213
inhabitants, of which number, 188 are in the township
of Bewcastle, 10 miles (N.E.) from Carlisle. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Carlisle,
rated in the king's books at £2, endowed with £800
parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of the Dean
and Chapter of Carlisle. The church is dedicated to
St. Cuthbert. In the churchyard there is a curious
antique cross, composed of a single stone, bearing in-
scriptions which have been variously interpreted, and
some curious devices, which are supposed to be emble-
matical of the conversion of the Danes to Christianity,
and commemorative of the death and interment of one
of their kings. There is a place of worship for Preshy-
terians. The rivers Leven, or Line, and Irthing, have
their sources in this parish. Limestone, coal, and lead-
ore are obtained here. In the 7th of Edward I. license
was granted to John Swinburn to hold a market and a
fair. There are two schools in the parish, which are
pertly supported by subscription. This was a Roman
station, of which there are some traces, and many coing,
inscribed stones, and other relics of Roman occupation
have been found: the Maiden-way passed through the
parish. Bueth Castle, a fortress built by Bueth, Lord
of Gilsland, soon after the Conquest, was occupied by
8 border garrison in the reign of Elizabeth, and, in
1641, was demolished by the parliamentarians: some
vestiges are still visible, and there are various relics of
antiquity in the vicinity, which abounds also with pie-
turesque scenery. There arc two mineral springs, one
with & sulphureous impregnation, the other chalybeate;
and at Low Grange, a quarter of a mile to the east
of the church, is a petrifying spring.

BEWDLEY, a borough, b2
market town, and chapelry,
intheparishof RinBEsroRrD,
having separate jurisdiction,
locally in the lower division
of the bundred of Dodding-
tree, county of WORCESTER,
14 miles (N.W.) from Wor-
cester, and 122 (N. W.) from
London, -containing 3726
inhabitants. Thisplace, from
the pleasantness of its situ-

.ation, and the beauty of the surrounding scenery,anciently
obtained the appellation of Bean lieu, of which its pre- -
sent name is & corruption.  In the 13th of Henry ¥V,
a petition was presented to parliament from the men of
“ Bristowe " and Gloucester, praying thet they might
navigate the river Severn without being subject to new
taxes Jevied by the men of Beaudley. - At this time
Xe
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Bewdley appears to- have enjoyed many privileges,
among which was that of sanctuary for persens who
had shed blood : it was formerly extra~parochial, but,
by letters patent granted by Henry V1., was-annexed to
the parish of Ribbesford. Edward Iv. gave the inha-
bitants a charter of incorporation in the twelfth year of
his reign ; and chry VII. erected a palace here for
his xon Arthur, in which that prince was married by
proxy to Catherine of Arragon, and dying soon after at
Ludlow, his corpse was removed to this town, where it
lay in state previously to interment in the cathedral
church of Worcester. Bewdley, formerly included
in the marches of Wales, was, by an act of parliament
passed in the reign of Henry VIIIL, added to the county
of Waorcester. During the civil war in the reign of
Charles 1., that monarch, who had been driven from
Oxford by the parlmmemtary forces, retired with the
remnant of his army to this town, where he encamped,
in order to keep the river Severn between him and
the enemy. Whilst staying here, he was attacked by
a purty of Scottish cavalry, when geveral of his officers,
and seventy men, were made prisoners. In these attacks
the palace was greatly damaged, and was subsequently
‘taken down; the site is now occupied by a modern
dwellmg-house and not a single vestige of the original
edifice can, with certainty, be truced. The more gancicnt
part of the town was built at a greater distance from
the river, and the street called Load-street is supposed
to have been the place where the inhabitants loaded
their boats: there were formerly four gutes, two of
which were standing in 1811, but they have since been
entirely demolished.

Bewdley is beautifully situated on the western
‘bank of the river Severn, over which a light and elegant
stone bridge was erected in 1797 : the main street,
leading from the bridge, diverges right and left, but
extends furthest in the latter direction ; it is mdxﬂ‘erently
paved and not lighted. The houses are in general well
built, and of respectable appearance; and several of
them, erocted at different clevations on the slope of
the hill rising from the bank of the river, with well
cultivated gardens, and tastefully disposed pleasure
grounds, present en appearance truly picturesgque: the
inhabitants are amply supplied with water ; the air is
salubrious, and the surrounding scenery richly and
pleasingly diversified. Some years since, Bewdley was
a place of considerable trade, baving two markets and
four fairs, and for a long period was the mart from
which the neighbouring towns were supplied with gro-
cery and other articles of consumption; but.in con-
sequence of the recent construction of & canal from
Stourport to Stourbridge, that portion of its trade has
been diverted to other towns. The manufacture of
‘woollen caps, known by the name of Dutch caps,
was introduced here in consequence of the plague pre-
va.iling ‘at Monmouth, where it had previously been

on, and, being encouraged by legislative enmct-
ments §i the reign of Elizabeth, it continued for some
time to fourish, but hes now declmed and the trade is
principally in malt, the tanning of leather, wid -the
meling of combs. The market is on Saturday : fairs
are held on April ¢3rd, July 26th,; and December 10th
.l 11th. " The government -of the borough, by charter
\mncmm ted by James 1., and confirmed by
'Qmmao,isvuwdma bailiff, high m.'wardm-
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corder, deputy recorder (who is usually the town clerk),
and twelve capital burgesses. . The bailiff, who is. also
coroner and clerk of the maﬂ:et the lute bailiff, and
the recorder, are justices of the peace: the freadom of

_the borough ie obtained only by gift. The corperation

hold a court of session annually, in which the bailiff,
the late bailiff, and the recorder, preside; & court of
record for all pleas, and for the recovery of debts under
£100, in which the bailiff, or, in his absence, a deputy
appointed by him from among the capital burgesses,
and the recorder, preside; and a court leet, at which
constables and other officers are appomted The town
hall is a neat building of stone, erected in 1818; the
front is decorated with six square, pilasters supportmg
a pediment, in which are the arms of the family of
Lyttelton ; under the hall is the entrance into the mar-
ket-place, which has an arcade on each side for stalls,
and an open area in the centre; at the extremity ave
two small prisons, one for mnlefactors, the other for
debtors. The elective franchise wes conferred by
James 1., since which time Bewdley has returned one
member to parliament : the right of election is vested
exclusively in the bailiff and burgcsses, thirteen in num-
ber ; the bailiff is the returning officer.

The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdencon-
ry of Salop, aud diocese of Hereford, endowed with £8
per annum, the revenue of a dissolved chantry which
formerly existed here, and in the patronage of the
Rector of Ribbesford. The chapel, a neat stone edifice
at the upper end of the street leading from the bridge,
‘was erected in 1748, by means of a subscription among
the inhabitants, aided by a brief, and the Rev. Thomas
Knight, rector of Ribbesford, principally coutributed to
the erection of the tower. There are places of worship
for Baptists, the Society of Friends, Wesleyan Metho-
dists, wnd Unitariana, The frce grammar school,
founded and endowed in 1591, by William Monnox, or
Mormoye, and further endowed in 1599, by Humphrey
Hill, was made a royal foundation by charter of James 1. ;
the endowment, augmented by subsequent benefactions,
produces a salary of £26 per annum to the master,
who has also a house rent-free. A collection of hooks,
the gift of the Rev. Thomas Wigan, is deposited in
the achool, under the care of the master, and the rec-
tor of RJbbesford for the use of the clergy and laity
in the neighbourhood. The Blue-coat schoaol, for thirty
boys and thirty girls, is supported by subscnptmn.
Almshouscs for six aged men, founded by Mr. Sayer,
of Nettlestead, in the county of Suffolk, and endowed
with £30 per snnum, were rebuilt in 1763, by Sir Ed-
ward: Winnington, Bart.,, member for the borough.
Buriton's almshouses, for fourteen. aged womes, were
founded and endowed in 1645 ; and eight other alms-
houses were erected .and modarately endowed in 1693,
by Mr. Thomas Cook. John Tombes, a celebrated bibli-
eal critic of the seventeenth century;. .and  Richard
Willis, Bishop: of Winchester, and . principal foander of
the Booiety for: Pmmntmg Chrithm Knowledge, m
natives of this town..... . .

BEWERLEY, a- mmhip in that part of ﬁewv
ri-hafRzmnwhichhinthe lowerdivmmnfﬂn
wapmkeofﬂummrﬂbgdm_
Yousx, 11} miles (WM.W.) from Ripon, | o
1408 jubabitants. . The vitinity abounds with
Inad arsiues, which ave. m to a consitlerable extent.
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BEWICK (NEW), » township in the parish of
Eoevingaam, northern division of CoquerpaLe ward,
county of NoRTHUMDERLAND, 7§ miles (8.E.) from
‘Wooler, containing 93 inhabitants.

BEWICK (OLD), a township in the parish of
EcLiNGHAM, northern division of CoQuEerpALE ward,
county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 7 miles (8.E. by E.) from
Wooler, containing 247 inhabitants, Here was an-
ciently a chapel, dedicated to the Holy Trinity, the
ruins of which are situated a little to the north-west of
the village. On Bewick hill is an encampment of a
semicircular form, with a double rampart ; and at Hare-
up-burn, half a mile eastward, is another, supposed to
have been an outwork : they were probably constructed
by the ancient Britons, and were afterwards occupied by
the Romans.

BEXHILL, a parish in the hundred of Bexmuiny,
rape of Hastings, county of Sussrx, 54 miles (W, by 8.)
from Hastings, containing 1907 inhabitants. The living
is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese
of Chichester, rated in the king's books at £24.10.24.,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Chichester, The
church is dedicated to St. Peter. The hundred of Bex-
hilMis a franchise in the enjoyment of privileges similar
to those possessed by the franchise of Battle. There
are several chalybeate springs in the parish.

BEXINGTON, a hamlet (formerly a parish) in the
liberty of Binvon, Blandford (South) division, though
locally in the parish of Abbotsbury, hundred of Uggs-
combe, Dorchester division of the county of Dorskr,
1 mile (N. W.) from Abbotsbury, with which the popu-
lation is returned. The living, which was a rectory,
was, in 1451, annexed to that of Puncknoll; and the
church, which was dedicated to St.Giles, and stood on
the sea-shore, not far from the ruins of Abbotsbury
castle, has long been desecrated.

BEXLEY, a parish partly in the hundred of Lrss-
NEss, but chiefly in the hundred of RuxLEy, lathe of
Svurron at Hong, county of Kent, 3 miles (W.) from
Dartford, eontaining 2311 inhabitants. 'The living is a
vicarage, in the exempt deanery of Shorcham, the whole
of which is within the peculiar jurisdiction of the Arch-
bishop of Canterbury, rated in the king’s books at
£18. 4. 7., and in the patronage of Viscount Sidney.
The church is dedicated to St. Mary. In the reign of
Elizabeth, the manor belonged to Camden, the cele-
brated antiquary, who bequeathed it in trust to the
Master and Fellows of University College, Oxford, for
the foundation and endowment of a professorship in

i . A National schoel for the instruction of sixty
bays .and sixty girls was established in 1809, and is
supported. by voluntary subscription and an endowment
of £8 per gnnum : there are also almshouses for twelve
persons, . The Right Hon. Nicholas Vansittart, on re-
tiring from the chancellorship of the Exchequer, was
creuted Bavgn Bexley, March 1st, 1823.

. BEXTON, a township in the parish of KNutsrorp,
W :ﬂﬁaﬁﬁvpmm county palatine of CuErsTER,
1 Wk'@;:- E.) from Nether Knutsford, containing 69
o BEXWELE, -« parish in the hundred of Crack-
uoem, connty of Naosiovrg, 1 mile (E.) from Downham-

X cohiaining 08 inhabitants, . The living is &
oYy, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,

prweich. rated. in the king's books at
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£7.11. 8, and in the patro of the Bishop of Ely.
The church, dedicated to St.nﬁiiy, is built of fag-st;mze
obtained in the vicinity. Henry III granted to William
de Bexwell permission to hold a market on Thursday,
and a fair on Whit-Monday,

BEYTON, otherwise BEIGHTON, a parish in the
hundred of THEDWESTRY, county of SurroLk, 54 miles
(E. by 8.) from Bury St. Edmund's, containing 238 in-
habitants. The living i® a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Sudbury, and diocese ot Norpich, rated
in the king's books at £4. 3. 9., and in the patronage
of the Crown. The church is dedicated to All Saints.

BIBURY, a parish comprising the chapelry of Win-
son, in the hundred of Braprey, and the tythings of
Ablington and Arlington, in the hundred of BriGur-
WELL'S BArRrOw, county of GLOUCESTER, 3% miles
(N.w.) from Fairford, and containing 990 inhabitants.
The living is 8 vicaruge, within the jurisdiction of the
peculiar of the vicarage of Bibury, rated in the king's
books at £13. 1. 54., and in the patronage of E. Cres-
well, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. Thomas
Tryon, author of a curious work, entitled “The Way to
Health, Long Life, and Happiness,” published in 1691,
was a native of this place.

BICESTER, a market town and parish in the
hundred of PLouGHLEY, county of Oxrorp, 124 miles
(N.E.byN.) from Oxford, and 55 (N.W, by W.) from
London, containing 2544 inhabitants. This place, by
the Saxons called Burenceaster and Bernaceaster, both
implying a fortified place, is supposed to derive its name
either from its founder, Birinus, a canonized Saxon
prelate, or from Bernwood, a forest in Buckingbamshire,
on the verge of which it js situated. A priory for canons
of the Benedictine order was founded in 1182, and
dedicated to St. Eadburg, by Gilbert Basset, Baron of
Haddington, and his wife, Oglean Courtucy, the revenue
of which, at the dissolution, was £167. 2. 10. In 1355,
a royal license was granted to Nicholas Jurdan, warden
of the chapel of St. John the Baptist, for the esta-
blishment of an hospital for poor and infirm people,
but the design does not appear to have been carried
into execution. During the civil war in the reign of
Charles I, the inhabitants suffered by repeated ex-
actions levied on them by both parties, and, in 1643,
a skirmish took place, in which the royalists were
defeated and driven through the town. Bicester, which
is divided into the townships of King's-End, and Market-
End, part of the latter being in the parish of Cavers-
field, is situated in a valley, omathe banks of a tributary
stream which falls into the river Cherwell at Islip; it is
handsomely built, and amply supplied with water. Two
book clubs have been established, one by the clergy
resident in the town and neighbourhood, the other by
the inhabitants. The manufacture of leather slippers is
extensively carried on, and the female inhabitants are
employed in making bone lace : the town is noted for
excellent malt liquor. The market is on Friday; and
fairs arve held on the Friday in Easter week, the first
Friday in June, August 5th, and the third Friday in
DNecember; there are also statute fairs on the firat three
Fridays after Michaelmas. The county /magi M
hold their petty ;eslom here for tf: districg,, 'THE liv-
ing is a discharged vicarage, in t Skconty and
d%me of Oxford, rated in the king's books at £16,
and in the patronage of Sir G. P. Turner, Bart. The
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church, dedicated to St. Eadburg, was rebuilt in 1400,
on the gite of the former edifice : it is a spacious struc-
ture with a lofty square tower; the interior contains
many interesting monuments and some antique sculp-
tures. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. A school for the instruction and clothing of
thirty boys is supported partly by subscription, and
partly by the dividends on £ 1000 stoek, given in 1811
by Mr. Walker, in fulfilment” of the intention of his
deceased father, out of which, £14 per annum is given
in moieties to a Sunday school in connexion with the
established church, and to a similar institution for the
children of dissenters. Lande producing £200 per an-
num, and a few minor charitable bequests, are appro-
priated to the relief of the poor. In making some
excavations, in 1819, the foundations of the conventual
buildings belonging to the priory, a vast mass of sculp-
tured fragments, pieces of painted glass, and other relics,
were discovered.

BICKENHALL, a parish in the hundred of Aspick
and BuLsToNE, county of SomeRseT, 54 miles (8,E.byE.)
from Taunton, containing 215 inhsbitants. The living
is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the rectory of Staple-
Fitzpaine, in the archdeaconry of Taunton, and diocese
of Bath and Wells.

BICKENHILL (CHURCH), a parish in the Solibull
division of the hundred of HemLINGFORD, county of
Warwick, 4 miles (N.E.) from Solihull, containing,
with Lyndon and Marston Quarters, 648 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
of Coventry, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry,
rated in the king’s books at £7. 17. 3., and cndowed
with £ 1000 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage
of the Earl of Aylesford. The church is dedicated to
St. Peter. The Warwick and Birmingham canal passes
in the vicinity. Here was anciently a castle, the site of
which is now occupied by a farm-house; aund a beacon
formerly stood where the church now is.

BICKER, a parish in the wapentake of KirTon,
parts of Howrranp, county of Livcous, 13 mile
(N.E. by N.) from Donington, containing 627 inha-
bitants; but, with the extra- parochial liberties of
Coppin-Sike and Ferry-Corner, G44. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books ut £15, and in
the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Lincoln,
The church is dedicated to St. Swithin, There is a
place of worship for Wesleyun Methodists. The school
has a small endowment for the instruction of children,

BICKERSTAFFE, a township in the plrish of
OrMsekirk; hundred of West DErBY, county palatine
of Lancaster, 3§ miles (S.E.) from Ormskirk, con-
taining 1212 inhabitants. Coal is obtained in thie
township,

BICKERTON, a township in the parish of MaLpas,
higher division of the hundred of BmoxroN, county

tine of Cuxerer, 4§ miles (N.N.E.) from Malpas,
containing 370 inhabitants. On the summit of & hill,
in this township, there iz an intrenchment . called
Maiden Castle. o

$ICKERTON, a township in the parish of Roru-
BURY, western division of CoqueTnaLE Witd; county
of NorTrOMBERLAND, 43 miles (W. by £.) from Roth-
bury, containing 18 inhebitants, Here is a school with
sn endowment of about £%0 per ananim. -~
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BICKERTON, & township in the parish of Biuron
ainsty of the city, and East riding of the county, o
York, 34 miles (E.N.E.) from Wetherby, containing
149 inhabitants,

BICKINGTON, a parish in the hundred of Teren-
BRIDGE, county of Duvow, 3} miles (N. E.) from Ash.
burton, containing 301 inhabitants. The living is a per:
petual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of Ashburton, in
the peculiar jurisdiction of the Desn and Chapter ol
Exeter, - There is 2 place of worship for Wesleyan Me-
thodists. A fair for cattle is held on May 14th. There
are two small endowed schools,

BICKINGTON (ABBOT'S), a parish in the hun.
dred of Brack TorrINGTON, county of DEvon, 9 miles
(8. w. by w.) from Great Torrington, containing 75
inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of Exeter, en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, £ 600 royal
bouuty, and £300 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of Lord Rolle. The church, dedicated to St
James, has some remauins of ancient stained glass,
Limestone, & kind of hard blué stone used in build:
ing, and marble, are obtained in the neighbourhood.

BICKINGTON (HIGH), a parish in the hundred
of Noutr Tawron with WinkLey, county of Devon,
7% miles (E. by N.) from Great Torrington, coutaining
748 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Barnstaple, and diocese of Excter, rated in
the king's books at £29. 7. 6., and in the patronage
of the Rev. W, Stawell. The church is dedicated to
St. Mary. A school was cndowed with £10 per annum
by Gertrude Pyncombe, in 1740.

BICKLEIGH, a parish in the hundred of Hay-
RIDGE, county of Drvon, 4% miles (8. by W.) from
Tiverton, containing 273 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £18. 4. 94., and in the pa-
tronage of Sir H, Carew, Bart. The church is dedi-
cated to St, Mary. The navigable river. Exe here re-
ceives a small stream called the Dart, and is crossed
by a bridge near the point of junction. Bamfylde
Moore Carew, atyled King of the Beggars, was born
here, in 1603, of & respectable family, his father being
rector of the parish; and hither he returned, at the
close of his extraordinary wanderings, where he died
in 1758,

BICKLEIGH, a parish in the hundred of Roso-
roveH, county of Devon, 7 miles (N. N, E.) from Ply-
month, containing 457 inhabitants. The living is a vi-
carage, with the perpetual curacy of Sheepstor annexed,
in the archdeaconry of Totness, and diocese of Exeter,
rated in the king's books at £11. 4. 7., and in the.pa-
tronage of Ralph Franco, Bart. The Plymouth railway
pesses along this parish, Here is a charity echool ; also
an almshonse for six widows. R

BICKLEY, & township in the parish of Mavrras,
higher division of the hundred of BroxTox, county pa-
latine of Crssrzi; 3% miles (E.N.E.) from Malpus,
containing 431 inhabitants. There is a " of wor:
ship for Wesleyan Methodists. On the 18th of July,
1657, about & quapter of an acre of elevatod ground,
vovered with full-grown trees, sunk suddenly with &
thundering noise to, such 8 depth below the surfilce ol
the surrounding ground, that even the sammits of the
trees were not -visible, frodt their totel immepelon in
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water : the water has 1 been dried up, and the
chasm, called the Barrel-Fall, from being situated on
the Barrel farm, is now quite dry. In a field adjoining
this farm, two tablets of copper, bearing an inseription
importing that certain privileges were thereby granted
by Trajan $0 some veteran soldiers serving in this
island, and now deposited in the British Museum, were
discovered in 181%, o

BICKMERSH, a hamlet in that part of the parish
of WeLrorDp which is in the Stratford division of the
hundred of BARLICEWAY, county of Warwick, 53 miles
(8. by E.) from Aleester, containing, with Little Dor-
sington, 61 inhabitants.

BICKNELL, county of SomerseT.—See BICKEN-
HALL.

BICKNOLLER, a parish in the hundred of WiLL1-
roN and FREEMANNERS, county of SOMERSET, 13% miles
(W.byN.) from Bridg-water, containing 251 inhabitants,
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Taunton, and diocese of Bath and Wells, endowed with
£200 private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and
in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter of Wells.
Two fortifications, named Trendle Castle and Turk's
Castle, together with the ruins of a beacon, occupy the
summit of an eminence near the village ; and a variety
of Roman coins has been found in the vicinity.

BICKNOR, a parish in the hundred of EvymoRrNE,
lathe of AvLEsrorD, county of Kenr, 44 miles (5.w.)
from Milton, containing 53 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £5. 10., and
in the patronage of the Crown. The church is dedi-
cated to St. James,

BICKNOR (ENGLISH), a parish in the hundred of
St. BRIAVELLS, county of GLoUCESTER, 3% miles (N.)
from Coleford, containing 534 inhabitants. The lividg
is & rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Glou-
cester, rated in the king's books at £13. 6. 8., and in
the patronage of the Provost and Fellows of Queen's
College, Oxford. The church, dedicated to $t. Mary,
stands within the area of an ancient fortification, the
fosse belonging to which may still be traced. This pa-
rish lies within the forest of Dean, on the eastern bank
of the Wye, opposite to Welch-Bicknor, and contains
mines of coal and iron: the neighbourhood produces a
considerable quantity of apples, particularly of tbat kind
from which styre cider is made. .

BICKNOR (WELCH), a parish in the lower divi-
sion of the hundred of SkENFrETH, county of Mon-
movurH, locally in the lower division of the hundred
of Wormelow, county of Hereford, 7 miles (S. by W.)
from Ross, containing 113 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
‘Hereford, rated in the king's books at £4. 6. 8., and in
the patronage of the Crown. The church, dedicated
to Bt , contains an antique chalice, said to
have been brought into Europe with the Saracens; the
1id 'is of beaten silver, and it bears other evidences of
w anticraity. At Courtfield, a private mansion about

" & mile off, thepe is & Roman Catholic chapel; and
teadition velstes that Henry V. was nursed there, under
the-cave. of ‘the Countess of Salisbury, who, according
10 the sune - suthority, is répresented by a recumbent

oue Bgore o the. church, The parish is almost sur.
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_ BICKTON, a chapelry in the parish of Sr. Cmab,
within the liberty of the borough of SurEwssugry,
county of Savor, 3§ miles (N.W. by W.) from Shrews-
bury. The population is returned with the parish. The
living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of
Salop, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, endowed
with £200 royal bounty, and £200 parlismentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Rev. Thomas
Stedman. The navigable river Severn runs through
the chapelry, whick 14 also intersected by the Roman
Watling-street.

BICTON, a parish in the eastern division of the
hundred of BupLEIGH, county of Devow, 3% miles
(W.8.w.) from Sidmouth, containing, with a portion
of the tything of Rawleigh, 204 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is B rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Exeter, rated in the king's books at £12. 13. 4., and in
the patronage of Lord Rolle. The church is dedicated
to the Holy Trinity. According to Mr, Polwhele, the
possesgor of the manor of Bicton is obliged to “ find a
county gaol.”

BIDBOROUGH, a parish in the bundred of Wasn-
LINGETONE, lathe of AyLesrorp, county of Kenr, 3
miles (8.W.) from Tonbridge, containing 192 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Rochester, rated in the king's
books at £5. 4. 4%., endowed with £200 private bene-
faction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of the Rev. W. Gay. The church, dedicated to
St. Lawrence, has a wide Norman doorway. There are
some chalybeate springs in the parish,

BIDDENDEN, a parish in the hundred of Barcray,
lathe of Scray, county of Kent, 5 miles (E. by N.)
from Cranbrooke, containing 1544 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £35, and in
the patronage of the Archbishop of Canterbury. The
church, dedicated to All Saints, is a fine structure in
the later style of English architecture, with an em-
battled tower and turret. This place was once famous
for its clothing trade, now entirely decayed. Fairs for
Welch cattle are held on Old Lady-day and Novem-
ber Sth. John Mayne, in 1566, bequeathed a sum for
the crection of a school-house, and endowed it with a
rent-charge of £20. 3. 4., which is applied for teaching
twelve boys. An annual distribution of bread and
cheese to the poor parishioners takes place on Easter.
Sunday, the expense of which is defrayed from the
rental of about twenty acres of land, the reputed be-
quest of the Biddenden Maids, two sisters of the
name of Chulkhurst, who, according to an unauthen-
ticated tradition, were born joined together by the
hips and shoulders, in the year 1100; and having
lived in that state to the age of thirty-four, died within
about six hours of each other. To perpetuate the
remembrance of this extraordinary circumstance, cakes,
bearing & corresponding impression of the figures of
two females, are given, on the same day, to all who
apply. Hasted, coinciding in the general opinion of the
fabulousness of this tale, states that the print on the
cakes is of modern origin, and considers the land to
have been given by two maidens named Preston.

BIDDENHAM, a parish in the hundred of WirLLzy,
county of Beororp, 23 miles (W, by N.) from Bedford,
containing 393 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
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vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Bedford, and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8, endowed
with £400 private benefaction, and £600 royal hounty,
and in the patronage of Viscount Hampden, The
church is dedicated to St. James.

BIDDESCOTE, a township in that part of the
parish of TamworTtH which is in the southern division
of the hundred of OrrrLow, county of STaAFroRD, 1 mile
(5. 8. w.) from Tamworth, containing 70 inhabitants.

BIDDESHAM, a parish in the hundred of Bemr-
STONE, county of Somrrsrr, 3 miles (W. by 8)) from
Axbridge, containing 136 inhabitants. The living is a
perpetual curacy, in the peculiar jurisdiction of the
Dean of Wells, and in the patronage of the Dean and
Chapter thereof.

BIDDESTONE (ST. NICHOLAS and ST. PETER),
a parish in the hundred of CmirrENHAM, county of
Wivrrs, 4% miles (W.) from Chippenham, containing 414
inhabitants. The living is & discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Wilts, and diocese of Salisbury, rated
in the king's books at £2. 18. 4,, and in the patron-
age of the Warden and Fellows of Winchester College.
The church contains & monument to the memory of
Edmund Smith, A.M., a poet of some repute, who
died in this neighhourhood in 1709.

BIDDLESDON, a parish in the hundred and county
of BuckincuaM, 34 miles (N, E. by E,) from Brackley,
containing 175 inhaebitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham, and diocese
of Lincoln, endowed with £200 private bencfaction,
and £200 royal hounty, and in the patronage of Mrs.
Verney. The church is dedicated to St. Margaret. An
abbey of Cistercian monks was founded here in 1147,
the revenue of which, at the dissolution, was £142. 1. 3.
In 1315, Edward II. granted to the convent a market
on Monday, and a fair on St. Margaret's day.

BIDDLESTON, a township in the parish of Ay-
LENTON, western division of CoaveTpaLE ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 74 miles (N.W. by W.) from
Rothbury, coutaining 166 inhabitants. The manor was
granted, in 1272, to Sir Walter Selby, Kut., and has
ever since continued in the posscssion of his descend-
ants. King James held this ancient family in such high
estimation that he bestowed the honour of Knighthood
upon five of its members, The manor-house, & com-
modious stone building of modern erection, occupies
the summit of a gentle declivity, commanding, on the
sonth, a fine prospect of the vale of Coquet.

BIDDULPH, a parish in the northern division of the
hundred of PirgmiLL, county of Starrorp, 3% miles
(S.E. by-8.) from Congleton, containing 1666 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of«Stafford, and diocese af Lichfield and
Coventry, rated in the king's books at £4. 9. 8., en-
dowed with £400 private benefaction, £200 royal
" bounty, and £ 900 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of J. Bateman, Esq. The church is dedicated

to St. Lawrence. On Biddulph moor there is a place

- of 'worship for Wesleyan Methodists, The parish con-
tains collieries, mannfactories for cotton and earthen-
ware, and iron-works. It isin the honour of Tutbury,
duchy of Lancaster, and within the jurisdiction of a
court of pleas held atTutbury every third Tuesday, for
the recovery of debts nuder 40s.  Hete is a4chool with
sn endowment of sbout £12 per anum, :
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BIDEFORD, a sea-port,
incorporated market town,
and parish, having separate
jurisdiction, . Jocally in" the
hundred of Shebbear, coun- Y}
ty of Devon, 39 miles (N. §
Ww. by W.) from Exeter, and
201 (W. by 8.) from Lon-
don, containing 4053 inha-
bitants, This place, called
also Bytheford, of which its
modern appellation is a va-

) ! Corporate Seal.
riation, derives its name from being situated near an

ancient ford on the river Torridge: It was a town of
gome importance in the time of the Saxons: in early
records it is styled a borough, and in the reigns of
Edward I. and II. returned members to parliament ;
but the burgesses having pleaded inability to supply
the usual pecuniary allowance to their representatives,
this distinction was withdrawn. In 1271, Richard de
Grenville, to whose ancestor Bideford was granted in
the reign of William Rufus, obtained for it a market
and a fair; and, in 1574, Queen Elizabeth incorporated
the inhabitants, and made the town a free borough.
From that time it rapidly increased es a place of trade,
aud the cxpeditions of Sir Walter Raleigh to Virginia,
and of Sir Richard Grenville to Carolina, established
the basis of its foreign commerce. During the civil
war in the reign of Charles 1, two small forts were
erected on the banks of the river, and a third at
Appledore, which were garrisoned in the interest of the
parliament, until they were taken for the king by-Col.
Digby, after the bdttle of Torrington, September 2nd,
1643, who soon after entered this town, which had been
evacuated by the parlinmentary troops. From this pe-
rlod till the beginning of the eighteenth century, Bide-
ford was in its highest prosperity. The weaving of silk
was introduced in 1650, and, after the revocation of
the edict of Nantes, in 1685, many French Protestants
settled in the town, and established the manufacture of
silk and cotton ; a great quantity of wool was imported
from Spain, and, in 1699, its trade with Newfoundland
was inferior only to that of London and Exeter : from
1700 to 1755, the imports of tobacco exceeded those of
every port, except London. The town is situated on
the river Torridge, which in spring tides rises to the
height of eighteen.feet above the level of high water
msrk : the greater part is built on the acclivity of its
western bank, and is connected with that on the eastern
side by a noble stone bridge of twenty-four arches, of
sufficient span to allow free passage for vessels of sixty
tons’ burden. The bridge was crected in the early part of
the fourteenth century, by a subscription 'raieed in the
counties of Devon and Cornwall, under the atspices of
Grandison, Bishop of Exeter, who, being influenced by
a dream of Gornard, the parish priest, granted indui-
gences to all who shounld contribute to the work.: an
estate, called the Bridge estate, for keeping it in repair,
is vested in trustees,who are a body corporate, and Lave
a'common sesl. - ‘The town consists prindipally of two
spacious streets, well paved and lighted ; the'bouses ave
in_general indi y bullt, many of them being of
timber and brick; ‘plalstéved over, though there ave
some: of ‘more respectaliles nce ; the hbubitsnts
are ‘wmply supplied withster, Ita viciuityto Apple-
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dore remders Bideford a place of resort for compauy
frequenting that watering-place : there are mssembly-
rooms on the quay. The port, including within its ju-
. riediction the harbours of Clovelly and Hartland, and a
convenient station for wind-bound vessels, carries on a
considerable colonial and coasting trade: the exports
are sails, cordage, and articles of general supply to the
fisheries of Newfoundland, oak-bark to Ireland, apples
to Scotland, éarthenware to Wales, and corn and flour
to Bristol; the imports are timber from America and
the Baltic, and coal from Bristol and Wales. The river,
in spring tides, is navigable for vessels of threc hun-
dred tons’ burden, as far as the bridge, two miles and a
half above which it is connected, by means of a sea-
lock, with the Torrington canal. The quay, one thou-
gand two hundred feet in length, and of proportionate
breadth, has been greatly improved by the corporation ;
it is very convenient for loading and unloading, and is
accessible to ships of considerable burden. The num-
her of vessels belonging to the port, according to the
return of 1628, is ninety-nine, averaging a burden of
ninety tons', the majority of which are employed in the
-coasting trade : there are also onc hundred and sixty
licensed boats engaged in the fishery. Ship-building is
extensively carried on: during the late war, several
frigates were launched at this port, and there are cight
or ten dock-yards, in which smaller vessels are built.
The principal; articles of manufacture are ropes, sails,
and common earthenware ; there are also several tan-
yards, and a small lace-manufactory. The market days
are, Tuesday for grain, and Saturday for provisions:
fairs are held on February 14th, July 18th, and Novem-
Dber 13th, 'The government, hy charter of incorpora-
tion granted in the 16th of Elizabeth, and confirmed and
extended in the 7th of James L, is vested in a mayor,
recorder, seven aldermen, and ten burgesses, assisted
by & town clerk, two serjeants at mace, and subordinate
officers. The mayor (who is chosen by the corporation
on the 21st of September), the recorder, and one of the
aldermen (who is annually elected for that purpose),
are justices of the peace; a chief constable, and twelve
petty constables, are appointed annually by the mayor.
The corporationt hold a court of general session quar-
terly, a court of petty session monthly, and a court of
record every third week, for the recovery of debts to
any amount. The town hall, erected in 1698, is a neat
aud commodious building ; underneath are two prisons,
one for malefactors, and the other for debtors: a hand-
some hall was erected in 1758, for the trustees of the
Bridge estate, with & school-room adjoining.

The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barn-
staple, and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books
at £27. 7.6, and in the patronage of Lewis William
Buck, Eaq,. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a
‘spuciowis ' cruciform structure, in the early style of
English  architecture ; - within are .a handsome stone
sereen, a8 Worman font;, sand some interesting mo-

Duwents.  These are places of worship for Baptists,
Inde muts, - a0d- Wesleyan Methodists. The free
greinmmr school- is.'of remote foundation: it was re-
s.,‘-'f‘“ 1887, and, “in 1689, was endowed by Mrs.
‘Stseningh Studéy; with an estate of £300 value; . a
ool House was | archaged for the master with money

#ﬁﬁ!ﬂey&f #imbér on the estate : there are

thivee -boywion the foundation, who are
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nominated by the corporation. A charity school for
reading, writing, and arithmetic, is supported by the
trostecs of the Bridge estate ; and a National scheol, in
which one hundred and fifty hoys, and one hundred and
ﬁft:y girls arc tanght, besides other schools for the
children of dissenters, are supported by subscription.
Almshouses in Maiden-street, for seven poor families,
were erected in 1646, by Mr. John Strange, alderman of
Bideford ; and an hospital in the Old town, for twelve
poor families, was built pursuunt to the will of Mr.
Henry Amory, who dicd in 1663, In 1810, Mrs. Mar-
garet Newcommen left u considerable fund for poor
dissenters in this and the neighbouring parishes, Mines
of culm and black mineral paint arc found in the vici-
nity. Sir Richard Grenville, who was a native of this
town, distinguished himself in 1391, in an action fought
near the island of Flores, with a Spanish fleet, consist-
ing of fifty-three sail, and ten thousand men, having
only his own ship, and one hundred and eighty men |
notwithstanding this inferiority of force, he gallantly
repulsed the enemy fifteen times, destroyed four of their
ships, and upwards of one thousand men, nor did he
surrender till he had spent all his wmmunition, and
then only on honourable terms. Thomas Stucley, an
eccentric character, the supposed original of Sterne's
Captain Shandy; Dr. John Shebieare, a noted poli-
tical writer, born in 1709; the Rev. Zachary Mudge,
a learned divine, and master of the grammar school;
were also natives of this place. Hervey, author of the
“ Meditations,” was curate here from 1738 till 1742,

BIDFORD, a parish (formerly a market town) in
the Stratford division of the hundred of BarLicaway,
county of Wanwick, 4 miles (8. by £.) from Alcester,
comprising the hamlets of Barton, Broom, and Marl-
clift, and containing 1219 inhabitants., The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Worcester, rated in the king's books at £7. 10. 74,
endowed with £ 800 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of Lady Skipwith. The church 1s dedicated
to St. Lawrence. This place stands on the northern
bank of the navigable river Avon, and the river Arrow
runs through the parish, in which there are scveral
stone quarries. The market was held on Friday, but it
has long been discontinued.

BIDICK (SOUTH), a township in the parish of
Hovgeuror le Sruang, northern division of Kasing-
ToN ward, county palatine of Durnam, 63 miles (5. W.
by w.) from Sunderland, containing 167 inhabitants,
The unfortunate James Drumniond, commonly called
Duke of Perth, sought an asylum here after the re-
bellion of 1745, where he lived concealed until his
death in 1752.

BIDSTONE, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of WIRRALL, county pulatine of Coresren,
comprising the chapelry of Birkenhead, and the town-
ships of Bidstone with Ford, Claughton with Grange,
Moreton, and Saughall-Massey, and containing 1014
inhabitants, of which number, 257 are in the township of
Bidstone with Ford, 9% miles (N.) from Great Neston.
The living i8 a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diccese of Chester, endowed with £200 and £35
per annum private benefaction, £200 royal bounty, and
£1300 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
A lighthouse, standing on an
by the
t Y
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corporation of Liverpool, under an act obtained in
1762, and is supported by a duty levied on all vessels
sailing to or from that port. A school is endowed
with £8 per annum, and & house and garden for the
master.

BIERLEY (NORTH), a chapelry in the parish of
Braprorn, wapentake of MorLey, West riding of the
county of York, 2 miles (S.E by 8.) from Bradford,
containing 6070 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of York, en-
dowed with £1600 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tropage of Miss Currer. The chapel lately received
an addition of three hundred and twenty free sittings,
toward defraying the expense of which the Incorpo-
rated Society for the enlargement of churches and cha-
pels granted £200. There are extensive iron-works
within this chapelry, and throughout the entire parish
the woollen manufacture prevails to a very considerable
extent,

BIERTON, a parish in the hundred of AyLessury,
county of Buckinenam, 134 mile (N.E. by E.) from
Ayleshury, containing, with the hamlet of Broughton,
620 inhabitants. The living is & vicarage, with the
perpetual curacies of Quarrendon and Stoke-Mandeville
annexed, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of
the Dean and Chapter of Lincoln, rated in the king's
books at £20. 10. The church is dedicated to St.James.
A school is endowed with £10 per annum ; and Mr.
Hill, in 1728, gave property, directing the proceeds to
he applied in clothing poor men, and in educating and
apprenticing children.

BIGBURY, a parish in the hundred of Erming-
ron, county of Drvon, 34 miles (8.) from Modbury,
rontaining 536 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
ithe archdeaconry of Totucss, and diocese of Exeter,
tated in the king's books at £28.7.11,, and in the
patronage of P. Browne, Esq. The charch is dedicated
to St. Lawrence, The parish is hounded on the east by
the river Avon, which falls into Bigbury bay, an inlet
of the English channel, the navigation of which is
somewhat dangerous: the coast is indented with several
roves, which afford convenient retreats for smugglers.

BIGBY, a parish in the southern division of the
wapentake of YARBOROUGH, parts of LiNpsEy, county
of LINCOLN, 4% miles (E.) from Glandford-Bridge, con-
taining 190 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £18. 10. 10., and in the patronage of
Robert C. Elwes, Esq. The church is dedicated to All
Saints, .

BIGGE'S, or CARLISLE'S, QUARTER, a townshi
in the parish of Lone HomrsLry, western division of
MorreTH ward, county of NORTHUMBERLAND, con-
taining 262 inhabitants.

BIGGIN, a township in that part of the parish of
WirxsworTH which i¢ in the hundred of ArrLETREE,
county of Dxnsy, 54 miles (E.byN.) from'Ashbourn,
containing 160 inhabitants, This place is in the ho-
nour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within the
jurisdiction of & court of pleas hetd at Tatbury every
third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts under 40s
Here was formerly a church, or chapel, buat for many
years not even-the site of it has been known, -

BIGGIN, a township in the parish of Kine.Frw-
‘TON,.pavtly within -the liberty of Sv. PxrEr of York,
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East riding, and partly in the upper division of the wa-
penteke of Bargsrone-Asu, West riding, of the county
of Yorx, 6} miles (W.N.W.) from Selby, containing
164 inhabitants. The plant teasel (Dipsacus Fullonum),
used in dressing woollen cloth, is said to bave been first
cultivated here in this county.

BIGGLESWADE, a market town and parish in the
hundred of BieGLESWADE, county of Brprorp, 104
miles (E.8.E.) from Bedford, and 45 (N.N.W.) from
London, on the road to York, containing, with the
hamlet of Holme with Stratton, 2778 inhabitants. This
town is pleasantly situated on the river Ivel, which is
crosged by two stone bridges, and which, by act of
parliament, has been made navigable to its junction
with the Ouse, whereby the neighbourhood is supplied
with coal, timber, and various articles of merchandise.
A cousiderible part of the town was destroyed by fire
in 1785, to which circumstance its improved condition
and handsome appearance may be attributed. The
houses are uniformly built of brick, the air is pure and
salubrious, and the inhabitants are amply supplied with
excellent water from numerous springs. The environs,
abounding with elegant villas and picturesque scenery,
present a pleasing appearance, The making of white
thread-lace and edging affords employment to a consi-
derable part of the female population; but the town
derives its principal support from being situated on the
north road, whence the continued traflic it cnjoys, The
market, which is on Wednesday, is considerable for
grain : fairs are held on February 13th, the Saturday in
Easter week, Whit-Monday, August 2nd, and November
8th, for horses and live stock of every kind. The town
is within the jurisdiction of the county magistrates,
who hold & petty session for the hundreds of Biggles
wade, Clifton, and Wixamtree, -

The living is a discharged vicarage, in the peculiar
jurisdiction and patronage of the Prebendary of Biggles-
wade in the Cathedral Church of Lincoln, rated in the
king's books at £10. The church, dedicated to St. An.
drew, and formerly collegiate, is an ancient and vener-
able structure, in the early style of English architec-
ture; the chancel was rebuilt in 1467, by John Reeding,
Archdeacon of Bedford, whose arms are carved on some
ancient wooden stalls in the north aisle. A chantry be-
longing to the guild of the Holy Trinity was anciently
founded in the church, the revenue of which, at the dis-
solution, was £7. There are places of worship for Bap-
tists and Wesleyan Methodists. Sir John Cotton, in
1726, bequeathed £ 1800 for charitable uses, directing it
to be laid out in the purchase of lands, two-ninths of
the rental of which were to be given as a salary to a
schoolmaster, who, together with the boys, is nominated
by the lord of the manor, and one-ninth to the vicar of
the parish: the proceeds are sbout £36 per armomi ;
twelve boys are taught gratuitously, There is ulso an
endowment of €13 a year, given by Edward Peake, in
1755, for the instruction of eight mere children. In
1770, & yellow earthen pot, containing three huadred
gold coins of the reign of Henry VI;, was discovered by
8 ploughman, in 8 field peur the manor-house ; ‘they
were vather larger in dismeter than a half-erown, and
twenty graina less in weight than a guines. Qo the ab-
verse was o ahip, with the figure of & king it armour,
holding in ene:hand aeword, and in the other & shidld,
on ‘whith ‘were quartared ‘the arma of England aad
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France ; on the gide of the ship was a lion passant, be-
tween two fleurs de lis: .on the reverse was a cross be-
¢ween four lions passant, crowned with the legend “Jesus
autem transiens per medium illorum ibat,”

BIGHTON, a parish in the bundred of Bismor's
gurroN, Alton (North) division of the county of
SouTHAMPTON, 14 mile (N.E. by E.) from New Alres-
ford, containing 231 inhabitants, The living is a rec-
tory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester,
rated in the king's books at £19. 8. 1§., and in the pa-
tronege of the Duke of Buckingham. The church is
dedicated to All Saints. Bighton is within the jurisdic-
tion of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every
Thuraday, for the recovery of debts to any amount.

BIGLANDS, a joint township with Gamelsby, in
the parish of Aikron, ward and county of CumBER-
LAND, 4 miles (N.) fromn Wigton, containing, with Ga-
melsby, 191 inhabitants, A eulpbureous spring was
discovered here about 1775, the water of which is much
used for cutaneous complaints. ‘

BIGNALL-END, a township in the parish of Aup-
LEY, northern division of the hundred of PirEmiLL,
county of STAFFORD, containing 308 inhabitants,

BIGNOR, a parish in the hundred of Bury, rape of
ARUNDEL, county of Susskx, 54 miles (S. by E.) from
Petworth, containing 138 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chichester,
rated in the king's books at £8. 8. 64., and in the pa-
tronage of the Crown. The church is chiefly in the
early English style, but has some decorated portions
intermixed. There are vestiges of a Roman pavement
at a short distance eastward from the village.

BILBOROUGH, a parish in the southern division
of the wapentake of Broxrtow, county of Norring-
HAM, 4 miles (W.N. W.) from Nottingham, containing
291 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in
the archdeaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £3. 12, 6., and in the pa-
tronage of T. Webb Edge, Esq. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Martin. Here are some coal-works. The
hamlet of Broxtow, in this parish, was anciently & place
of considerable importance, having given name to the
wapentake.

BILBROUGH, = parish in the ainsty of the city,
and East riding of the county, of York, 4% miles
(N.E.) from Tadcaster, containing 260 inhabitants, The
living is & perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of York, and in the patronage of T. L. Fairfax,
Esg, Thomas, Lord Fairfax, the cclebrated parlia-
mentary general, who died in 1671, was interred in the
church. here. A school is endowed with about £15 per
annum, for the instruction of twenty-two children.

BILBY, a joint township with Barnby-Moor, in
that part:of the parish of BLyrr which is in the Hat-
fleld division of the wapentake of BasseTLAw, county
of Norriwauay, 4§ miles (W.N.w.) from East Ret.
ford, - The population is returned with Barnby-Moor.

- ILDESTON, or BILSON, a parish (formerly 2
wrket  sown) in the hundred of Cosrorp, county of
Surrora, 144 . wiles- (W, N, W.) from Ipswich, end 66
M. B.by N,), from Londcn, containing 814 inhabitants.
The diving-ie a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Sudbury,
and dioceso of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£1%. 18, 46§, snd in the of the Rev. Charles
Sobuson, ;- Fhe. chmwch, dedicated to St. Mary, is &
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handsome spacious structure. There is a place of wor-
ship for Baptists. The manufacture of blankets and
woollen cloth was formerly carried on here; but at
present the chief employment of the inhabitants con-
6ists in epinning yarn, The market, now disused, was
beld on Wednesday : there are fairs on Ash-Wedresday
and Holy Thursday. In 1535, a school-house was given
to the parish, but the name of the donor has not been
preserved.

BILHAM, a township in that part of the parish of
Hooron-PaeNELL which ig in the northern division
of the wapentake of STrRavrorTh and TickmiLL, West
riding of the county of Yorx, 7 miles (W. N, W.) from
Doncaster, containing 74 inhabitants, Strata of coal
and limestone, and a kind of sand used in the foundries
at Rotherham and Sheflield, exist here.

BILLERICAY, a market town and chapelry in the
parish of GREAT Bursteap, hundred of BanrstanLy,
county of Essex, 95 miles (8.8.W.) from Chelmsford,
and 24 (E.N,E.) from London. The population is re-
turned with the parish, The name, anciently Belenca,
is of uncertain derivation, and of the history of the
place, few particulars of importance are recorded.
From the discovery of Roman urns containing bones,
glass vessels, and other relics, and from the traces of a
Roman vallum and ditch at Blunt's Walls, nearly a mile
distant, this place appears to have been not unknown to
the Romans, who had probably a station here, though
the exact site has not heen ascertained. The town ix
pleasantly situated on an eminence overlooking an ex-
tensive and richly cultivated vale, and commanding a
fine prospect of the surrounding country, which abounds
with beautiful scenery, and a distant view of the ship-
ping on the Thames: it has of late been much im-
proved by the erection of several large and well-built
houses. The only branches of manufacture are those
of silk braid laces and wire riband, and they are at pre-
sent declining. The market is on Tuesday : fairs are
beld on August 2nd and October 9th, principally for
cattle, Courts leet and baron are held occasionally, at
the former of which constables and other officers for
the internal regulation of the town are appointed. The
living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the vicarage of
Great Burstead, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and dio-
cese of London, endowed with £1200 parliamentary
grant. The chapel, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, is
an ancient brick building in the centre of the town
There are places of worship for Baptists, the Society of
Friends, and Independents. The Rev. Mr. Bayley, rec-
tor of Benfleet, in 1654, bequeathed an estate of £20
per annum for the education of ten poor children.
There is a parochial almshouse for poor females,

BILLESDON, a parish in the hundred of GARTREE,
county of LEicester, 8% miles (E. by 8,) from Leices-
ter, containing, with the chapelries of Goadby and Rol-
leston, 751 inhabitants. The living is a vicarage, in
the archdeaconry of Leicester, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at #£14. 10., and ip the pa-
tronage of the Rev. H.Greene. The church is dedicated
to St. John the Baptist. A school-house was built, in
165¢, by William Sharp, which bas since heen en-
dowed, by various benefactors, with property producing
about £10 per aunumn. IHere are some traces of a
Roman csmp, fortified with a deep ditch and a high
rampart,
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BILLESLEY, a parish in the Stratford division
of the hundred of Barvicuway, county of Warwick,
34 miles (W. N.W.) from Stratford upon Avon, con-
taining 26 inhabitants, - The living is a discharged rec-
tory, i the archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester,
rated in the king's books at £5. 4. 7., endowed with
£400 private benefaction, and £400 royal hounty, and
in the patronage of M. and J. Mills, Esqrs.  The church
iy dedicated to All Saints.

BILLING (GREAT), a parish in the hundred of
SreLHOE, county of NorTHAMPTON, 4 miles (E.N.E.)
from Northampton, containing 334 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's hooks
at £19, and in the patronage of the Principal and Fel-
lows of Brasenose College, Oxford. The church is de-
dicated to St. Andrew. This parish has a commuuication
with the North sea, through the Northampton canal
and the river Nen. An almshouse was founded by John
Freeman, Esq., in the reign of James L, for one man
and four women, Sir Isaac Wake, a distinguished scho-
lar and diplomatist in the same rcign, was born here,
in 1575,

BILLING (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
SpELHOE, county of NorRTHAMPTON, 3% miles (E. by N.)
from Northampton, containing 76 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton,
and diocese of Peterhorough, rated in the king's hooks
at £10. 2. 11., and in the patronage of Earl Brownlow.
The church is dedicated to All Saints, The river Nen
passes through the parish.

BILLINGBOROUGH, a parish in the wapentuke of
AvELAND, parts of Kestevex, county of Lincouwn, 3
miles (£.) from Folkingham, containing 745 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£6. 1. 8, and in the patronage of Earl Fortescue, The
church, dedicated to St. Andrew, has a fine tower and
spire, and displays chiefly the decorated style of English
architecture. Mary Toller, in 1671, gave land produ-
cing about £25 per annum, for the endowment of a free
school.

BILLINGE (CHAPEL-END), a chapelry in that
part of the parish of Wigan which is in the hnndred
of West DERsBY, county palatine of Lawcaster, 54
miles (8. W.) from Wigan, containing 1002 inhabitants,
The living is & perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200 private be-
nefaction, £200 royal bounty, and £1000 parliamentary
grant, and in the patronage of the Rector of Wigan,
The manufacture of cotton is here carried on to a
limited extent. A charity school here has a trifling
endowment,

BILLINGE (HIGHER-END), a township in that
part of the parish of Wican which is in the hundred
of Wesr DERrBY, county palatine of LANCASTER, 5 miles
(W.8.W.) from Wigan, containing 670 inhabitants. A
school here is endowed with £20 per annum,

BILLINGFORD, a parish in the hundred of Eaus-
HAM, county of Nomrork, 14 mile (B.) from Scole,
containing 190 inhabitants. The living is 4 discharged
rectory, with that of Little Thorpe annexed, in the arch-
deaconry of Norfolk; and diocese of Norwich; rated in
the king's books at £9, and in the patronage of George
Wilson, Esq. The church is dedicated to St. Leonard.
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BILLINGFORD, a parish in the hundred of Evns-
ForD, county of NorroLx, 34 miles (8.8, W.) from
Foulsham, containing 248 inhabitants, The living isa
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £7. 10,,
aud in the patropage of T. W, Coke, Esq. A grant of
a fair to be held here was obtained in the 33rd of Ed-
ward 1. At Beck Hall, in this parish, now the property
.of Mr. Coke, an hospital, with a chapel dedicated to St.
Thomas & Becket, was founded in the beginning of the
reign of Heary 1L ,

BILLINGYAM, a parish in the north-eastern divi-
sion of StocxroN ward, county palatine of Duruaw,
comprising the chapelry of Wolviston, and the townships
of Billingham, Cowpen-Bewley, and Newton-Bewley,
and containing 1154 inkabitants, of which number, 395
are in the township of Billingham, 24 miles (E.) from
Stockton upon Tees. The living is a vicarage, in the
-archdeaconry and diocese of Durham, rated in the king's
books at £11. 3. 14, and in the patronage of the Deun
-and Chapter of Durham, The church is dedicated to
St. Cuthbert. This is a place of considerable antiquity,
baving been the scene of a battle fought in the time of
Eardulph, Kiug of Northumberland., Here is a school
with a small endowment.

RILLINGHAY, a parish in the first division of the
wapentake of Langor, parts of KEsTEVEN, county of
LincoLw, 94 miles (N, E.) from Sleaford, containing,
with the chapelry of Walcott, and the township of Dog-
dyke, 1554 inhabitants. Theliving is a discharged vicar-
age, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's hooks at £13. 14,, and in the patronage
of Earl Fitzwilliam. The church is dedicated to St.
Michael. There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
Methodists.

BILLINGLEY, a township in that part of the
pavish of Dareixep which is in the northern division
of the wapentake of SrrarrorTH and TickHILL, West
riding of the county of York, 6} miles (E, by 8.) from
Barnesley, containing 214 inhabitants.

BILLINGSHURST, a parish in the hundred of West
Easwnrrn, rape of ARUNDEL, county of Sussex, 63
miles (8.W. by W.) from Horsham, containing 1369 in-
habitants, of which number, 794 are in Fast Billings-
hurst, and 575 in West Billingshurst. The living is a
vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chichester,
rated in the king's books at £9. 6. 04., and in the pa-
tronage of Sir Harry Goring, Bart, The church is de-
dicated to St. Mary. There is a place of worship for
Unitarians. The river Arun rises in this parish, and
the Arup and Wey Junction canal passes. through it :
it is also intersected by a Roman road, called Stane-
street, :

BILLINGSIDE, a township in that part of the pa-
rish of LaxcuesTER which is in the western division
of CuesTEr ward, county palatine of Durnam, 13 shiles
{N.w.) from Durbam, containing 45 inhabitants. -

BILLINGSLEY, a parish in the hundred of Bror-
TESDEN, county of Siver, .":i miles (8. by Wi) from
Bridgenorth, containing 176 inhabijtants, = The living is
4 disc d -rectory, in the archdeaconry of Salop, and
diocese of Heveford, rated i the king's books at £4.13.4.,
endowed with €200 private benefaction, and £200ropal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Marquis of-Cleve~

land. The.church is dedicated to St. Mary, Uuder
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the name Billigesleage, historians mention this place as
the scene of & congress, in 1055, between King Harold
and Griffin Prince of Wales, at which they engaged to
observe mutual peace and umity. Dr. Thomas Hyde,
Professor of ‘Oriental Literaturc at Oxford, was born
here, in 1636.

BILLINGTON, a chapelry in the parish of Leicu-
roN-Buzzarp, hundred of MansuEaDp, county of Bep-
rorp, £ miles (8, E.) from Leighton-Buzzard, contain-
ing 237 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy,
endowed with £200 parliamentary grant, and within
the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Preben-
dary of Leighton-Buzzard in the Cathedral Church of
Lincoln.

BILLINGTON, a chapelry in the parish, and lower
division of the hundred, of Bracksuny, county pala-
tine of LANCASTER, 5 miles (N.N. E.) from Blackburn,
containing 922 inhabitants. The living is a perpctual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester,
cendowed with £200 private benmefaction, £600 royal
bounty, and £600 parliamentary grant, and in the
patronage of the Viear of Blackburn. Here is a free
school, with an endowment of about £14 per annum.

BILLISBORROW, a township in the parish of Gar-
sTANG, hundred of AMOUNDERNESS, county palatine of
LaNCASTER, 4% miles (8,8.E.) from Garstang, contain-
ing 209 inhabitants. There is a place of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists, John Cross, in 1718, bequeathed
property producing about £46 per annum, for the en-
dowment of a frec school for children of the tovmships
of Billishorrow and Myerscough.

BILLOCKBY, a parish in the western division of
the hundred of FLEGG, county of NowrroLk, 24 miles
(N.LE.) from Acle, containing 63 inhabitants, The liv-
ing is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and dio-
cese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £2.8.9.,
endowed with £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of Charles Lucas, Esq. The church is dedicated to
All Saints,

BILL-QUAY, a village in the chapelry of NETHER
HewonTh, parish of JArROW, eastern division of Cups-
Ter ward, county palatine of Durnaam, 3% miles (E.)
from Gateshead. The population is returned with
Nether Heworth. The village lies on the southern
bauk of the river Tyne. The Arkendale mining com-
pany have an extensive refinery here for extracting sil-
ver from lead-ore, and "an establishment for making
shect Jead ; and there are manufactories for glass bottles,
fire-bricks, colours, and mustard; also an establishment
for the distillation of oil from bones, the calx of which,
after huving been reduced to ashes, is used in making
ivory-black, &c. ; there is likewise a yard for ship-build-
ing. In a deep dene, called Catdene, now overgrown
with forest trees and thorns, are exiensive quarries,
fram which. it is said the stone was obtained for build-
ing the walls of Newcastle.

. “BILLY-ROW, a joint township with Crook, in the
parish of Bpaxcererm, nortb-western division of Dax-
Liyerox . ward, connty palatine of Duruam, 7 miles
(NW. by'N.) fram,Bishop-Auckland. The population
18 Teburned, with Crook, o

- BILNEY {EAST), a parish in the hundred of Laun-
Wg:gaf . NorroLk, 5 miles (N.N.T ‘l‘;:) hfrom
: Jereham, pontaining 172 inhabitants. iving
i adigchargeid rectory, in the archdenconry and diocese
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of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £5. 14. 2.,
endowed with £200 private benefaction, and £200
royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Rev, C. Mun-
nings. The church is dedicated to St. Mary. Thomas
pﬂney, a learned divine, who was burnt at Norwich
in 1531, for preaching against popery, is said to have
been born here,

BILNEY (WEST), a parish in the Lynn division of
thf: hundred of Freesriper, county of NORPOLK, 7
““1?5 (S.E. by E.) from Lynn-Regis, containing 198 in-
habitants. The living is a perpotual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, endowed with
£600 royal bounty, and £200 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of Jobn Dalton, Esq. The church
is dedicated to St. Cecilia.

BILSBY, a parish in the Wold division of the
hundred of CaLceworTa, parts of Linpsgy, county of
LiNcoLn, £ of a mile (E. by N.) from Alford, contain-
ing, with the hamlet of Thurlby, 416 inhabitants. The
living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £13, 3. 4., and in
the patronage of Mrs, Wayet. The church is dedicated
to the Holy Trinity, Here is o school with a small
endowment,

BILSDALE (WEST SIDE), a township in the pa-
rish of llawnpy, wapentake of Birvrorta, North rid-
ing of the county of York, 8 miles (N.w, by N.) from
Helmsley, containing 127 inhabitants, In 1757, John
Smales and Gregory Elsley bequeathed £120. 5., di-
recting the proceeds to be applied to teaching six poor
boys of this township.

BILSDALE-MIDCABLE, a chapelry in the parish
of HrLmsLEY, wapentake of Ryepace, North riding of
the county of York, 7 miles (N. N.W.) from Helmsley,
containing, with Bilsdale-Kirkham, 780 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
of Cleveland, and diocese of York, endowed with £800
royal bounty, and £ 800 parliamentary gram, and in the
patronage of the Vicar of Helmsley. 'Therc is a meet-
ing-house for the Society of Friends,

BILSINGTON, a parish partly in the liberty of
Rou~xey-Magrsn, but chiefly in the hundred of Nrw-
cuvrca, lathe of Suepway, county of Kent, 63 miles
(S.8.E.) from Ashford, containing 299 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Canterbury, endowed with £200 private
benefaction, and £ 200 royal bounty, and in the patron-
age of T. Rider, Esq. The church is dedicated to St.
Peter and St. Paul. A fair, formerly called Woodstock
fair, is held here on July 5th. The Grand Military, or
Shorncliffe and Rye, canal passcs throngh the parish.
There are some remains of a priory of Augustine ca-
nons, founded in 1253, the revenue of which, at the
dissolution, was £81. 1. 6.

BILSTHORPE, a parish in the South-clay division
of the wapentake of Bassgrraw, county of Norring-
HAM, 5 miles (8.) from Ollerton, containing 252 inha-
hitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Nottingham, and diocese of York,
rated in the king's books at £5. 1. 8., and in the pa-
tronage of the Rev. Lumley Savile, The church is
dedicated to St. Margaret. .

BILSTON, a market town and chapelry in that
part of the parish of WoLveruameroN which is ir
the northern division of the hundred of Seispon, coun



BIL

ty of STAFFORD, 3 miles (8. R.) from Wolverhampton,
19 (5. by E.) from Stafford, and 120 (N. W.) from Lon-
don, containing 12,003 inhabitants. This place, for-
merly belonging to the portionists, or prebendaries, of
Wolverhampton, and in their charter called Bilereton,
was a royal demesne at the time of the Conquest, and
in the reign of Edward III, under the name Billestune,
was certified to be free of toll. Previously to the intro-
duction of the iron-works, Bilston contained only a
few private houses; but, from the shundance and rich
quality of its mines of coal and iron-stone, it rapidly
increased in extent and population, and has become
one of the largest towns in the county. The town is
situated on rising ground, in the centre of an extensive
district abounding with numerous foundries, forges, fur-
naces, steam-engines, and other works necessary for the
various processes of the ivon trade, of which the smoke
by day, and the fires by night, present a scene sin-
gularly impressive and terrific. 1t is irregularly built,
and is nearly two miles in length : the principal streets
contain several substantial and handsome houses, and
throughout the neighbourhood are scattered in every
direction the numerous habitations of persons employed
in the different works. The manufacture of tin, japan-
ned and enamelled wares of every kind, iron-wire, nails,
screws, iran-gates, pallisades, machinery, steam-engines,
and all the heavier articles in the iron trade, is carvied
on to a very considerable extent: there are several
mills for slitting the pig-iron into bars, and many iron
and brass foundries. Clay, of which the coarser kind
of pottery-ware is made, and a particularly fine sand
for casting, are found in great abundance: there are
also quarries of a species of very hard stone, much
esteemed for grindstones, troughs, and for building ; it
lies in horizontal strata of twelve layers, gradually in-
creasing in thickness from the surface. The Birming-
ham and Staffordshire canal, which passes near the
town, and several branch canals in the vicinity, afford
the means of conveying the manufactures of the town,
the produce of the mines, and the massive productions
of the foundries, to various parts of the kingdom. The
market days, established by an act of parliament ob-
tained in 1825, are Menday and Saturday; and the
fairs, which are toll-free, are on Whit-Monday and the
Monday preceding the Michaclmas fair at Birming-
ham. Constables and other officers are appointed at
the court leet of the lord of the manor. A court of
requests, for the recovery of debts not exceeding £5,
is held under an act passed in the 48th of George III,,
the jurisdiction of which extends over the townships
of Bilston and Willenhall, and the parishes of Wednes-
bury and Darlaston, excepting the manor of Bradley,
which is within the jurisdiction of a similar court pre-
vipusly established at Oldbury. The living is a perpe-
tunal curacy, within the jurisdiction of the court of the
‘rayal peculifir of Wolverhampton, endowed with £400
private benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the
potronage of the resident householders. The-chapel,
dedicated to St. Leonard, was rebuilt in 1826, A
church, dedicated to St. Mary, and containing nine
hundred and fifty-six free sittings, was erected in 1829,
at an expense of £7223, 6. 1., part of which was de.
frayed by grant from the parliamentary commissioners ;
it is an elegant structure in the later style of English
architecture, with a handsome tower.  There are places
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of worship for Baptists, Independents, and Primitive and
Wesleyan Methodists, A Blue-coat school was founded
and endowed by Humphrey Perry, Esq., of Stafford,.for
clothing and instructing six boys, since which it has
received a trifling bequest for the education of two
more, » :

BILSTONE, a chapelry in the parish of Norton
juxta Twycross, hundred of Srarkensor, county of
LeicestERr, 3} miles (N. W, by W.) from Market-Bos-
worth, containing 176 inhabitants. It is in the honour
of Tuthury, duchy of Luncaster, and within the jurisdic-
tion of o court of pleas held at Tutbury every third
Tuesday, for the recovery of debts under 40s,

BILTON, e parish in the Rugby division of the
hundred of KniRTLOW, county of WARWICK, 14 mile
(wW.8.w.) from Rugby, containing 401 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Coven-
try, and diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the
king’s books at £16. 10. 74., and in the patronage of
the Rev. J. T. Parker. The church, dedicated to St.
Mark, is principally Norman, of which style it exhibits
some good specimens ; the tower and spire are of fter
date. Bilton Hall, with the estate belonging to it, was
purchased, in the early part of the last century, hy
Joseph Addison, Esq., the poet and moralist, who spent
& considerable portion of the latter part of his life here,
where he wrote his “ Evidences of the Christion Re-
ligion,” Miss Addison, his only child, retired hither
towards the close of her life, where she died, in 1797.
A school was endowed with £20 per annum, the be-
quest of Langton Freeman, Esq., in 1783,

BILTON, a chapelry in that part of the parish of
Swine which is in the middle division of the wapen-
take of Horoer~Ess, Bast riding of the county of
York, 44 miles (N. £.) from Kingston upon Hull, con-
taining 91 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy,
in the archdeaconry of the East riding, and diocese
of York, endowed with £400 private benefaction, and
£ 800 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Han.
and Rev. W, H. Dawnay. The chapel is dedicated to
St. Peter.

BILTON, a parish within the ainsty of the city,
and East riding of the county, of Yorx, comprising
the townships of ‘Bickerton, Bilton, and Tockwith,
uud containing 808 inhabitants, of which number, 223
are in the township of Bilton, 5 miles (E. by N.) from
Wetherby. e living is & discharged vicarage, in the
peculiar jurisdiction and patrondge of theéPrebendary
of Bilton in the Cathedral Church of York, rated m
the king’s books at £3. 16. 04, endowed with £400
private benefaction, £200 royal beunty, and £300 par-
limentary grant. The church is dedicated to St,
Helen. At Syningthwaite, in this pavish, Bertram
Haget, in 1160, founded a Cistercian uunnery. for «
prioress and twelve nuns, in honour of the Blessed Vir-
gin, which, at the dissolution, had a revenue of £62, §..

BILTON, a joint township with Harrogate, in that
part of ‘the parish of KNaREsnoRoveE which is in the
lower division of the wapentake of Craro, West riding
of the ooun?v of York, 24 miles (W.) from Knares.
borough.  The population is retirned with Harro~
gate, A free achool is endowed with ahout £30 per
annum, given by Richard Taylos,.in 1785.. . In. the
né{\hbmhw& -are sevéral petrifying springs, anil ome-
with @ sulphureoys irapregnation. ~ =~
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- BINACRE, a parigh in the hundréd of Bryruive,
county of SurroLk, 6 miles (N. by E.) from Southwold,
containing €24 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
with that of Easton-Bavents and the vicarage of North
Hales counsolidated, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£18, and in the patronage of Sir T. S. Gooch, Bart.
The church is dedicated to St. Michael. About half a
mile from the sea is Binacre Broad, a sheet of fresh
water comprising an area. of one hundred acres, and
ahounding with pike and other fish. About fifty years
ago, in forming a. new turnpike road from Yarmouth
to London, through Binacre, the workmen discovered
gn urn containing coins of Vespasian, Trajan, Adrian,
Antoninus Pius, and Marcus Aurelius.

BINBROOKE, a village (formerly s market town)
comprising the parishes of St. Gabriel and St. Mary,
in the southern division of the wapentake of WavLsa-
crO¥T, purts of Linpsey, county of Lincoln, 8 miles
(E. N. E.) from Market-Rasen. St. Gabriel's, con-
taining 497 inhabitants, is a discharged vicarage, within
the’ peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean and Chapter of
Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £8, endowed with
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Pre-
bendary of Milton in the Cathedral Church of Lincoln.
St. Mary's, containing, with the extra-parochial liberty
of Orforth, 293 inhabitants, is a discharged rectory,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in
the king's books at £10. 4. 2., and in the patronage
of the Crown. The Wesleyan Methodists have a place
of worship here. There are extensive rabbit-warrens
in the neighbourhood, and considerable business is
done in the dressing of skins for furriers. A fair is
held on Euaster-Tuesday, on which day there are also
horse-races, Here is a charity school.

BINCHESTER, a township in that part of the
parish of ST. ANpreEw Avuckranp which is in the
north-western division of DarviNngTon ward, county
palatine of Duruam, 2 miles (N. by E.) from Bishop-
Auckland, containing 49 inhabitants. Binchester ap-
pears to have been a Roman station, called Vinovia by
Antoninus, and Binovium by Ptolemy, situated on the
Fosse-way. Mr. Cade considers it to have been sacred
to Bacchus, and to have derived its name, Finovium,
from the festivals held at it, in honour of that deity.
The fortress occupied an clevated site rising from the
bank of the river Wepr, and the station comprised a
plot of about twenty-nine acres of ground, within which,
and in its vicinity, the remains of a hypocaust, altars,
urns, and other relics, have been found.

BINCOMBE, a pHrish in the liberty of FraMpTON,
Bridport division of the county of Dorser, 5 miles
(8. by W.) from Dorchester, containing 178 inhabitants.
The living Is a rectory, annexed to that of Broadway,
“in the archdeaconty of Dorset, and diocese of Bristol,
rated fa the king's book#"at £9. 1. 55. The church
is dedicated to the Holy Trinity. The river Way runs
through ‘the parieh, in which are quarries of fine stone,

Ll il wprk Numerous barrows are visible

¢, & chapelry in the parish of Weer
of WysrsourN and SINGLETON, rape
ddunty of StseEx, ¢ miles (N.) from
iy "07 inhabitants. The chapel is

id 'tb e unconsecrated. :

o
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BINEGAR, a parish in the hundred of Werus-
Foruwm, county of SomerserT, 4 miles (N.) from Shep-
ton-Mallet, containing $63 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, within the peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean of
Wells, rated in the king's books at £13. 12, 84., and
in the patronage of the Prebendary of Whitchurch in
the Cathedral Church of Wells. The church is dedi-
cated to the Holy Trinity. A large fair, noted for the
sale of horses, formerly held at Wells, was removed
hither in the seventeenth century, in consequence of
the Ela,guc, and iv held during the whole of Whitsun-
week,

BINFIELD, a parish in the hundred of Cookwam,
county of Berks, 3 miles (N. E.) from Wokingham,
containing 1057 inhabitants. The living is a rectory,
in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of Salisbury,
rated in the king's books at £18. 17. 1., and in the
patronage of the Crown. The church is dedicated
to All Saints. A National school is endowed with
whout £23 per annum, Pope, the poet, in the early part
of his life, resided with his father in this village, where
he wrote his poem entitled “ Windsor Forest.” Traces
of a large intrenchment, called Cwmsar's Camp, supposed
to have been occupied by Julius Casar during his inva-
sion of Britain, are still visible.

BINGFIELD, a chapelry in the parish of St.Joun
Lrr, gsouthern divigion of Tinpavx ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 6} miles (N.N.E.) from Hexham,
containing 111 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, within the jurisdiction of the peculiar court of
Hexham, belonging to the Archbishop of York, endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £600 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of Col. and Mrs. Beaumont, The
chapel is dedicated to St. Mary. A school here is en-
dowed with £10 per annum, Near the Erring-hourn,

“a little northward from the village, there is a mineral

spring, the water of which is so powerful, that neither
fish nor any kind of insect can live in it.

BINGHAM, a market town and parish in the north-
ern division of the wapentake of BINGHAM, county
of NorringHAM, 10 miles (E.) from Nottingham, and
123 (N.W. by N.) from London, containing, with part of
the township of Newton, 1574 inhabitants, This place,
which, previously to the Conquest, was possessed by
two Saxon chieftains, appears to have been anciently
more extensive than at present: it had a college,
or guild, founded in honour of St.Mary. The town
is pleasantly situated in the fertile vale of Belvoir,
and consists principally of two parallel streets, one of
which leads directly into a spacious market-place ;
some smaller streets have been formed within the last
twenty years. The houscs, though irregularly built,
are neat, and several of them are of handsome appear-
ance: the town is well paved, and amply supplied with
water. The market is on Thursday : fairs,are held on
February 13th and 14th, for draught horses, on Whit-
Monday for toys, and November 6th and 9th for young
horses and hogs. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry of Nottingham, and diccese of York, ruted
in the king's books at £44. 7. 11,, and in the patronage
of the Earl of Chesterfield. The church, dedicated to
All Saints, is an ancient and spacious cruciform strac-
ture, partaking of the early and decorated styles of
English architecture, with a square embattled snd
highly enriched tower, crowned with the remains of
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statues, which have heen substituted for pinnacles, and
surmounted by a lofty spire, which, with the upper
stage of the tower, is of later erpgction: within the
church are some beantiful specimens of foliage and
sculpture, of clegant desipn and elaborate execution.
There are places of worship for Primitive and Wesleyan
Methodists. An endowment of £8 per anpum, for a
free school, has been augmented with a dividend of £10
per annum, payable on the sum of £150, raised by the
performance of plays, and invested in the Nottingham
and Grantham canal, by a few individuals of the town.
The Roman Fosse-way, in its course through the parish,
passes by a large mound, called Castle Hill, the site of
an ancient fortress, Mr. Robert White, the astronomer,
and editor of the Ephemeris which bears his name,
was a native of this parish, and is interred here; a
mural tablet in the church has been inscribed to his
memory. Abbot, Archbishop of Canterbury; Wren,
Bishop of Ely; and Hanmer, Bishop of Bangor; were
successively rectors of this parish, from which they
were promoted to their respective sces, in the seven-
teenth century.

BINGLEY, a parish in the upper division of the
wapentake of Sxyrack, West riding of the county of
York, comprising the market town of Bingley, and
the township of East and West Morton, and contain-
ing 7375 inhabitants, of which number, 6176 are in the
town of Bingley (including Micklethwaite), 37 miles
(W.8.w.) from York, and 202 (N.N. W.) from London.
This place is pleasantly situated on an eminence near
the river Aire, and consists principally of one long
street, containing several respectable and well-built
houses ; it is plentifully supplied with water : the air is
salubrious, and the environs, which are richly wooded,
abound with agreeable and diversified scenery. A news-
room has been recently established, which is well con-
ducted and liberally supported. The principal branch
of manufacture is that of woysted yurn, which is exten-
sively carried on in the town and neighbourhood : there
are some smaller factories for the spinning of cotton,
and a manufactory for paper, together with a consider-
#ble trade in malt: the Leeds and Liverpuol canal
passcs near - the town. The market is on Tuesday:
fairs are held on January 25th, and August 25th, 26th,
and 27th, for linen, horses, and horned cattle. The
living is a diecharged vicarage, within the peculiar juris-
diction of the court of the manars of Crossley, Bingley,
and Pudsey, rated in the king's books at £7. 6. &,,
endowed with £400 private benefaction, £200 royal
bounty, and £300 parliamentary grant, and in the pe-
tronage of the Crown. The church, dedicated to All
Saints, is' & neat edifice, in the later style of English
architecture, There are places of worship for Baptists,
Independents, and Methodists, The free grammar
school was founded in the reign of Henry VIIL, and
endowed with land and tenements producing at present
nearly £300 per annum, subject to certain payments to
the poor: the premises comprise & large school-room,
and a house and garden for the master.: There is also
‘s National school, capable of admitting eight hundred
scholars. Mre. Barah Rhodes, in 1784, gave five cot-

tages, which she endowed as almshouses for five aged

widows, who receive £3 per anunum each: there are
alzo several bequests for - distribution in bread and
olothes among the poor, and for other charitable uses. .
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BING-WESTON, e qusrter in that part of  the
parish of Wortren which is in the hundred of Cain-
BURY, county of Saror, containing, with Beachfield,
Walton, and Rewins-Farm, 155 inhabitants.

BINHAM, a parish in the northern division of the
hundred of GrEEnNHOE, county of NorroLk, 4 miles
(N.E. by E.) from Little Walsingham, containing 438
inhabitants, The living is a discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich, rated in the
king's books at £6. 13. 4., endowed with £200 pri-
vate benefaction, and £800 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of T. T. Clarke, Esq. The church, dedicated
to the Holy Cross, belonged to a Benedictine priory,
founded in the reign of Heunry L, the revenue of which,
at the dissolution, was £160. 1.: the western front
affords a fine specimen of the early style of English
architecture.

BINLEY, a parish in the Kirby division of the
hundred of KN16uTLOW, county of Warwick, 23 miles
(E. by 8.) from Coventry, containing, with the liberty
of Earnsford, 211 inhabitunts. The living is a perpe-
tual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Coveuntry, and dio-
cese of Lichfild and Coventry, and in the patronage
of Earl Craven. The church, dedicated to St. Bartho-
lomew, was built by Lord Craven, and consecrated in
1772, The Rev. Thomas Wagstaffe, who wrote a de-
fence of Charles 1., was born here, and died at Rouen
in 1770. ‘

BINNINGTON, a township in the parish of Wit.-
LErBY, wapentake of Dickering, East riding of the
county of Yorg, 8 miles (8. W. by 8.) from Scarbo-
rough, containing 50 inbabitants.

BINSEY, a parish within the liberty of the city of
Oxrorp, locaily in the hundred of Wootton, county of

" Oxrorp, 2 miles (N.W.) from Oxford, containing 82

inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford, endowed with £ 600
private benefaction, and £600 royal bounty, and in th
patronage of the Dean and Canons of Christ Church
Oxford. The church, dedicated to St. Margaret, is ar
ancient structure,

BINSTEAD, a parish’ in the liberty of Easr Mg
DINA, Isle of Wight division of the county of Souvrn.
AmPTON, 5§ miles (E.N.E.) from Newport, containing
225 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated it
the king's bovks at £1.7. 1, and in the patronage of
the Bishop of Winchester. The church, dedicated to
the Holy Cross, exhibits marks of considerable anti-
quity, particularly in the arch which scparates the naye
from the chancel, and another in the north wall, now
filled up. In the vicinity arc the ancient quarries from
which part of the stonc used in the erection of Win-
chester cathedral was obtained. At Quarr, in this
parish, there are remains of an ahbey of  Cistercian
monks, which was founded, in. 1132, by Baldwin .de
Rédveriis, afterwards Earl of Devonshire ; its revenue,
at the dissolution, was £184. 1. 10, Thejr situation is
very fine, having the sca on the north, end thick woods
to the south and east. Most of the boundary wal
including above thirty acres, is' yet standing, togeths
with the remains of two gates, which foimed. the nerth
and . south entrances, The refectory, the only entirve

part of the byildings, is now e bam, snd another part
of thie site is occupied by.a farm-house erected out .«f
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the ruins. It was the burial-place of severel distin-
ished persons, amongst whom were Earl Baldwin, its
founder, and his countess Adeliza.

BINSTED, a parish in the hundred of Avrrown, Alton
(North) division of the county of Sovrwamrron, 3%
miles (E. by N.) from Alton, containing 946 inhabit-
ants. The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed to the
vicarage of Alton, in the, archdeaconry and diocese of
Winchester. The church is dedicated to St. Nicholas.
Binsted is entitled to send five children to St. Andrew’s
school in Holyburn. It is within the jurisdiction of
the Cheyney Court held at Winchester every Thursday,
for the recovery of debts to any amount.

BINSTED, a parish in the hundred of Avisvonrp,
rape of ARUNDEL, county of Sussex, 3} miles (W.
by 8.) from Arundel, containing 98 inbabitants. The
living is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£5.17. 81, and in the patronage of the Rev, M. Smelt,
The church is dedicated to St, Mary.

BINTON, a purish in the Strotford division of
the hundred of Barricaway, county of Warwick, 32
miles (W. by 8.) from Stratford upon Avon, containing
23¢ inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's
books at £8. 10, and in the patronage of the Marquis
of Hertford. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.
The navigable river Avon is here crossed by a bridge
on the road leading to Chipping-Campden.

BINTREE, a parish in the hundred of Exxsrorp,
county of Norvork, 14 mile (8. W. by w.) from Fouls-
ham, containing 333 inhabitants., The living is a rec-
tory, with that of Themelthorpe annexed, in the arch-
deaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated in
the king's books at £10, and in the patronage of Sir
Jacob Astley, Bart., The church is dedicated to St.
Swithin. The river Wensom, which separates the pa-
rish from North Elmham, is expected to be made na-
vigable to Norwich,

BIRBECK-FELLS, a hamlet partly in the parish
of Owron, East ward, aud partly in the parishes of
Crospy-RavensworTa and Smar, West ward, county
of WesTMORLAND, 4 miles (W.S8, W.) from Orton.
The population is returned with the above parishes,
A free school at Greenholme, for the education of the
children of Birbeck-Fells, Bretherdule, Routhwaite, and
Low Scales, is endowed with land producing about £40
per annum, purchased with & bequest of £400 by George
Gibson, in 17383.

BIRCH, a chapelry in the parish of MinpLrTox,
hundred of SALrorDp, county palatine of Lancasrrr,
2L miles (W.N.W.) from Middleton. The population
is returned with the township of Hopwood. The living
is & perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Chester, and in the patronage of the Rector of Mid-
dleton,  The chapel, dedicated to St. Mary, was Quilt
by meens of a parliamentary grant of £4000, and con-
secrated Deceniber 11th, 1828 ; it contains one thousand
sittings, of which five hundred and four are free. The
pitnnig Of cotton, and the manufacture of gingham,

 carried o8 # this chapelry to a limited extent.

' "BIRCH; ¢ chapelry in the parish of WARRINGTON,
handred” of Wasr Drryy, county palatine of Lancas-
TER, T wille (8, N.E.) from Warrington, with which

the Dbotnilation is retnrned. The living is & pernetual:
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curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Cliester,
endowed with £400 private benefaction, and £600
royal bounty, and in the patronage of J. Dickin-
son, Fsq.

BIRCH (GREAT), a parish in the Colchester divi-
sion of the hundred of Lexben, county of Essex, 5
miles (8. W.) from Colchester, containing, with the pa-
rish of Little Birch, 662 inhabitants. The living is a
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Colchester, and diocese
of London, rated in the king's hooks at £11, and in
the patronage of the Bishop of London. The church
is dedicated to St. Peter.  Here ig a sall endowment
for the cducation of poor children. The remains of
Birch castle are conspicuous in the village.

BIRCH (LITTLE), a parish in the Colchester di-
vision of the hundred of Lexpex, county of Kssex, 41
miles (S. W. by W.) from Colehester. The population is
returned with Great Birch. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry of Colehester, and diocese
of London, rated in the king's hooks at £5. 6. 8., and
in the patronage of Charles Round, Esq. The church,
dedicated to St. Mary, is descerated, and religious rites
are celebrated at Great Biveh, )

BIRCH (LITTLE), a parish in the upper division
of the bundred of Wormrrow, county of Herkrorp,
63 miles (8.) from Herceford, containing 310 inhabitants.
The Tiving is a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry
and divcese of Hereford, rated in the king's books at
£6. 12. 11, and in the patronage of the Governors of
Guy's Hospital, London. The church is dedicated to
St. Mary.

BIRCH (MUCH), a parish in the upper division
of the hbundred of WonrmMrrow, county of HeEreronrp,
6} miles (5. by W.) from Hereford, containing 353 in-
habitants. The living is a perpetual curacy, annexed
to the vicarage of Much Dewchurch, in the archdea-
conry and tiovese of lereford, endowed with £600
royal bounty. The church is dedicated to St. Mary,
Wormelow, from which the huundred takes its name,
is within this parish.

BIRCHAM (GRIEAT), a parish in the hundred of
SmiTapoN, county of Norrork, 74 miles (8. W. by 8.)
from Burnham-Westgate, containing 398 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk,
and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£22, and in the patronage of J. Spurgeon, Esq.  The
church is dedicated to St. Mary.

BIRCHAM-NEWTON, a parish in the hundred of
SamiTunon, county of NorroLK, 73 miles (5. W. by 8.)
from Burnham-Westgate, containing 75 inhabitants.
The living is a discharged rectory, annexed to that of
Bircham-Tofts, in the archdeneonry of Norfolk, and dio-
cese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £7. 18, 4.
The church is dedicated to All Saints.

BIRCHAM-TOFTS, a parish in the hundred of
SmrtupoN, county of NorroLk, 74 miles (8.8.W.)
from Burnham-Westgate, containing 135 inhabitants,
The living is a discharged rectory, with that of Bircham-
Newton annexed, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at
£6. 13. 4., and in the patronage of the Earl of Orford.
The church is dedicated to St. Andrew,

BIRCHANGER, a parish in the hundred of Ur-
TLESFORD, county of Essex, 1§ mile (8, W. by 8.) from
Stansted-Mountfitchet, containing 336 inhabitants, The
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living is & rectory, in the archdeaconry of Colchester,
and diocese of London, rated in the king's books at
£9. 13, 4., and in the patronage of the Warden and
Fellows of New College, Oxford. The church is dedi-
cated to St.Mary. Richard de Newport founded here,
in the reign of John, an hospital dedicated to St. Mary
and St. Leonard, for a master and two chaplains, the
revenue of which, in the 26th of Henry VIIL., was
cstimated at £31. 13. 11.

BIRCHER, a township in the parish of YarroLx,
hundred of WoLrry, county of HErREFORD, 5} miles
(N. by W.) from Leominster. The population is re-
turned with the parish.

BIRCHES, a township in that part of the parish of
Grear BupworTe which is in the hundred of Nortr-
WiICH, county palatine of CHEsTER, 3} miles (E.8.E.)
from Northwich, containing 8 inhabitants, Mrs. Eliza-
beth Dobson, about 1695, assigned an estate here ip
trust for the education of two boys, one to be the
son of a counsellor, and the other the son of a divine
of the church of England.

BIRCHINGTON, a parish within the cingue-port
liberty of Dovog, of which it is a member, though locally
in the hundred of Ringslow, or the Isle of Thanet, lathe
of S1. AuGUSTINE, county of Kenr, 34 miles (W. by 8.)
from Margate, containing 700 inhabitants. The living is
a perpetual curacy, united to the vicarage of Monkton, in
the peculiar jurisdiction of the Archbishop of Canterbury.
The church, dedicated to All Saints, consists of a nave,
chancel, and aisles, with a lofty tower and spire rising
hetween the east end of the north aisle and a small
chapel, now the vestry-room: the nave is separated
from the aisles by octangular columns supporting five
pointed arches : the three east windows of the chancel
are in the decorated style. On the north side of it is
Quex chapel, belonging to the manor of Quex, in this
parish, containing several monuments and* brasses of
the family of Crispe. A pleasure fair is held here
on Whit-Monday and Tuesday. Hemming's bay is
thought to have been so named from the landing of
Hemming, a Danish chieftain, accompanicd by Anlaf,
in 1009. Mrs. Anna Gertrude Crispe, by will dated
Fehruary 13th, 1707, bequeathed forty-seven acres of
land in Birchington and Monkton for certain charitable
purposes ; among others for the instruction of twelve
boys and girls of this parish and the vill of Acole,
the remainder of the rental to be applied in appren-
ticing some of the boys. The master receives £36. 15.
annually, for which he instructs about twenty-four chil-
dren, one-half appointed by the overseers, from whom
the apprentices are selected, and the rest by himself.
Near the village stands the workhouse for the re-
ception of the poor of Birchington, Monkton, Sarre,
and Acole.

BIRCHOLT, a parish in the franchise and barony
of Brrcuour, lathe of Smepway, county of KxnT, 4
miles (E. by 8.) from Ashford, containing 38 inhubitants,
The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Canterbury, rated in the king's books at £2. 10. 10,
and in the patr of lady Bankes. The: church,
now desecrated, was dedicated to St. Margaret.

BIRCHOVER, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of YouLGrAVE which i8 in the hundred of Hreu
Prax, coumnty of Dersy, 1 mile (N. by W.) from
Winster, containing 121 inhabitants. It is in the
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honour of Tutbury, duchy of Lancaster, and within the
jurisdiction of ‘& court of pleas held at Tutbury every
third Tuesday, for the recovery of debts under 401,

BIRDALL, a joint township with Raisthorpe, in
the parish of WaaRRAM-PERCY, Wapentake of Buck-
rosE, East riding of the county of York, 84 miles (5.8.)
from New Malton. The population is returned with
Raisthorpe. ,

BIRDBROOK, a parish in the hundred of Hinck-
FORD, county of Essex, 7 miles (N.W.) from Castle-
Hedingham, containing 460 inhabitants, The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Middlesex, and dio-
cese of London, rated in the king's books at £19, and
in the patronage of Sir W, Rush. The church is dedi-
cated to St, Augustine.

BIRDFORTH, a chapelry in the parish of Cox-
woLDp, wapentake of BirprorTH, North riding of the
county of York, 45 miles (N.W. by N.) from Easing-
would, containing 42 inhabitants, The living is a per-
petual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Cleveland, and
diocese of York, endowed with £800 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Archbishop of York. The
antiquity of this place is evinced by its having given
name to the hundred.

BIRDHAM, a parish in the hundred of ManHOOD,
rape of CHICHESTER, county of Susspx, 4 miles
(S.W. by 8) from Chichester, containing 532 inhabit-
ants. The living is u rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Chichester, rated in the king's books at
£10. 0. 10,, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and £200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the
Dean and Chapter of Chichester. The church is dedi-
cated to St. Leonard. The Portsmouth and Arun canal
passes through the parish, and terminates at Chichester
harbour. Here is a National gchool, in which about one
hundred boys and girls are instructed.

BIRDINBURY, a parish in the Southam division
of the hundred of KnicHTLOW, county of WARWICK,
4% miles (N. by E.) from Southam, containing 213 in-
habitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Coventry, and diocese of Lichfield and
Coventry, rated in the king's books at £7. 10., endowed
with £200 private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of Sir T. Biddulph, Bart. The
church is dedicated to St. Leonard,

BIRDSALL, a parish in the wapentake of Buck-
rose, East riding of the county of Yorxk, 6 miles
(8.8.E.) from New Malton, containing 240 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeac
of the East riding, and diocese of York, endowed with
£400 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Max-
chioness of Hertford. The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, is an elegant strncture, crected in 1824, - at the
expense of Lord Middleton, Henry Burton; a puritan
divine, was born in this parish. . o

IRKBY, a township in the parish of Cuoss-
Cannonpy, ALLERDALE ward helow Darwent, county
of CUMBERLAND, 14 mile (E.N.E.) from Maryport, con-
taining 96 inhabitants. o

BIRKBY, a township in the parish of MuncasTeR;
ArLeapare ward sbove Darwent, county  of  Cus-
BERLAND, 2} miles (E. by 8.) from Bavenglass.' The
population is veturned with the parish. . Extensive ruins
of a British or Danish city, called Barnscar, are visible
on Birkby-Fell, -~
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BIRKBY, ¢ parish in the wapentake of ALLERTON-
sure, North riding of the county of Yomrk, com-
prising the chapelry of Hutton-Bonville, and the town-
ships of Birkby and Little Smeaton, and containing 261
inhabitants, of Which number, 90 are in the township of
Birkby, 6 miles (N.N.W.) from North Allerton. - The
living is a discharged rectory, in the peculiar jurisdic-
tion of Allerton and Allertonshire, belonging to the
Bishop of Durham, rated in the king's books at £6.13. 4.,
and in the patronage of the Bishop of Durham. The
church is dedicated to St. Peter.

BIRKDALE, a township in the parish of ORMSKIRK,
hundred of West DErpy, county palatine of Lancas-
TER, 74 miles (N, W.) from Ormskirk, containing 414
inhabitants.

BIRKENHEAD, a chapelry in the parish of Bip-
sTONE, lower division of the hundred of Wirnawny,
county palatine of CHESTER, 9% miles (N.N.E.) from
Great Neston, containing 200 inhabitants, The living
is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Chestér, endowed with £1000 private henefaction
£800 royal bounty, and £1200 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of ¥F. R. Price, Esq. A priory for
sixteen Benedictine mouks was founded here, about
1150, in honour of St. Mary and St. James, by Hamon
de’ Massey, third baron of Dunham-Massey, which,
according to Leland, was subordinate to the abbey of
St. Werburgh, at Chester ; but from the power excrcised
by the monks, Bishop Tanner considers it to have been
an independent priory: the revenue, at the dissolution,
was €102, 16. 10. The ruins, part of which has been
fitted up for a chapel, stand on a peninsular rock of red
freestone, formed by the @stuary of the Mersey, on the
east, and a small creek on the west, opposite to Liver-

ocol.

BIRKENSHAW, a hamlet in the parish of BinsTaLr,
wapentake of Morrey, West riding of the county of
York, 5 miles (8.E.) from Bradford. The population
is returned with the township of Gomersall. A new
church is in progress of erection here. A great quantity
of coal and iron-stone is found in the vicinity, and the
manufacture of woollen goods is carried on to a very
great extent.

BIRKER, a joint township with Austhwaite, in
the parish of MiLLom, ALLERDALE ward above Dar-
went, county of CUMBERLAND, 74 miles (E. by N.)
from Ravenglass, containing, with Austhwaite, 101 in-
habitants. This townsbip is within the Lmits of the
chapelry of Eskdale, in the adjoining parish of St. Bees,
and the inhabitants enjoy the privilege of marrying
and burying there. The lake Devock-water, and the wa-
terfalls'of Birker Force and Stanley Gill are in the neigh-
bourhood, which abounds with picturesque scenery.

BIRKIN, a parish in the lower division of the wa-
Jpentuke of Barksronr-Asn, West riding of the county
of Yorx, comprising the chapelry of Chapel-Haddlesey,
and the townships of Birkin, West Haddlesey, Cou®ney-
Huret, exd Temple-Hurst, and containing 917 inhabit-
Jaits, of which number, 139 are in the township of Bir-
kin, 83 miles (N.E. by E.) from Ferrybridge. The living
44, reetoiy, 'in the .archdeaconry and diocese of York,
‘wited in the king's books at £36, and in the patronage
‘ol the; devises of the late Thomas Wright, Esq. The
“Chaireliia dodicated to St. Mary. The village is situated
i 8 TR hawle af the viver Aire,
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BIRLEY, & parish in the hundred of STRETFORD,
county of Hererorn, 4 miles (E. by N.) from Weo-
bley, containing 119 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged vicarage, consolidated with that of King's Pion,
in the archdcaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated in
the king's hooks at £5. 9. 7., and endowed with £200
royal bounty. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

BIRLING, a parish in the hundred of LArKkrIELD,
lathe of AvLEsroRrD, county of Kenr, 63 miles (N.w.
by w.) from Maidstone, containing 459 inhabitants.
The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Rochester, rated in the King's books at £6. 9. 4.,
and in the patronage of the Earl of Aberguvenny. The
charch is dedicated to All Saints. Foundations of build-
ings have frequently been discovered in a field near the
church:

BIRLING, a township in that part of the parish
of WarkworTH which is in the castern division of
CoquetpaLe ward, county of NorTuuMBERLAND, 6}
miles (8. E.) from Alnwick, containing 69 inhabitants.

BIRLINGHAM, a parigsh in the upper division
of the hundred of PersHORE, county of WoRCESTER,
3 miles (8,8.W.) from Pershore, containing 827 inha-
bitants. The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Worcester, rated in the king's books
at £9. 17. 11, and in the patronage of A, Luders,
Esq. The church is dedicated to St. James. The
na;'igahlc river Avon forms a boundary to the pa-
rish.

BIRMINGHAM, a ce-
lebrated manufacturing town
in the Birmingham division
of the hundred of HeMLING-
¥ORD, county of WARWICK,
18 miles (N.W, by W.) from
Coventry, 20 (N. W.) from
Warwick, and 109 (N.W.)
from London, on the rord pag
to Holyhead, containing, \¢2
with the environs, nearly
100,000 inhabitants. The
carliest authentic notice of
this place occurs in Domesday-book, in which it is called
Bermengeham, whence may be easily deduced Brom-
wycham, which name, together with those of Castle and
West Bromwich, two adjacent villages, is supposed to
be derived from the quantity of broom growing in the
neighbourheod. It is thought by some antiquaries to have
been the Bremenium of the Romans, from its situation
near the Iknield-street; and others state it to have been
a British town of some importance prior to the Roman
invasion, and to have been eminent for the manufacture
of arms, for which the mines of iron and coal in the
vicinity rendered its situation peculiarly favourable. Its
history, prior to the Conquest, is involved in great ob-
scurity, and from that period until the reign of Charlgs I.
few incidents of moment are recorded. In the civil war
during that reign, the inhabitants embraced the cause
of the parliament; and in 1642, after the king had
passed through the town, on his route from Shrewshury,
they seized the carriages containing the royal plate and
furniture, and conveyed them to Warwick castle; they
arrested all messengers and others supposed to be parti-
zans of the king, and frequently attacked small parties
of royalists, whom they sometimes defeated and séut

Z2

!

|

\




BIR

prisoners to Coventry. In 1643, Prince Rupert, on his
way to open a communication between Oxford and York,
met with considerable resistance from a detachment of
parliamentarian forces, assisted by the inhabitants, who
stationed themselves at Camp-hill, and opposed his en-
trance into the town. A sharp conflict ensued, in which
the parliamentariaus were driven from their station; the
Earl of Denbigh was killed, and a clergyman, who acted
as governor during the action, was taken prisoner.by
the royalists, and, rejecting quarter, was killed after the
battle, at the Red Lion inn. The prince, provoked at
this resistance, et fire to the town, and, after several
houses had been burnt, the inhabitants saved themselves
from further suffering by the payment of a heavy fine.
On the 14th of July, 1791, a party having met at an
hotel, to celebrate the anniversary of the French revolu-
tion, a mob collected in front of the house, and broke
the windows ; they thence proceeded to the Unitarian
meeting-house, which, with another, they burnt down.
Doctor Prigstley’s dwelling-house, about & mile from the
town, was the next object of attack, which, with his li-
brary, philosophical apparatus, and manuscripts, shared
the same fate. For some days they continued their
devastations, setting fire to several other meeting-houses
and private mansions, but on the arrival of the military
from Oxford and Hounslow, order was restored: at the
ensuing assizes four of the rinpleaders were convicted,
and two of them suffered the penalty of the law.
Shortly after this occurrence barracks were erccted on
the Vauxhall-road, near the town, consisting of a range
of handsome buildings, enclosing a spacious area for the
exercise of cavalry, and a smaller for parade, a riding-
school, a magazine, and an hospital.

The extraordinary increase of the town, the im-
provement of its manufactures, the extension of ite
trade, and the rapid growth of its commerce, within
the last century, may.be attributed to the mines of iron-
ore and coal with which the district abounds, to its
freedom from the restrictions of incorporation, which
has made it the resort of genius and of talent, and to
the numerous canals by which itis connected with every
part of the kingdom, and through which it not only
carries on an immense inland trade, but exports its
manufactures to every quarter of the world, Bir-
mingham, in the reign of Henry VIIIL, was inhabited
principally, as described by Leland, ** by smithes that
use to make knives and all manner of cutting tooles,
and lorimers that make bittes, and a great many
nailours,” Soon after the Revolution in 1688, the ma-~
nufacture of fire-arms was introduced, and continued
to flourish until the close of the late war, during which,
the govermmnent contracts for muskets alone generally
averaged thirty thousand per month : the manufactur-
ing of swords and army accoutrements is still carried
on tu a considerable extent. By an act obtained in
1813, the gun-makers were authorised to erect a proof-
house, in which, under a heavy penalty, all gun and
pistol barvels are subjected to a severe proof, and
stamped by the master and wardens, under whose
inspection the business is conducted; amd since. this
period, the manufacture of fowling-piecea has greatly
increaged: the building, called the Tower, stands on the
bank of the canal, and is. & handsorse. structure, with.
a row of camnon in front, presesting the appearance
of .a military .establishment. It is muncertain at what
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time the manufhctare of buttons was begun, but
it has continued to flourish in every variety fromy
a remote period, and is still a source of wealth tg
many, and of employment to thousands. The buckle
trade was established soon after the Revolution, and,
after exercising the inventive powers of the mann.
facturers in every variety of size, form, and pattern,
became nearly extinet in 1812+ The leather trade,
which formerly was extensively carried on, has very
much declined; at present there is only one tan-yard
in the town, The principal branches of manufacture
are those of light and heavy steel goods (here called
toys), gold, silver, und plated wares, trinkets, jewels
lery, fancy articles of every kind in the gilt-toy trade,
machinery of cvery description, and steam-engines on
every known principle: there are many iron and brass
foundries, three metallic hot-house manufactories on a
large scale, in one of which a hot-house has lately been
made for the Duke of Northumberland, at an expense
of nearly £50,000, measuring five hundred feet in
length, and having in the centre a dome sixty-five feet
high, and forty fect in diameter, with wings, in the pur-
est style of modern architecture : there are also various
rolling-mills of great power, worked by stecam. Casting,
modelling, die-sinking, and engraving, have been brought
to great perfection; and several glass-houses have been
erected within the last few years, besides many mills
for cutting glass, of which brilliant specimens may be
seen in all the show-rooms in the town. There are
divers establishments for supplying the town with ar-
ticles requisite for the use of the inhabitants, and for
carrying on the manufactures: the Old and New Union-
Mill Bread and Flour Companies, and the public and
private coul-wharfs, are on an extensive scale. Of the
numerous manufactories with which the neighbourhood
abounds, the most ancient and extensive is the Soho
Manufactory, nhout a mile from the town, in which,
under the superintending genius of the late Mr. Boul-
ton, the Birmingham manufactures were brought to
their present high degree of perfection ; and in which,
under the same proprietor, assisted by his colleague,
the late Mr. Watt, the most efficient application of me-
chanical power was produced in the construction of
machinery. In this factory wore coined the penny-
pieces still in circulation, in a mint of great mechanical
ingenuity, which, with the assistance of one or twe
persons, performed the whole process of coinage from
the rolled metal. It was here also that the first ap-
plication of gas, as a substitute for oil and tallow,
was made under the auspices of Mr. Murdock, who,
after a course of experiments at Redruth, in Cornwall,
lighted the shops of this factory, and, in 180%, displayed
the success of his researches in a splendid public ke~
mination of the Soho, in celebration of the peace with
France. Mr: Thomason's manufactory, in Chumh@fa_l
street, has a splendid suite of show-rooms: attached iy
it, reflete with costly and elaborate specimens of -work-.
manship, in gold, silver, plated ware, medals, brong
and the chrystallized bases of metals and serni-roetalith

the more massive productions is ‘a_ fiae staton
in bronze of-hie 1me mojesty, George IV., in his. cotos:
nation .robes ;. the ‘attitude is graceful smil dignifiedy.
the figure, which is more than six feet-high; weighn
forty-five hundred weight, and is so properiionsd, as,
at its proper ulevation, to present a fine ressuifiiiiein:




BTIR.

conntenance, form, and stature, of the monarch when
_at.the age of fifty. In alofty room of suitable dimen-
+ifigne, built for the purpose, and solely appropriated to
ts exhibition, is the large metallic vase, a fac-simile in
gize, form, and embellishment, of the celebrated Grecian
vase of Lysippus, dug from the ruins of Adrian's pa-
lace, near Tivoli, which was, by the direction and at the
expense of Lord Warwick, brought over to England
by the late Sir William Hamilton, and placed in the
gardens of Warwick castle. To this huge piece of
art, which js more then twenty-one feet in circumfe-
rence, $ix feet in height, and which weighs ninety hun-
dred weight, the proprietor, by the peculiar process which
he adopted, has imparted a soft solidity of colour, un-
equalled by any example of the kind, both in the por-
phyritic oxyde of the ground, or field, and in the an-
cient green bronze of the arms, visors, panthers’ skins,
foliage, and other ornaments with which it is embel-
lished. Mr. Thomason’s latest production is a beauti-
ful series of sixteen scientific and philosophical medals
of German silver, each containing, within a circle of
three inches in diameter, a complete epitome of one
of the sciences; they are enclosed in a morocco case,
in the form, and of the size, of an imperial octavo
volume, The manufacture of japan and papier maché
has heen much improved by Messrs. Jennens and Bet-
teridge, who, by a chemical process in the preparation
of pearl, by which it is reduced to the eightieth part of
an inch in thickness, and made susceptible of greater
transparency and brilliancy of colour, have rendered
it peculiarly elegant in the decoration of cabinets,
tea-trays, fans, snuff-boxes, &c., of which many beau-
tiful specimens are exhibited in their show-rooms.

The Pantechnetheca, or General Repository, was
erected in 1824, for the exhibition and sale of articles
in the finer department of the arts, selected from the
various muanufactories in the town: the exterior of the
building is fronted, -on the basement story, with a Gre-
cian Doric colonnade, supporting another of the Ionic
order, surmounted by a handsome balustrade with pro-
Jjecting pedestals, on which are emblematical figures
well sculptured ; the interior consists of two handsome
show-rooms, in which the manufactured articles are
Jjudiciously displayed. Mr. Phipson’s pin-manufactory,
by a simple but effective process, exhibits the progress
of this article through all its stages, from the drawing of
the wire, to sticking the pin upon paper, and occupies

2 thousand persons, besides affording, in many of its
branches, employment to the inmates of the parish asy-
lum, aud the county bridewell. The number and variety
of the manufactories, in almost all of which there is
some ingenious epplication of machinery, either to ex-
pedite. or to improve the manufacture of the article,

as to justify the assertion, that there i8 no
of manufacture carried. on here which is not
of ahsolute on relative perfection.

f:towen, is pleasantly situated on an eminence, at
wth-western. extremity of the county, bordering
ke eounties of Stafford and Worcester, from
¥ which it is separated by a small brook.
hick ape very numerous, and in general
thi:the .exception of & few in the more
i4he town, well paved, and lighted with
‘s eclivity, ave always clean. The
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houses, mostly modern and well built, are chiefly of
brick, but, since the use of the Roman cement, they
have assumed an improved appearance, and present,
nearly throughout the town and its ¢nvirons, speci-
mens of elegance in almost every style of mrchitecture :
among those erected within the last three or four
years arc many splendid edifices. The inhabitants are
amply supplied with water from pumps attached to their
hotses, and soft water is obtained from two fine wells
at the lower exiremity of the town. On entering
Birmingham from Londun, the road, by a handsome
stone bridge over the smali river Rea, leads up an ascent
into the market-place, in the centre of which is a statue
in bronze of Lord Nelson, finely executed by Westma-
cott, at an expense of £3000, raised by subscription
among the inhabitants. An act of parliament has
recently been obtained for taking down the houses on
onc side of the present market-place, and forming an
extensive area, in which it is intended to build a market-
house ; and under the same act, the erection of a town-
hall is contemplated. The market days are Monday and
Thursday, the latter being also for the sale of horses and
horned cattle ; and there is & market for hay on Tuesday.
The cattle market and horse fair are held at Smithfield, a
spacious area to the south-east of the town, conveniently
divided and arranged for the purpose. A sale of horses
by auction takes place also on the same day, at Beards-
worth's Repository, an establishment of unequalled
magnitude, near the spot. The buildings comprise a
spacious quadrangular area, round which are stalls for
one hundred and fifty horses, exclusively of twenty-four
boxes for hunters; above these are galleries, in which
there are standings for four hundred carriages, which
are constantly on sale: the whole area is covered with
a shed-roof supported on pillars forty feet high, and is
lighted with a double range of upper windows: on one
side of the quadrangle, over which the roof is continued,
there is a covered ride, one hundred and eight yards in
length, and forty yards in width ; and on the opposite
side is another of equal extent, enclosed by walls, but
not roofed. In addition to the accommodations of a
repository, it conteins a splendid suite of apartments,
clegantly furnished for the reception of gentlemen or
families, who may visit Birmingham at the triennial
festival, or on any other public occasion. The fairs are
on the Thursday in Whitsun-week, and on the Thursday
next before Michaelmas-day, each for three days; they
arc chiefly show fairs, though on the first day many
horses and horned cattle are sold. ‘

The town is wholly within the jurisdiction of the
county magistrates, of whom, those acting for the town
hold & meeting, every Monday and Thursday, at the
public office: a high beiliff (who is clerk of the market,
and by courtesy presides at-all public meetings), a low
bailiff, two constables, a headborough, two ale-conners,
two flesh-conners, two affeirers, and two leather-sealers,
are chosen at the court leet of the lord of the manor,
which is held at Michaelmas. A court of requests for
the recovery of debts under 40s., established by an act
passed in the 25th of George II., the powers of which,
by a subseyuent act in the 47th of George IIL, were
extended to the recovery of debts under £5, is held
every week : it consists of seventy-two commissioners,
three of whom, assisted by two clerks, who must he
lawyers, form a'quorum; its jurisdiction -extends only
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to the limits of the parish, The public office is a com-
modious building with a handsome stone front; the
court-room is well arranged, and hehind it is a prison,
for the confinement of malefactors previously to their
committal to the county gaol. The news-room, built in
1825, is a handsome edifice with a stuccoed front, orna-
mented with lofty pillars of the Ionic order: the inte-
rior consists of one large room, opening through folding
doors into two smaller apartments, over which are a
billiard-room and a refectory; and a suite of rooms has
lately been added, in which copies of the public records,
and books of reference, are deposited. - The old library,

established in 1798, is a handsome stone  building, with

a circular portico; the reading-room is circular, and is
lighted by a dome lanthern resting on handsome Ionic
pillars of porphyry: this institution, the number of
volumes in which exceeds thirty thousand, is under the
direction of a committee; admission is obtained by the
purchase of a share of the value of £10, and the pay-
ment of sn annual subscription of £1, The new library,
similarly conducted, but upon a smaller scale, is a neat
building, recently erected, and inteFnally well arranged.
The Philosophical Society, which had been instituted
some years previously, extended their plan in 1510, and
erected a commodious theatre for the delivery of lectures
by their own members, and oceasionally by eminent pro-
fessors, in the various branches of science: they have
a museum, containing & fine collection of mincrals and
fossils, an extensive philosophical apparatus, a library,
and a reading-room. The school of medicine and sur-
gery was established in 1828, by Mr. W. 8. Cox, and
the resident physicians and surgeons lecture weekly
upon subjects connected with the design of the institu-
tion ; certificates of having attended these lectures qualify
atudents to pass their examination at the Royal College
of Surgeons in London: a handsome and appropriate
building has been.recently erected on Snow-hill for the
uge of this establishment.

The Society of Arts was instituted in 1821, for pro-
moting the general study of the fine arts, by procuring
from the nobility and gentry, who are its patrons, the
loan of original pictures of the old and new schools, in
order to stimulate the genius and industry of the
members, and to enrich their annual exhibition : it
comprehends also, in addition to the higher pursuits of
the art, the cultivation of those particular departments
of it which are connected with the manufactures of the
town. The building is a chaste and elegant specimen of
the Corinthian order, with a boldly projecting portico of
four clegant columns, supporting a triangular pediment.
An institution for promoting the fine arts, established
in 1828, for the encouragement of artists resident within
thirty miles of Birmingham, by appropriating its funds
tothe purchase of pictures from the walls at their annual
exhibition, has been recently incorporated with the for-
mer. A mechanics’ institution was establiched in 1825,
The theatre is e spacious and well-arranged building,
with & handsome stone front, consisting of a portico of
the Ionic order, supported by a piazza, through which
is the entrance to the boxes; on one side ig that to a
coffee-room, and on the other to a billiard-room, over
which is an elegant suite of aseembly-rooms: it was
rebuilt in 1820, at an expense .of £14,000, which was
subscribed in shares; the present front is ‘what remains
of the former theatve, which was burnt down in the
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beginning of tie same year: the-geason generally com-
mences in May, and ends in October. Assemblies.:
held periodically, during the winter, at the. Royal Hoteld'
the room, which is spacious and elegantly fitted up, is
also appropriated to the subscription concerts, which are
supported by more than three hundred: subseribers,
under the patronage of the nobility and gentry in the
neighbourhood : the orchestra combines the first-rate
talent of the metropolis with the professional skill of
the town. A second concert has been recently esta-
blished, which, originating, like the other, in a private
meeting of amateurs, promises to cqual the former in
respect of numbers, though not enjoying such distin-
guished patronage. Triennial music meetings, the receipts
of which arc appropriated to the support of the general
hospital, are held at the church and at the theatre; at
the former, oratorios and selections of sacred music are
performed, and at the latter, miscellaneous concerts in
which the principal vocal and instrumentul performers
in the kingdom are engaged. The Vauxhall Gardens,
which are brilliantly illuminated, are open during the
summer, and attract much company to concerts per-
formed there, and to grand displays of fireworks,
which are frequent during the season. The Lady-well
baths (so called from one of the springs by which they
are supplied) form a complete establishment, consist-
ing of hot, cold, sulphurcous, vapour, and fumigating
baths, attached to which are dressing-rooms and every
accommodation for invalids. The swimming, or plea-
sure bath is one hundred and ten feet long, and fifty-
two feet wide, and is supplied with a constant influx
of water, at the rate of one thousand hogsheads per
hour; it is surrounded with high walls, shaded with
lofty trees, and furnished with alcoves and dressing-
boxes. The gentlemen’s cold bath is sixteen feet long,
and twelve teet wide, and is supplied by a spring within
itself, at the rate of twelve hogsheads per hour; the
buildings are replete with every accommoduation, and
the gardens and pleasure grounds are extensive and
retired.

Prior to the year 1715, Birmingham comprised only
one parish, and for all civil purposes it is still so con-
sidered : at that time, a small portion of the original
parish of St. Martin, consisting of a district in the centre
of the town, was formed into the parish of St. Philip;
and, in 1829, two other districts were formed into the
parishes of St. George and St. Thomas: they are all
within the archdeaconry of Coventry, and diocese of
Lichfield and Coventry. The living of St. Martin's ‘is
a rectory, rated in the king's books at £19. 8. 64., and
in the patronage of the Executors of the late William
Hawkes, Esq.. The church is an ancient structure, in
the decorated style of English architecture, with a square
tower, and & -lofty and well-proportioned spire, wi
exception of which, the building, originally of ston
been cased with brick : within are several effigi
details of some of which are finely executed. Theil
of St. Philip's is ® rectory not in charge, to- Wi
annexed the prebend of Sawley, including
of canon pesidentiary end treasurer.in.
Church of Lichfield, with the pat
tual curacy of Sawley, in the county
the patronage of: the Bishop of Lichfield i
The .church, erected. in-17%8, 48 &
in. the  Grecien.istyle .of seshitec
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Cotinthian -and: the Doric orders, with a tower sup-
porting a dome and'a cupola: the churchyard is o spa-
cious: ares, dround which are many elegant buildings
«of modern-erection. The living of St. George's is a
rectory not in cbarge, in the patronage of the Execu-
tors. of the late William Hawkes, Esg. The church,
containing one thousand three hundred and seventy-
cight free sittings, was erected in 1822, by subscription
among the inhabitants, aided by a grant from the parlia-
mentary commissioners, at an expense of £12,491.6.6.:
it is a fine specimen of the early character of the
decorated style of English architecture, with a lofty
square embattled tower, with pierced parapet and
crocketed pinnacles. The living of St. Thomas’ is a rec-
tory not in charge, to which the Executors of the late
William Hawkes, Esq. presented in 1829, in which year
the church, containing one thousand four hundred and
twenty-three free sittings, was completed, at an expense
of £14,712. 10., which was wholly defrayed by a grant
from the parliamentary commissioners: it is a chaste
and elegant structure, in the Grecian style of architec-
ture, with a handsome steeple, connected in the lower part
with the sides of the church, by quadrants of the lonic
order, St. Mary's chapel, in the parish of St. Martin,
erected by subscription in 1774, on a site given by
Miss Weaman, is an octagonal brick building, with a
small stone steeple: the living is a perpetual curacy,
in the patronage of trustees appointed under the will
of the late Miss Weaman. St. Paul’s chapel, in the same
parish, built by subscription in 1779, on a site given by
Miss Colmore, is a handsome edifice in the Grecian
style: the roof, which over the galleries is plainly
groined, is supported on handsome pillars of the Tonic
order; the altar-piece is ornamented with a painting
in stained glass of the Conversion of St. Paul; the
steeple, which is much admired for the lightness and
elegance of its design, was added in 1820 : the living
is a perpetual curacy, in the patronage of Mr. Latimer,
Christ Church, in the parish of St. Philip, erected in
1813, by subscription, for the especial accommodation
of the poor, is a neat plain building, with a handsome
portico of the Tuscan order, and a spire: the living is
a perpetual curacy, to which is annexed the prebend of
Tachbrook in the Cathedral Church of Lichfield; it is
in the patronage of the Bishop of Lichfield and Coven-
try. St. Bartholomew's, a chapel of ease to the rec-
tory of St. Martin's, is a plain brick building, with
a cupola; the interior is a good specimen of the
Tuscan order, and the altar-piece is richly carved.
St. Peter’s, a chapel of eage to the rectory of St. Philip's,
containing one thousand four hundred and thirty-one
free sittings, was built in 1827, at an expense of
#£13,365. 16, 6., part of which was defrayed by the
Earliamentary commissioners, and was almost destroyed
pe, in Jannary 18381, There are places of worship
aptists, the Society of : Friends, Independents,
ve. and Wesleyan: Methodists, Swedenborgians,

pme; besides @ Scotch church, t;vl:) Ro;nan
/ wnd & synagogue. Among these, Zion
Lane meeting-house, the hizotch chuirch.
ehupel, may be distinguished es spacious
Atictores

¢hool was founded by Edward VL.,
s reign, ‘end endowed with the re-
thee Foly Cevas, which, prior to the
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dissolution, occupied the site of the present building :
the endowment, arising from land, at that time amounted
only to £30 per annum ; at present, from the ground
having been let on building leases, it produces from
£BQOO to £10,000 per annum, which, upon the
expiration of the leases, will be greatly augmented.
The management is vested in a bailiff and eighteen
governors, who appoint a head-master, second master,
and two ushers, with a writing-master and a drawing-
master. There ure meven exhibitions, of £70 per
annum each, to either of the Universities; and not
less than eight subordinate schools are attached to
the establishment: the number of scholars on the
foundation is one hundred and fifty: the premises, occu-
pying three sidess of a quadrangle, with houses for the
masters, are about to be rebuilt. The Blue-coat charity
school was established by subscription, in 1724, for
the maintenance, clothing, and education of twenty-two
boys and ten girls: its funds having been increased
by additional subscriptions, donatious, and legacies, the
buildings were enlagoed in 1794 ; there are at present
one hundred and Phirty boys and sixty girls in the
school. A similar school for the children of dissenters,
cstablished in 1762, is now limited to the maintenance
and instruction of forty-eight girls. The National
and the Lancasterian schools are supported by sub-
scription ; and an infant school, which is under ex-
celient regulations, is numerously attended.

The general hospital is a handsome and spacious
brick building, consisting of a centre and two wings,
and containing fourteecn wards, in which are one hun-
dred and sixty-five beds. This establishment has ob-
tained extensive patronage and support : it was opened
in 1779, when the committee, in order to augment its
funds, had recourse to a performance of sacred music,
under the direction of a London professor, the produce
of which was £127. This performance, repeated every
third year, formed the groundwork of the triennial
musical festival, for which, under the gratuiious su-
perintendence of Mr. Joseph Moore, a resident amateur,
Birmingham has, for the last twenty years, been so
justly celebrated. The receipts, which have been pro-
gressively increasing, now average a net sum of up-
wards of £5000, available for the benefit of the insti-
tution, which, as a school of medicine and surgery,
has attained a high degree of celebrity. The dispen-
sary was established by subscription, in 1794, and
affords medical relief to about four thousand patiénts
annually : the building, consisting of a centre and two
wings, is a handsome structure of freestone, with four
lofty pilasters supporting a triangular pediment, orna-
mented with a basso-relievo of the “Good Samaritan.”
The self-supporting dispensary, upon the plan of Mr.
Smith, of Southam, is maintained by small annual
subscriptions from the poor, aided by those of the
honorary members. The infirmary for diseases of the
eye and ear, established by Mr. Hodgson, surgeon, in
1823 ; and the infirmary for the cure of bodily defor-
mity, established in 1817, under the patronage of the
Earl of Dartmouth, are liberally supported; and a
house, at the extremity of the town, has, under the su-
perintendence of Dr.Birt Davies, been appropriated as
a house of recavery from fever.  The asylum for deaf
and dumb children was established in 1815, and is

partly supported by & weekly charge, and partly by
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subscnpuaa, the number at present in- the mastitution
is thirty. THe #chool of induwstry is ¢ large establish-
ment yodér the monegement of the gosril .of the
poox:*!m which three hundred children ave.dmaintained,
and employed in platting straw, heading pins, and in
other kinds of work suited to their age. There are
aleo almshouses for the aged and infire, avd numerous
and extensive funds for charitable purposes. About a
mile from the town is a chalybeate spring, which,
though kmown to possess highly medicinal properties,
is not much noticed; and about three miles to the
west, and within a few hundred yards of the Ik-
nield-street, are the remains of a large quadrangular
encampment, surrounded by a triple fosse, which,
from the extent of its area (being more than thirty
acres), s supposed to be of Danish origin: pieces of
armour, broken swords, and hattle-axes, have been
ploughed up in the vicinity. Inconsiderable vestiges of
an ancient priory are still visible in the cellars of some
houses in the square, which now occupy its site; and
8 great number of human bones, sculls with teeth
having the enamel perfect, have bedh found in the neigh-
bourhood, partz of which still bear the names of the
Upper and Lower Priory. At the western extremity
of the town was an hospital, dedicated to St. Thomas
the Apostle, the revenue of which, in the ¢6th of
Henry VILI,, was £8. 5. 3. Rirmingham gives the
title of baron to the Earl of Dudley.

BIRSTALL, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of Brrerave which is in the western division of the
hundred of Goscotk, county of LricesTER, 3% miles
(N. by E.) from Leicester, containing 371 inhabitants.
The chapel, dedicated to St. James, has lately been en-
larged by the addition of one hundred and seventy-
seven gittings, of which number, ninety-nine are free,
and toward defraying the expense of which the Incor-
porated Society for the enlargement of churches granted
£100. There is a communication with the Leicester
and Melton-Mowbray navigation by means of the river
Soar, which runs through the chapelry.

BIRSTALL, aparish in the wapentake of MoRrLEy,
West riding of the county of York, 74 miles (8. W.)
from Leeds, comprising the chapelries of Clackheaton,
Drighlington, Heckmondwike, Liversedge, and Tong, and
the townships of Great and Little Gomersall, Hunsworth,
and Wike, and containing 21,217 inhabitants. The liv-
ing is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
thie East riding, and diocese of York, rated in the king's
books at £23, 19. 2., and in the patronmage of the
Archhishop of York. The church, dedicated to St.
Peter, has lately been enlarged by the addition of one
hmndred and fifty sittings, one hundred of which are
free ; the Incerporated Society for the enlargement of
c¢hurches and chapels having granted £150 towards
defraying the expense. There is a place of worship for
Wesaleyan Methodists. A chapel is .also being erected
m Binkmhaw, in this parish. The village of Birstall

is'situated in the township of Gomersall : “the clothing
business prevails to a great extent im the parish, in
which also theve are some collieries. The Rev, William
Arinyatead, i, 1601, bequeathed £ 300 for the erection
of u!dh&l‘;u%ha fund now produces €B8,10: per annum,
for which  six «children are mstructed gratuitously in a
National achool, which was. erected 1819, at the
‘wpense of 'Willismy{Zharlesworth;. Haq. Dr. Priestley,
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equally distinguished for his advocacy of Unitarianism,
dnd his discoveries In chemistry, was born at Field~hea.d,
in this parish, in 1733 ; he died in America, in 1804,

BIRSTWITH, a township in the parish of Hanurs:
THWAITE, lower division of the wapentake of Craro,
West riding of the comnty of Yorxk, 8 miles (W. by N.)
from Knaresborough, containing 621 inhabitants. John
Richmond, in 1711, gave a rent-ch of £14 for the
instruction of poor boys belonging to the townships of
Birstwith and Felliscliff,

BIRTHORPE, a chapelry in the parish of Semper-
INGHAM, wapentake of AvirLaND, parts of KesTEVEN,
county of LincoLn, 24 miles (F) from Folkmgham,
containing 56 inhabitants.

BIRTLE, a joint township with Bamford, in the
parish of Minpreron, hundred of Sarrorp, county
palatine of LancasTeR, 2 miles (E.N.E.) from Bury,
containing, with Bamford, 1207 inhabitants. The ma:
nufacture of woollen and cotton gaods, and the printing
of calico, are carried on here.

BIRTLES, & township in the parish of Prestaury,
hundred of MaccuEsriELD, county palatine of Cugs.
TER, 2% miles (W.byN.) from Macclesfield, containing
47 inhabitants, There are various tumuli in the neigh.
bourhood, and fragments of urns, which formerly con-
tained humt bones, have been discovered.

BIRTLEY, a township in that part of the parish of
CuxsrtER le STREET which is in the middle division of
CrEesTeER ward, county palatine of Durnam, 51 miles
(8. by E.) from Gateshead, containing 1386 inhabitants
many of whom are employed in” the coal mines in the
vicinity., There is a place of worship for Roman Ca.
tholics. A bripe-spring exists in the township, fron
which salt is made.

BIRTLEY, a parochial chapelry in the north.
eastern division of TinparLe ward, county of NonrrTa.
UMBERLAND, 5 miles (S.E. by 8.) from Bellingham
containing, with a small portion of the township o
Broomhope with Buteland, 393 inhabitants. The
living is a perpetual cwracy, in the archdeaconry o
Northumberland, and diocese of Durham, endowet
with £400 private benefaction, and £800 royal bounty
and in the patronage of the Duke of Northumber
land. Birtley was formed intv a purochial chapelry i
1765, in which year it was scparated from the parisl
of Chollerton. Coal and lime exist in the neigh
bourhood : there is a day and Sunday school in th
village.

BIRTS-MORTON, a parish in the lower division ¢
the hundred of PRRSHORE, county of WORCESTER, -5/
miles (8. W.) from Upton upon Severn, containing 2N
inhabitants, ‘The living is a rectory, in the arehd&a
conry and diocese of Worcester, rated 'in the- ¢
books at £7. 8.1}, and in the patronage of J. :
well, Esq. ~The church is dedicated to-8t; Pe
St. Paul. A charity school was endowid by
Juice; in 1708, forthe instruction of ho
whom are clothed 'by means of a separst
maner-house % 'sn ancient ednﬁce,"‘
moat still very et ‘
- BISBROOK! ‘pmin the hund;
county of Ruruawp, 14 mile (m.)
containing 923" inhabitadts; T
vicatage; i the wrchd
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£6.0.4,, and in the patronage of the Duke.of Rirtla BISHOP'S-CASTLE, a
The charch is dedicated to St. John the Baptist. borough, market town, ag

is & school with a trifling endowment.
BISCATHORPE, a parish in the ecastern division
of ‘the wapentake of Waaceor, parts of Linpépy,
county of Lixcown, 8 miles (N.E, by £.) from Wragby,
containing 87 inhabitants. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king’s books at £5. 18, 4., endowed with
£200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Crown.
The church is dedicated to St. Helen.
BISCOTT, a hamlet in the parish of LuTton, hun-
dred of Frirt, county of Beprorp, 2 miles (N. by w.)
from Luton. The population s returned with Limbury,
BISHAM, a parish in the hundred of BEYNHURST,
county of Brrks, 44 miles (N.W.) from Maidenhead,
containing 707 inhabitants, The living is a discharged
vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Berks, and diocese of
Salisbury, rated in the king's booke at £7.13. 1., and
endowed with £200 and £20 per annum private benefac-
tion, £600 royal bounty, and £900 parliamentary grant,
ind in the patronage of G.Vansittart, Esq. The church,
ledicated to All Saints, is pleasantly situated close to
‘he river Thames, the banks of which are adorned with
nteresting scenery, and many pleasing seats. The
‘olling of copper into sheets, and the making of copper
olts for the navy, and of pans and other vessels in
'opper, are carried on here to a considerable extent.
Cemple mills, esteemed among the most complete and
sowerful of the kind in the kingdom, received this name
rom having been in the possession of the Knights
lemplars, who established a preceptory here, on receiv-
ng a grant of the manor from Robert de Ferrariis, in
‘he reign of Stephen. This institution, on the dissolu-
ion of the society, was succeeded by an Augustine
riory, founded in 1338, by William de Montacute,
Zarl of Salisbury, the revenue of which, in the 26th of
Jenry VIIL., amounted to £327. 4. 6. It was surren-
lered in 1536, was re-founded by the king, for a mi-
red abbot and thirteen Benedictine monks, and was
inally dissolved on the 19th of June, 1538 : the abbey
vas frequently visited by Henry VIIL., and also by Queen
Zlizabeth, who resided here some time, a large state
\partment being still called the Queen's eouncil-cham-
ver; but a very emall portion only of the conventual
ruildings can be traced in the mansion which now
\ecupies its site. .
BISHAMPTON, a parish in the middle division of
‘he hundred of OswaLpsrLow, county of WORCESTER,
4§ miles (N.E. by N.) from Pershore, containing 374
nhabitants. The living is & discharged vicarage, in
‘he archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, rated in
he king's books at £7. 9. 94., endowed with £400 pri-
rate benefaction, and £400 royal bounty, and in the
mage of ‘the Bishop of Worcester. The church is
R to- Bt. Peter, .
MOF'S. BOURNE, a parish in the hundred of
¥oRD, lathe bf St. AuGusTINg, county of
il (8, E, by 87) from Canterbury, containing
, . "fhe living is 8 vectory, with the per-
' Barham annexed, in the archdeacoury
steybury, rated in the king's books at
the. nate patronage of the
g santerbury. The church

parish, having scparate ju-
risdictior, ,locally in the ¥
hundred of Purslow, county ¢
of Saropr, 19 miles (N. W,
by N.) from Ludlow, 20% *
(S.w. by 8.) from Shrews-
buryy and 157 (N. W. by w.)
from London, containing
1880 inhabitants, of which
number, 1616 are within
the borough. This place
owes its name to a castle belonging to the bishops of
Hereford, that stood here, but of which the site alone,
now a bowling-green belonging to the Castle Inn, aud
some small portions of thc enclosing walls, can he
traced : a subterraneous passage is said to have sub-
sisted from this castle to another at some distance, the
arched entrance to which is shown in the garden of an
adjoining house ; byt it is scarcely distinguishable from
the heaps of stone® found in various parts of the hill
on which the castle stood. The town is partly situated
on the summit, but chiefly on the steep declivity of a
hill : the houses in general are meanly built of unhewn
gtone, with thatched roofs; though, in detached situa-
tions, there are several handsome edifices of modern
erection. Such of the inhabitants as have not pumps
attached to their houses, are indifferently supplied with
water, from a reservoir under the town-hall, into which
it is conveyed by pipes from the neighbouring hills.
The market is on Friday, and is well supplied with
grain, which is sold by sample: the market-house, built
within the last twenty years, by the Earl of Powis, is a
handsome cdifice of stone, supported on piazzas; the
area is used as a corn market, and the upper part as a
school-room. The fairs are on February 13th, for cattle and
sheep ; on the Friday preceding Good Friday, which is a
very large fair for horned cattle ; on the first Friday aftcr
May-day, a pleasure and statute fair; July tth, for-
merly a great wool fair; September 9th, and November
13th, for horned cattle, sheep, and horses. The govern-
ment, by charter granted in the 15th year of the reign
of Elizabeth, and confirmed and extended by James I.,
is vested in a bailiff, recorder, and fifteen capital bur.
gesses, assisted by a town-clerk, two serjeants at mace,
and subordinate officers: the bailiff, late bailiff, and
recorder, are justices of the peace. The bailiff is elected
from among the capital burgesses, on the first Mondsy
before Michaelmas-day, and sworn into office on the
first Monday after it ; the capital burgesses are chosen
by a majority of the burgesses at large: the freedom
is acquired only by birth. The corporation hold a
court of session quarterly for the borough, on the next
Wednesday after the general quarter sessions for the
county, at which the bailiff, the late bailiff or justice,
and the recorder, preside; and a court of record is
held every alternate Saturday, for the recovery of debts
under £20, under the presidency of the bailiff and twu
capital burgesses. The town-hall is a plain brick -edi-
fice on pillars and arches, built by the sybscriptions of
the burgesses, in 1750, with a prison on Apsemen
story for criminals, and above it one for debtar®. ' The
elective franchise was conferred in the 26th of+Eliza
beth, since which time .the borough bhas returned tw
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members to parliament. The right of election ja.vested
in the burgesses generally, about sixty in number, pro-
vided theyhave been resident within the borough twelve
months prior to the election, in default of which they
lose ‘their title to vote: the bailiff is the returning
officer.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of
Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated in the king's books
at £9. 12. 10., and in the patronage of the Ea#l of
Powis. The church, dedicated to St. John the Baptist,
is a fine old structure, principally in the Norman style,
with a square embattled tower, crowned with pinnacles:
it was burnt in the parliamentary war, by Cromwell, and
has been rebuilt without a due regard to the original
style of its architecture. The free school was founded,
in 1787, by Mrs. Mary Morris, in memory of her first
husband, Mr. John Wright, of Wimbledon in Surrey,
merchant, a native of Bishop's Castle, and endowed
with £1000 in the three per cents., for the instruction
of twenty-five hoys and twenty-five girls in reading,
writing, and arithmetic, and the lgtter in sewing and
knitting. Some charitable benefactions are distributed
by the vicar and churchwardens, in money and bread.
Jeremy Stephens, author of various doctrinal works,
and the learned coadjutor of Sir Henry Spelman in the
compilation of the “ English Councils,” was a native of
the place.

BISHOP'S DALE, a township in the parish of Avs-
GARTH, western division of the wapentake of Hang,
North riding of the county of York, 12 miles (8.W.
by W.) from Middleham, containing 95 inhabitants.
The neighbourhood contains several waterfalls, and
abounds with picturesque scenery.

BISHOP'S FEL, a liberty in the parish of St.
MaRGARET, borough of Lricester, though locally in
the hundréed of Gartree, county of LeicesTer. The
population is returned with Leicester. The magis-
trates for the Dorough, and those for the county,
exercise concurrent jurisdiction throughout the liberty,
the inhabitants of which pay church and poor rates
to the parish of St. Margaret, but are assessed for the
king’'s tuxes with the hundred of Gartree, the petty
sessions for which are occasionally held here.

BISHOP-SIDE (HIGH and LLOW), a township in
that part of the parish of Riron which is within the
liberty of Riron, West riding of the county of York,
104 miles (W.8.w.) from Ripon, containing, with the

,mirket town of Pateley-Bridge, 2072 inhabitants.

" BISHOPSTON, a chapelry in the parish of Onp
Stratrorp, Stratford division of the hundred of Bar-
LiIcHWAY, county of WARWICK, 2§ miles (N.N.W.) from
Stratford upon Avon, with which place the population
is returned. The living is a perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Worcester, endowed with
£1000 royal bounty, and £ 200 parliamentary Tgl:-nt, and
in the patronage of the Vicar of Stratford. chapel,
dedicated: to St, Peter, is in ruins,

“BISHOPSTON, a parish in the hundred of Down-
ToN, though locally in the hundred of Chalk, county
of Wivrrs, 3§ miles (8.byW.) from Wilton, containing
663" inhabitagts. The living is a vicarage, in the
archdeaconty and dlocese of Salishury, fated in the
king's bsoks at £12. 1. 8,; there is also & sinecure
rectory, rated ab £ 19. 14..2,; both are in the patron.
of the Barl of Pembroke and Montgomery. The church,
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ledic to St. John the Baptist, is & handsome cruei.
fotm edifice, in the decorated style of English agghi-
tecture ; the chancel contains three seats in canopied
niches, and has a finely ornamented. roof.

‘BISHOPSTON, a parish in the hundred of Rams-
BURY, county of Wivrs, 54 miles (E.) from Swindon,
containing 572 inhabitants. The living is & vicarage,
in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the Preben-
dary of Bishopston in the Cathédral Church of Salis.
bury, rated in the king's books at £6. 6. 8. The church
is dedicated to St. Mary.

BISHOPSBONE, a parish in the hundred of GrimMs-
worTa, county of HEREYORD, 7 miles (W.N.W.) from
Hereford, containing 270 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged rectory, with the vicarage of Yazor annexed,
in the archdeaconry and diocese of Hereford, rated in
the king's books at £7. 7. 6., and in the patronage of
Sir Uvedale Price, Bart. The church is dedicated to
St. Lawrence.

BISHOPSTONE, a parish in the hundred of Bisuop-
sroNE, rape of Pevensey, county of Svssex, 1%
mile (N.W. by N.) from Seaford, containing 277 inha-
bitants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the
archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated
in the king’s books at £8. 13. 4., endowed with £200
royal bounty, and in the patronage of the Bishop of
Chicliester. The church, comprising a nave, two chan-
cels, and a tower, is chiefly in the Norman style of
architecture. The Rev. James Hurdis, Professor of
Poetry at Oxford, and author of the ** Village Curate,”
and other interesting poems, was born here, in 1763,

BISHOP'S STORTFORD, county of HERTFORD,—
See STORTFORD (BISHOP'S).

BISHOPSTROW, a parish in the hundred of W4r-
MINSTER, county of WiLts, 14 mile (E.S.E.) from
Warminster, containing 275 inhabitants. The living
iz a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Salis
bury, rated in the king's books at £11. 10,, and in the
patronage of Sir J. D. Astley, Bart. The church is de-
dicated to St. Adelme. About the commencement of
the present century, three urns, containing Roman
brass coins, were dug up here.

BISHOP'S WOOD, a township in the parish of
Brewoob, eastern division of the hundred of CurrLe-
sTONE, county of Starrorp. The population is returned
with the parigh,

BISHOP-THORPE, a parigh in the ainsty of the
city, and east riding of the county, of York, 34 miles
(8. by w.) from York, containing 301 inhabitants, The
living is & discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry: gnd
diocese of York, rated in the king's books at £4, en~
dowed with £400 private benefaction, and £400 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Archbishop of York,
The church, dedicated to St. Andrew, was rebuilt: by
Archbishop Drummond, in 1766, and edorned with. o g
rious window, brought from the castle of Cayolll.
perish was called St. Andrew’s Thorpe until '
was purchased, in the reign of John, by Wall
Archgishop of York, who built a palas
here ; on-which acconnt, the episcopyl preR
to it, and it has beenr the constant residance of i
bishops since the destruction of Cowie castie
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schiob] was erected in 1815, ~ Attached to it is & chapel,
founded by de Grey; it is in the early style of English

architectare,

BISHOPTON, & parishin the south-western division
of SrocxToN ward, county palatine of DvruaM, com-
prising the townships of Bishopton, East and West
Newbiggins, and Little Stainton, and containing 453
inhabitents, of which number, 365 are in the township
of Bishopton, 6 miles (W. by N.) from Stockton. The
living is a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Durham, rated in the king's books at
£4. 5. 10,, endawed with £200 private benefaction, and
£200 royal hounty, and in the patronage of the’ Master
and Brethren of Sherburn Hospital. The church is de-
dicated to St, Peter, A parochial school, with a house
for the master, was built a few years ago, by subscrip-
tion, and is partly supported by a small annuity. Ina
feld at the eastern extremity of the village there are
vestiges of an intrenchment, which is supposed to have
been part of the fortifications that guarded the mansion
of the faithful Roger de Conyers, from whom William
de St. Barbara, elect bishop of Durham, received power-
ful assistance in his struggle against Comyn, the usurper
of the see, about the middle of the twelfth century, and
at this secure retreat received the homage of those of
his vassals who returned to their duty.

BISHOPTON, a township in that part of the parish
of RiroN which is in the liberty of Rivon, West riding
of the county of Yorx, 21 miles (N.by w.) from Ripon,
containing 136 inhabitants.

BISHTON, a parish in the lower division of the
hundred of Carpicorr, county of MonMOUTH, 4 miles
(S.E. by E.) from Caerleon, containing 153 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Llandaff, endowed with £1000 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Archdeacon of Llan-
daff. The church is dedicated to St. Cadwallader.

BISLEY, a parish (formerly a market town) in
the hundred of BisLey, county of Groucester, 11
miles (8. E.) from Gloucester, and 97 (W.) from London,
containing 5421 inhabitants. The town is situated
partly on the acclivity of a hill, and partly in the vale
beneath it, which is watered by a small stream, The
streets arve irregularly formed, and contain few houses
of respectable appearance. The inhabitants are chiefly
employed in the manufacture of broad cloth, which is
carried on to 8 considerable extent. The Thames and
Severn canal passes through the parish, and, near the
extremity of it, enters a tunnel, through which it is
condacted for nearly two miles and a half under Sal-
perton hill, A market was formerly held here, but it
has been ‘@iscontinued : the fairs are on May 4th and
g‘g,ye‘mber 12th. The town is within the jurisdiction
B n tourt of ests held at Cirencester, for the
dreds of Cirencester, established by an act

3%nd of George {1, for the recovery of
+ 'constables and other officers are

court Jeet of the lord of the manor.
' it the archdeaconry and diocese
he king's books at £10. 10. 5.,
of the Crown. The church, de-
spacious and handsome
¢ and. partly in the
with & tower sur-
other interesting
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monufents is & statue of one of the family of Not-
tingham. In the churchyard there is an octagonal
cross, handsomely panelled in trefoil, and surmounted
with an ancient font, erected over a well, in whichk a
man having been drowned, the cemetery was placed
under an interdict for three years, during which time

the dead were carried to Bibury for interment. There

is a place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists. The

free school is supported by a portion of the produce of
lands left for the repair of the church, the payment of
the clerk, and the salary of the schoolmaster, who re-

ceives at present £13. 14. per annum. A Blue-coat

school for clothing and instructing ten boys, endowed

in 1820, by Mr, Taylor, has been incorporated with the

free school, and the master receives a salary of £12. 12,

per annum, for instructing the boys. The common, then

consisting of one thousand two hundred acres, was

given to the poor of this parish by Roger Mortimer,

Eari of March, in the reign of Edward III.; a cousi-

derable part of it has been enclosed. At Lilly-house, a

hamlet near the town, a vaulted chamber was discovered,
with several adjoining apartments, having tesselated
pavements, and niches in the walls; some other relics

of antiquity, supposed to be Roman, have also been
found at Custom-Scrubs, another adjacent hamlet,

BISLEY, a parish in the first division of the hun-
dred of Goprey, county of Surrey, 4 miles (8. E.)
from Bagshot, containing 273 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Surrey, and diocese
of Winchester, rated in the king’s books at £7.16. §.,
and in the patronage of the Rev. John King, the Rev.
Charles Simeon, und the Rev. — Ball. The cburch, part
of which is built with timber and brick plaistered over,
is dedicated to St.John the Baptist, and is said to be
six centuries old : near it there is a chalybeate spring,
called St. John the Baptist's well.

BISPHAM, a parish in the hundred of AMOUNDER-
NEss, county palatine of LancasTeR, comprising the
townships of Bispham with Norbreck, and Layion with
Warbrick, and containing 1072 inhabitants, of which
number, 323 are in the township of Bispham with Nor-
breck, 8 miles (W.N.W.) from Poulton. The living is
a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond,
and diocese of Chester, endowed with £400 private bene-
faction, and £400 royal hounty, and in the patronage of
B. Hesketh, Esq. Richard Higginson founded a school
in 1659, which he endowed with a rent-charge of £30;
the income, by subsequent benefactions, has been aug- -
mented to £70 per annum,

BISPHAM, a chapelry in the parish of CrosToN,
hundred of LEYLAND, county palatine of LANCABTER,
64 miles (N.E. by E.) from Ormskirk, containing 254
inhabitants, The living i & perpetual curacy, in the
archdeaconry and diocese of Chester, and in the pa-
tronage of the Trustees of the founders of the chapel,
which is dedicated to St. John. A free grammar school,
founded by Richard Durning, in 1692, is endowed with
an estate producing about £200 per annum. _

BISTERN-BARTLEY, a tything in the parish of
Fring, hundred of REpmripge, New Forest (East)
division of the county of Sournampron. The popula-
tion is returned with the parish.

BITCHFIELD, & parish in the wapentake of Brt-
TisLoE, parts of KreTevEN, county of Lincoww, 8%
miles (N. by W.) from Corby, containing 144 inhabit-

2A%



BIT

auts. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in.the king's
hooks at £5. 11. 5}, endowed with £200 parliament-
ary grant, and in the patronage of the Bishop of Lin-
coln, The church is dedicated to St, Mary Magda-
lene.

BITCHFIELD, a township in the parish of Stam-
FORDHAM, north-eastern division of TinparLe ward,
county of NORTHUMBERLAND, 18 miles (N.w.) from
Newcastle, containing 39 inhabitants. .

BITTADON, a parish in the hundred of Braun-
ToN, county of Drvon, 6} miles (N. by W.) from
Barnstaple, containing 52 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Barnstaple,
and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£5. 2. 8}, and in the patronage of G, A. Barbor, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

BITTERING (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred of
Launviren, county of NorroLk, 5 miles (N.W.) from
East Dereham, The population is retarned with the
parish of Beeston St. Mary. The living is a discharged
rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £2. 13. 6%., endowed with
£800 royal bounty, and in the patronage of James
Dover, Esq.

BITTERLEY, a parish partly in the hundred of
Muwnspow, but chiefly in the hundred of OvEers, county
of Saror, 41 miles (E.N.E.) from Ludlow, coutaining
1064 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Salop, and diocese of Hereford, rated
in the king's books at £18.6, 3., and in the patronage
of Sir J.D.King, Bart. The church is dedicated to St.
Mary. Johu Newborough, in 1712, gave £400, now
producing £34 per annum, toward the support of a
free grammar school,

BITTERN, a tything in that part of the parish of
Soutn SroneHAM which is in the hundred of Mans-
8RIDGE, Fawley division of the county of Sovrmamp-
TON, 2 miles (N.E.) from Southampton. The population
is returned with the parish. There is a place of wor-
ship for Wesleyan Methodists, Bitteru is within the
jurisdiction of the Cheyney Court held at Winchester
every Thursday, for the recovery of debts to any amount.
This was the site of the Roman station Clausentum : a
variety of Roman relics has been found,

BITTESBY, a liberty in the parish of CLAYBROOKE,
hundred of GuraLAxTON, county of LEricesrem, 3
miles (W. by N.) from Lutterworth, containing 11 in-
habitants.

BITTESWELL, a parish in the hundred of Gura-
LAXTON, county of LxicesTer, 1 mile (N. by W.) from
Lutterworth, containing 427 inhabitants. The living ie
a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Leicester,.and diocese
of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at £4. 3. 0f., and
in the alternate patronage of the Master and Werdens
of the Haberdashers' Company, and the Governors of
Christ's Hospital, London. The church is dedicated to
St, Mary. ‘The Roman Watling-strest passes along the

vérge of ihe parish, and there is & mineral spring within
its limits, : " -
‘BYTTISCOMBE, g hamlet in the parish of Uprox,

bundred of WiLLiToN. and FueEmAXNEas, county of are g

is returned with the pa.

Souzsser.  The
ciently & -chepel, which hes heen

rish, ‘Here was an
‘demolished.
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_ BITTON, a pari¢h' in the wpper -division of the hun-
dred of Langrey and Swingueip, county of Guou-
CESTER, comprising the chiipelries of Hanham and Old-
land, and the hamlet of Bitton, and containing 7171
inhabitants, of which number, 1788 are in the hamlet: of
Bitton, 6} miles (E. 8. E.) from Bristol. The living is
a discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Gloucester, rated in the king’s books at £18. 15.,
and in the patronage of the Prebendary of Bitton in
the Cathedral Church of Salisbury., The church, dedi-
cated to St. Mary, is a large and handsome edifice, with
a finely ornamented tower, partly Norman, and parily
in the later style of English architectute ; it contains
one thousand and nineteen sittings, of which eight
hundred and eighty-cight are free, and in 1822 was
constituted a district church. A chapel was built in
1820, under the provisions of & late act, toward the
expense of which the parliamentary commissioners
granted £2293. The river Avon flows along the south-
ern side of the parish.

BIX-BRAND, a parish in the hundred of Bin-
FIELD, county of OXrorp, 4 miles (N. W. by N.) from
Henley upon Thames, containing, with Bix-Gibwen, 383
inhabitants. The living is a rectory, with that of Bix-
Gibwen consolidated, in the archdeaconry and diocese of
Oxford, rated in the king's hooks at £9. 15., and in the
patronage of the Earl of Macclesfield. The church is
dedicated to St. James.

BIX-GIBWEN, a parish in the hundred of Bin-
FIELD, county of Oxrorp, 2L miles (N.W.) from Hen-
ley upon Thames. The population is returned with
Bix-Brand. The living is a rectory, consolidated with
that of Bix-Brand, in the archdeaconry and diocese
of Oxford. The church, which was dedicated to St.
Michael, is in ruins.

BIXLEY, a parish in the hundred of HensTraD,
county of NorFoLK, 3 miles (8.E. by 8.) from Nor-
wich, containing 107 inhabitants. The living is a dis-
charged rectory, with that of Earl's Framlingham united,
in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and diocese of Norwich,
rated in the king's books at £5, and in the patronage of
the Duke of Norfolk. The church, dedicated to St.
Wandegisilus, to whose image here pilgrimages were
formerly made, is an ancient edifice, built by William
de Dunwich, in 1272.

BIXTON, or BICKERSTON, a parish in the hun-
dred of Foremor, county of Norrork, 5% miles
(N. by w.) from Wymondham. The population is we-
turned with Barnham-Broom. The living is a rectory,
united, with that of Barnham-Broom, to the vi
of Kimberley, in the archdeaconry of Norfolk, and . dio-
cese of Norwich, rated in the king’s books ut #£%. 6.8,
The church, now desecrated, was dedicated to: ﬁt‘
Andrew. L

BLABY, & parish in the hundred of ‘Gyrnzas
county of Leicxsren, 4% miles (8. by W,
ter, containing, with the chapelry of
1730 inhabitants. The living is & re
deaconry of Leicester, and diocese ‘of
the king's books &t £18.5., and
Crown, The church is dedicated to
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Dartmonth, containing 1327 inhebitants. The Uving is
& dis . vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Totness,
and diocesd of Exeter, rated in the king's books at
£15. 8. 9, endowed with £200 private benefaction,
and #200 royal bounty, and in the patronage of Col.
Seale. The church, dedicated to St. Michael, contains
a Normaa font, and a wooden screen richly carved.
There is a place of worship far Wesleyan Methodists,
BLACKBOROUGH, a parish in the hundred of
Hayripex, county of Devon, 5 miles (E.8.E.) from
Coullompton, containing 74 inhabitants. The living is
a vectory, ennexed to that of Bundley, in the archdea
- conry and diocese of Exeter, rated in the king’s books
at £4. The church, which was dedicated to All Saints,
is desecrated, but the cemetery is still used.
. BLACKBROOK, or BLAKEBROOK, a hamlet in
that part of the parish of KippErmiNsTER which is
called the Foreign, lower division of the hundred of
Havrsuire, county of Worcester, § & mile (W.)
from Kidderminster. The population is returned with
the parish. Several new houses have lately been erect-
ed in this hamlet, which has become an agreeable part
of the environs of Kidderminster.
. BLACKBURN, & parish in the lower division of
the hundred of BLACKBURN, county palatine of Lan-
CASTER, comprising the market town of Blackburn, the
chapelries of Balderston, Billington, Great Harwood, Over
Darwen, Mellor, Salesbury, Samlesbury, Tockholes, and
Walton le Dale, and the townships of Clayton le Dale,
Cuerdale, Lower Darwen, Dinkley, Eccleshill, Little
Harwood, Livesey, Osbaldeston, Pleasington, Rams-
grave, Rishton, Wilpshire, and Witton, and contain-
ing 58,350 inhabitants, of which number, 21,940 are in
the town of Blackburn, 31 miles (8.E. by 8.) from Lan-
caster, and 210 (N.N,W.) from London. This place
takes its name from a small rivulet flowing near the
town, which, from the turbid state of the water, was
anciently called Blakeburn, or the yellow bourne. A
castle is said to have been built here, probably by the
Romans, which, after their departure from the island,
was occupied successively by the Britons and the
Saxons; but there are no vestiges of it, nor can even
its site be distinctly ascertained. Blackburn was for-
merly the capital of a district, called Blackburnshire,
which for many ages was a dreary and uncultivated
waste. In the reign of Elizabeth, it was distinguished
as a good market town, and, in the middle of the follow-
ing century, was celebrated for its supplies of corn, cat-
tle, and provisions, The town is pleasantly situated on
the northern bank of the river Derwent, over which
#re three stone bridges, and in a valley sheltered by
u.ridge of hills, extending from the north-east to the
b :+. it consists of several streets, irregularly
. ,"but containing several well-built, and many re-
Jo, houses; it is well paved, lighted with gas,
gupplied with water. In 1824, an act of
£%Rs obtained for constructing & ncw turn-
Prestun&ecrosmng the river Ribble at
the

distance is shortened nearly
the same act the town has been
are assembly-rooms, a sub-
Linnman Society, and a theatre,

18, The mapufacture of Black-
goutly that of Blackburn greys,
~which formerly flour-
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ished here to a considerable extent, have been super-
weded by the manufacture of calico, muslin, and cotton
goods: not less than forty thousaud pieces of the last

. are, on an average, made weekly, in which about ten

thousand persons are employed: the value of these
goods, exclusively of dyeing and printing, is estimated
at two millions sterling per annum. There are large
factories for the spinning of cotton, printing and dye-
ing establishments, and extensive bleaching gronnds.
Some of the earliest and most important improve-
ments in the spinning and manufacture of cotton ori-
ginated with James Hargreave, a carpenter in this town,
who was the inventor and patentee of the spinning
jenny, which has since been 8o generally adopted. The
introduction of machinery into the factories excited
a powerful sensation among the workmen of this place,
and created such tumultuous proceedings on the part
of the populace, who destroyed several of the factories
in which it was used, that the inventor was driven
from the town; and many individuals who had invested
large capitals in the establishment of cotton-factories,
were go intimidated, that they embraced the earliest
opportunity of withdrawing their investments, and re-
moving to places where they might employ them with
greater security. Therc are at present about one hun-
dred thousand spindles in operation in the town and
neighbourhood, which produce about thirty-five thou-
sand pounds of yarn weekly. The Leeds and Liverpool
canal passes the town, and affords communication with
the Mersey, the Dee, the Ouse, the Trent, the Humber,
the Severn, and the Thames, forming a most extensive
line of inland navigation. The market days are
Wednesday and Saturday: the fairs are held on Easter-
Monday, May 11th and 12th, and October 17th; a cat-
tle fair is also held on the first Wednesday before Fe-
bruary 2nd, and on every alternate Wednesday till
Michaelmas. The want of a convenient market-place
is strongly felt in this populous town ; Fleming-square
has been recently appropriated for this purpose, but
the area is scarcely large cnough. One side of the
square is occupied by a spacious cloth-hall, erccted
for the exhibition and sale of Yorkshire woollen cloths,
a great quantity of which is brought hither. Black-
burn is within the jurisdiction of the magistrates act-
ing for the hundred to which it gives name: two high
constables are appointed, one for the upper, and one
for the lower, division, for which latter, together with
Whalley, & court of petty session is held here. Its
local concerns are under the superintendence of com-
missioners appointed by a special act of parliament.
This extensive parish, which is fourteen miles in
length, and ten in breadth, was formerly part of the
parish of Whalley; on being separated from which,
it was, on account of its sterility, endowed with a
fourth part of the tithes of that parish, in addition to
its own. The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Chester, rated in the King's books at
£86. 1. 8, and in the patronage of the Archbishop of
Canterbury. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, and
formerly the conventual church of the monastery of
‘Whalley, was rebuilt in the reign of Edward I11,, and
again in that of Henry VIIL; but in 1819 it was taken
down, with the exception of the tower, and the chapel
of the Duncen family, which contains the altar, and in
which baptisms and marriages are still solemnized, and



BLA

the funeral rervice is performed. A new church was

completed in 1826, on the site of the old grammar
school, at an expense of £%6,000, raised by a rate
under an act of parliament passed in 1819: it wad a
gpacious and elegant edifice, partly in the decorated,
and partly in the later, style of English architecture,
with a lofty square tower, highly enriched, and crowned
with a pierced parapet and crocketed pinnacles, but was
burned down in January 1831, The interior is lufty
in its proportions, and elegant in its details; the nave
is lighted with a fine range of double clerestory win-
dows, and those in the aisles are enriched with flowing
tracery of graceful character, The chapels of St. John
and S5t. Peter are both neat modern edifices: St. Peter's
is a chapel of ease; the living of St. John's is a per-
petual curacy, in the patronage of the Vicar of Black-
burn, in whom is also vested the presentation to the
several perpetual curacies in the parish, with the ex-
ception of that of Saleshury. At Lower Darwen, Over
Darwen, and Mellor, new cburches have been erected,
the expense of each having been partly defrayed by
grant from the parliamentary commissioners; they are
all in the later style of English architecture, with
towers, and were begun in 1827, and completed in
1829. The church at Lower Darwen contaius seven hun-
dred and twenty-three free sittings, and the cost of its
erection was £5491. 2, 6. : that at Over Darwen, which
containg nine hundred and eighty-five free sittings,
was erected at an expense of £6573.4.9.; and that
at Mellor, which has a spire, and contains six hun-
dred und seventy-eight free sittings, cost £5275.6.9.
There are two places of worship each for Baptists and
Independents, and one each for the Society of Friends,
Primitive and Wesleyan Methodists, Swedenborgians,
and Unitarians, besides two Roman Catholic chapels,
The free grammar school was founded in the reign of
Elizabeth, who placed it under the superintendence of
fifty governors resident in the town, who are a corpo-
rate body, and appoint the master : it iz endowed with
land in the neighbourhood, producing £ 120 per annum ;
there are thirty boys on the foundation : the premises,
congisting of a school-room and house for the master,
are handsomely built of stone. The Rev. Robert Bol-
ton, an eminent divine, and one of the compilers of the
Liturgy, was a native of this town, and received the
rudiments of his education in the school. In 1764,
Mr. John Leyland bequeathed £250 for the instruction
of poor girls in reading, writing, sewing, and knitting;
this sum has heen augmented by subsequent bene-
factions, and at present ninety girls are instructed and
clothed. There is also a National school, sapported by
subscription, in which eight hundred children of both
sexes are taught. The general dispensary was esta-
blished in 1828 : there are a ladies’ society for the relief
of poor women during child-birth at their own houses,
a strangers' friend society, and several other charitable
institutions.

BLACK-CHAPEL, a chapelry in the parich of
Grear WartuaMm, hundred of Curimsromrp, county
of Essex, 9 miles (N. by W.) from Chelmsford. The
population is returned with the parish,

BLACKDEN, a township in that part of the parish
of SaAnpBACH Which is in the hundred of NorTRWICH,
county palatine of Cuzerer, 61 miles (8.8.E.) from
Kuutsford, containing 191 inhahitants,
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BLACKFORD, a.chapelry in the parish of Wep.
moRE, hundred of Bemesrong, county of SomEnseT,
5} miles (8. by W.) from Axbridge. The population is
returned with the parish, The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of
Bath and Welle, and in the patronage of the Dean of
Wells. The chapel is of recent erection, towards de-
fraying the expense of which the Incorporated Society
for the enlargement of churches and chapels gave £200.
The manor was given as part of the endowment of
Bruton Hospital, by Hugh Saxey, Esq., the founder;
and two boys are annually sent from this place to
be educated at that institation, Here is a mineral
spring

BLACI\FORD @ parish in the h\mdred of Warr-~
LEY, though locally in the hundred of Horethorne,
county of Somerser, 4% miles (W.8. W.) from Win-
canton, containing 164 inhabitants, The living is a
discharged rectory, in the archdeacoory of Wells, and
diocese of Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at
£6. 11. 04., endowed with £1200 parliamentary grant,
and in the patronage of the Rev. J. Richards. The
church, dedicated to St. Michael, is in the early style
of English architecture, but there is a Norman arch
over the entrance.

BLACKFORDBY, a chapelry in the parish of Asn-
BY de la Zovucu, western division of the hundred of
Goscorg, county of LeicestEr, 3§ miles (W.N.W.)
from Ashby de la Zouch, contuining 290 inhabitants,
The chapel is dedicated to St. Marguret. There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, The Ashby
de la Zouch canal crosses the wolds south of this place.

BLACKHEATH, avillage situated within the parishes
of GrREENwiCcH, LEwrsHam, and Lgx, in the hundred
of Brackuears, lathe of Surron at Hong, county of
KxnT, 5 miles (8.E.) from London, on the road to Dovor.
The population is returned with the respective parishes,
This place, which takes its name either from the co-
lour of the soil, or from the bleakmness of its situation,
prior to the erection of the numerous villas with which
it abounds, was the scene of many important political
transactions. In 1011, the Danes having landed at
Greenwich, encamped on the heath, and, among other
barbarities, put to death Alphege, Archhishop of Can-
terbury, who had refused to sanction their extortions,
and who was afterwards canonized. In the reign of
Richard I1., the insurgents under Wat Tyler, amount-
ing to one hundred thousand men, took up their
station here, whence they marched to London. in
1400, Henry IV, held an interview at this place with
the Emperor of Constantinople, who came to solicit aid
against Bajazet, Emperor of the Turks; and in 1415,
the lord mayor and aldermen of London in thqir rola

to meet Henry V., on his trmmphant re
battle of Agmcourt In 1451, Henry V'
the followers of Jack Cade, who submit
thority, and on their knees implored. gr
pardon; and here, the following ye
assembled his forces to oppose Richard
who aspired to the throne. In 1497
rebels, headed by Lord Audley, who: had

Kent, ‘near. Elthan i ¢
of Henry VH., on. wh
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the 22nd of July, in-which the insurgents were defeated,
and-their leader, together with two' of his associates
who had excited' the rebellion, taken and executed.
In 1519, Campejo, the pope’s lepate, was received here
in great state by the Duke of Norfolk, with a nume-
rous retinue of bishops, knights, and gentlemen, who
conducted him to a magnificent tent of cloth of gold,
whence, after having arrayed himself in his cardinal's
robes, he proceeded to London; and at this place, in
1540, Henry VIII. appointed an interview with Anne
of Cleves, previously to their marriage, which was cele-
brated, with great pomp in the chapel at Greenwich.
Blackheath is pleasuntly situated on elevated gfdund,
commanding diversificd and extensive views of the sur-
rounding country, which is richly cultivated, and
abounds with fine scenery, in which Greenwich Hos-
pital, the park, and the river Thames, are prominent
objects, There are many elegant villas, among which
the Paragon, a beautiful range of building, is emi-
nently conspicuous: 6n the west, and within the park,
is the residence of the Princess Sophia of Gloucester,
formerly occupied by the Duchess of Brunswick : the
mansion in which the Princess of Wales resided has been
lately taken down. Wricklemarsh House, once the
noblest ornament of the heath, erected early in the
last century, by Sir Gregory Page, was rased to the
ground in 1787, by the different purchasers to whom
it had been sold in lots by public auction; its site,
now called Park-road, is occupied by handsome cot-
tages. There are two cpiscopal chapels, one on that
part of the heath which is in the parish of Lewisham,
and the other at Kidbrook, an extra-parochial district
on the north side of the heath, built by Dr. Greenlaw.
The free grammar school, for thirty-onc boys of Lew-
isham and the adjoining parishes, and for the sons
of all the clergy in the hundred of Blackheath, was
founded by the Rev. Abraham Colfe, vicar of Lewis-
ham, who erected the premises in 1652, and at his
death, in 1656, bequeathed the greater part of his
estate in land, and £1100 in money, in trust to the
Leather-sellers’ Company, for its endowment, and for
other charitable uses, The income is £34%2. 15, 6. per
anuum : the master, who is allowed to take twenty-six
boarders, receives about £40 per annum, and resides
in the house free of rent; the instruction of the free
scholars is now confined to English and writing.
There were seven exhibitions, of £10 each per annum,
to .either of the Universities; but from a failure in
funds. appropriated to that use, they have been
wome years discontinued. A British school for
and several small schools, are also supported by
benevolence of the resident gentry. Morden
moble institution for the support of decayed
in the decline of life, was founded by Sir
pny; Bart,, an opulent Turkey merchant, in
ved it with the manor of Old Court,
80 per annum : the estublishment con-
: & chaplain, and a treasurer;
-wested im seven trustees, who
v zaevchants, or Directors of the

"The premises, which occupy a
, ‘we. handsomely built of  brick,
pornices. of gisne; und are surrounded
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and in the chapel are the arms of Sir John; who was
interred there in 1708, . >

At the distance of two or three hundred yards
north of Blackheath hill, a cavern, containing several
apartments, was discovered in 1780: it is supposed
to have been formed ag a place of security during
the Saxon and Danish contests ; but every attempt to
explore it has been frustrated, from the falling in of
the earth, and nothing has yet been found to illustrate
its history. The Watling-street, or Roman road from
London to Dovor, which passed over the heath, may
still be traced; and in 1710, several Roman urns were
dug up, two of which were of fine red clay, one of a
s‘pherical, and the other of & cylindrical, formm: the
former, about two fect in diameter, contained ashes,
and was rudely inscribed, near the mouth, with the
words “Marcus Aurelius IIIE; " the latter, cighteen
inches in height, contained ashes and some coins, on
which, though much obliterated, the names of the em-
perors Claudius and Gallienus were legible. In 1803,
several urns were also discovered in the gardens of the
Earl of Dartmouth, sbout a foot below the surface of
the ground, which were presented by his lordship to
the British Museum,

BLACKLAND, a parish in the hundred of CaLng,
county of Wirts, 14 mile (8. E.) from Calne, containing
44 inhabitants. The living is u discharged rectory,
within the jurisdiction of the Prebendary of Calne in
the Cathedral Church of Salishury, rated in the king's
books at £3. 10. 10., snd in the patronage of the Rev.
James Mayo. The church is dedicated to St. Peter.

BLACKLEY, a chapelry in the parish of Man-
cuksTER, hundred of Savvowp, county palatine of
LaNcasTER, 3] miles (N.N.E.) from Manchester, con-
taining 2911 inhabitants. The living is a perpetual
curacy, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Chester,
endowed with £200 royal bounty, snd £600 parlia-
mentary grant, and in the patronage of the Warden
and Fellows of the Collegiate Church of Manchester.
The chapel, dedicated to St. Peter, was, previously to
the Reformation, a domestic chapel belonging to Black-
ley Hall, and, after a period of disuse, was purchascd
by the inhabitants, in 1610 : it has lately received an
addition of four hundred sittings, half of them free,
toward defraying the expense of which the Incorpo-
rated Society for the cnlargement of churches and
chapels gave £400. There ure places of worship for
Wesleyan Methodists and Socinians. The inhabitants
are chiefly employed in weaving, printing, bleaching,
and dyeing cotton. A school, in connexion with the
established church, has an endowment of £5 per annum,
and is further supported by contributions : the school-
room was built in 1794.

BLACKMANSTONE, & parish within the liberty of
RomNev-Marsn,though locallyin the hundred of Warth,
lathe of SuErway, county of KenT, 3 miles (N. by E.)
from New Romney, containing 8 inhabitants. The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Canter-
bury, rated in the king's books at £4, and in the patron-
age of the Archbishop of Canterbury. The church is
desecrated, und the population has for seversl years been
decreasing.

BLACKMORE, s parizh in the hundred of CaxLMs-
¥orD, county of Essex, 34 miles (N.W. by W.) from
Ingatestone, containing 657 inhabitants, The living iss
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vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Essex, and' diocese
of London, rated in the king's books at £6.13, 4., en-
dowed with a rent-charge of £20 private benefaction,
£400 royal bounty, and £1400 parliamentary grant.
The King presented by lapse in 1808. The church,
dedicated to St. Lawrence, was the conventual church
of a priory of Black canons, which was built by Adam
and Jordan de Samford, about the commeuncement of
the reign of John: it was dissolved in the 17th of
Henry VII1., at which time the revenue, amounting to
£85. 9.7., was applied by Cardinal Wolsey toward the
endowment of his twe colleges at Oxford and Ipswich,
and on his attainder, in 1529, was appropriated to the
crown. Henry VIII, afterwards occasionally resided in
the house, which, having lately undergone a thorough
repair, is now an elegant private mansion,

BLACKPOOL, a chapelry and bathing-place in the
parish of Bispaam, hundred of AMOUYNDERNESS, county
palatineof LancasTrR, 4 miles (8.W.by W.) from Poulton,
and 25 (S.W. by W.) from Lancaster, containing 800
resident inhabitants. The living is a perpetual curacy,
in the archdeaconry of Richmond, and diocese of
Chester, endowed with £600 private benefaction, and
#1700 parliamentary grant, and in the patronage of
P. Hesketh, Ezq. The chapel was built in 1821, at
an expense of £1150, and the Incorporated Society
for the enlargement of churches and chapels granted
£200 for defraying the expense of a greater number
of sittings. Blackpool, which acquired its name from
& boggy pool at the southern end of the village, was,
until within the last eighty years, an inconsiderable
place ; but, owing to its eligibility for bathing, it is now
frequented every summer by a crowd of visitors, for
whose accommodation commodious hotels and lodg-
ing-houses have been erected. The beach slopes gently
from the site of the houses; the sands are smooth
and firm ; and the air is highly salubrious. The parade
forms an agreeable promenade, from which there is an
extensive view of the fells in Westmorland and Cumber-
land, and the mountains jp North Wales. Excellent
regulations have been introduced for the convenience of
bathers; anews-room and library have been established,
a theatre erected, and assemblies are occasionally held
at the different hotels, Every alternate Sunday during
the season the inhabitants of the surrounding district
assemble at Lane End, and join in various rustic sports.
The sea appears to have encroached considerably on
the shore; a large stone, called Penny-stone, lying on
the sands, about half a mile from the shore, is stated by
tradition to mark the site on which a public-house
formerly stood. A free school was established in 1817,
which is conducted on Dr. Bell's plan.

BLACKROD, a chapelry in the parish of Borron,
hundred of SaLrorp, county palatine of LANCASTER,
4% miles (8.8.E.) from Chorley, containing 2436 inha-
bitants. The living is a perpctual curacy, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Chester, endowed with £200
private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of the Vicar of Great Bolton. The chapel is
dedicated to St,Catherine, There is a place of worship
for Wesleyan Methodists. This is the site of a Roman
station, named Coccium by Antonine, and Rigodunum
by Ptolemy, which was situated on the Watling-street,
The spinning of cotton, and the printing of calico, are
carried on within the chapelry, its trade being facilitated
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by a branch of the Lancaster canal, which crosses it
A fair for toys and pedlary is held on the first Thurs.
day after July 12th. A respectable free grammar school,
under the supezintendence of trustees, is endowed with
about £140 per annum, being the produce of various
benefactions. John Holmes, in 1568, founded an ex-
hibition at Pembroke College, Cambridge, for a scho-
lar on this foundation; the fund having aceumulated,
three exhibitioners are now appointed, receiving re-
spectively £60, £70, and £80, per annum, for four
years. The house for the master was rebuilt in 1798,

BLACKTHORN, a chapelry in the parish of Am-
prod®u~, hundred of BULLINGTON, county of Ox-
¥ORD, 3 miles (S.E. by E.} from Bicester, containing
393 inhabitants. The chapel is in ruins. The Roman
Akeman-street enters the county here, and proceeds
over Blackthorn hill, in its course through the parish.
The custom of running at the quintal, or quintain, the
origin and practice of which gre attributed to the
Romans, was anciently observed™n the occasion of a
wedding in this chapelry.

BLACKTOFT, a parish in the wapentake of How-
peNsHIRE, East riding of the county of York, com-
prising the townships of Blacktoft and Scalby, and
containing 457 inhabitants, of which number, 278 are
in the township of Blacktoft, 74 miles (E.8.E.) from
Howden. The living is a perpetual curacy, within the
jurisdiction of the peculiar court of Howdeunshire, en-
dowed with £200 private benefaction, and £ 1000 royal
bounty, and in the patronage of the Dean and Chapter
of Durham. The village is situated on the northern
bank of the Ouse, one mile above its confluence with
the Trent, and there are usually vessels lying at anchor
opposite to it.

BLACKWALL, a hamlet in the parish of Sterngy,
Tower division of the hundred of OssuLsTONE, county
of MippLESEX, 24 miles (B.) from London. The po-
pulation is returned with Poplar. This place, which
is situated near the influx of the river Lea into the
Thames, consists chiefly of a few irregularly formed
streets, which are paved, and lighted with gas; the
houses, many of which are of wood, and of mean ap-
pearance, are inhabited chiefly by shipwrights, and per-
sons employed in the docks: the inhabitants are sup-
plied with water by the Kast London Water Company.
It has long been noted for a very large private yard
for ship-building, and a wet dock, formerly belonging
to Mr, Perry, the former of which was purchased by
Sir Robert Wigram, Bart., and is still applied to.the
same use; and the latter by the East India Comp
for the formation of their docks, which were comn
in 1804, and completed in 1806. These @
situated at the eastern extremity of the' ham|
surrounded by a lofty wall : the entrance fi
is through a handsome gateway, surm
square turret, supporting an octagonal
which is a tablet, recording the date of
they consist of an outer and an inney,
with walls, and communicating: by}
The entrauce from the river.i#
sicres in extent, from wig
Qocks : the inuer, or i
sard four hundred. fedl
in breadth, andof an
pies an ares of wighien
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thielr ‘cargoes, though, from the custom-house regule-
tiohs, only twelve landitig dfficers being appointed, no
oore then twelve vessels can be wnloaded at the same
time. The onter, or export dock, is seven hundred and
eighty feet long and five hundred and twenty feet wide,
and of ‘the same depth as the inner dock; it was en-
larged in 1817 by an additional basin, prior to which
its. area was rather more than nine acres. Extensive
ranges of warehouses have been erected within the
walls : ‘those on the north side are for saltpetre, on
the south for storing the cargoes iraported in ship-
pi'ng belgnging to the private trade, and, on thilfeast
side of the import dock, for such goods as are not
removed to-the Company’'s warechouses. Sheds are also
ranged round the docks, for the numerous vans em-
ployed in removing the merchandise to its several
places of destination : these, of which seldom less than
eighty are in constagl use, are strong carriages built
expressly for the pufflose, and secured with bars and
locks, with doplicate keys, one of which is kept at the
docks, and the other at the Company's warehouses.
At Blackwell Reach, adjoining this hamlet, are the West
India docks, similarly constructed, but upon a more
extensive scale. These consist of two spacious docks
parallel with each other, and of equal dimensions, being
nearly half a mile in length, excavated in & direction
crossing the isthmus of the Isle of Dogs, and having
an entrance basin of large extent at each extremity, by
which vessels sailing in either direction may avoid the
circuitous bend of the river. Between the docks are
extensive ranffes of warehouses, as also on the south
side of the inner dock, for the convenience of forwarding
goods by land carriage, and on the north side of the
outer dock, in front of which is a canal three quar-
ters of a mile in length, intersecting the Isle of Dogs,
and forming a direct communication with the river at
two points, between which the distance, by sailing round
the isle, i¢ nearly four miles and & half.

BLACKWATER, a large village in the parish of
YareLy, hundred of CronvaLL, Basingstoke division
of the county of SourHamPTON, 15 miles (E.N.E.) from
Basingetoke, The population is returned with the pa-
rish. Tt occupies a low situation on the great western
ropd, at the point of junction of the three counties of
Senthampton, Surrey, and Berks, on the western bank
of the river Blackwater, which is here crossed by a
bridge::son the northern side of the road is a range of
me buildings, appropriated as residences for the
of -the adjoining college .of Sandhurst. It is
indebted for the traffic it enjoys to the num-
wohves that . pass’ through it daily., There is
worship for Particular Baptists. A fair for
fseep e hield on September sth. Blackwater
diction . of the Cheyoey Court held at
Thuraday, for the recovery of debts
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BEACKHALL (HIGH), a town-
ot “parish of St. CUTHBERT,
MBERLAND ward, county -of
from. Carligle, containing
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afterwards. Lord High

g-11, for success-

W;Mwwmmmnmmsmn ships to unload .

184

BLA

fully conducting her cause against Sir Robert de Bride-
kirk, who had impugned ber title to the baroay of
Wigton. Thomas Lowrey, Esq,, in 1779, bequesthefl
£200, directing that one-half of the interest should be
given to a schoolmaster for teaching poor childrem,
and the remainder to poor widows. In 1798, Grace
Glrlr.aham gave £100 to a school at Durdar, in this town-
ship.

- BLACKWELL, or BLACKHALL (LOW), a town-
ship in that part of the parish of St, CuTuBERT, CAR-
LISLE, which is in CuMBERLAND ward, county of Cum-
BERLAND, 2 miles (8.) from CarlisLe, containing 124 in-
habitants.

BLACKWELL, a chapelry in the parish of Bake-
WELL, hundred of Hign Prax, county of Dermy, 8}
miles (8. W.) from Tideswell, containing 58 inhabitants.

BLACKWELL, a parish in the hundred of Scars-
pALE, county of Derpy, 3% miles (N.E. by E.) from
Alfreton, containing 457 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Derby, and
diocese of Lichfield and Coventry, rated in the king's
books at £5. 4. 2., endowed with £800 royal bounty,
and in the patronage of the Duke of Devonshire. The
church, dedicated to St. Werburgh, was rebuilt in 1826,
Coal is obtained in the parish,

BLACKWELL, a township in the parish of Dar-
LINGTON, south-eastern division of DARLINGTON ward,
county palatine of Duruam, 1} mile (5. W. by 8.) from
Darlington, containing 268 inhabitants., There is a
place of worship for Wesleyan Methodists, The river
Tees is navigable here, and a railway from Croftbridge
to Darlington passes in the vicinity, At the Grange,
in this township, then the property and residence of
George Allan, Esq., there was formerly an extensive
collection of books, manuscripts, paintings, natural and
artificial curiosities, and British birds stuffed, formed
at a considerable expense by that gentleman, who had
also a press, with which he printed several works, some
of them very scarce : this ingenious topographer, anti-
quary, and virtuoso, the early part of whose life was
spent in the profession of the law, died of paralysis,
May 18th, 1800.

BLACKWELL, a hamlet in the parish of TREDING-
ToN, upper division of the hundred of OswaLpsrow,
county of WoRCESTER, 2} miles (N.N.W.) from Ship-
ston upon Stour, containing 228 inhabitauts.

BLACKWOOD, a joint township with Croborough,
in the parish of HortoN, northern division of the
hundred of TorMoNsLOW, county of STA¥FORD, 4 miles
(w.) from Leek, containing, with Croborough, 561 in-
habjtants,

BLACKWORTH, a township in the parish of
Earspon, castern division of CasTLe ward, county of
NORTHUMBERLAND, 4§ miles (N.W.) from North Shields,
containing 243 inhabitants. Here is an extensive col-
liery, the produce of which, known as “ Northumberland
Wallsend,” and *“ Earsdon Main,” is of a superior quality,
A school-room has been built, chiefly at the expense.of
the Duke of Northumberland. o

BLACON, a joint township with Crabhall, in that
part of the parish of Howvy TrINITY, CHESTER, Which
is in the higher division of the hundred of WingAvLy,
county palatine of CHESTER, 2 miles (W.N.W,) from.

* Chester, containing, with Crabhall, 75 inhabitents, The
Ellesmere canal passes in the vicinity.
+ ‘ ‘ 2B
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BLADON, a parish in the hundred of Woorrox,
county of Oxrorp, 2 miles (8.) from Woodstock, con-
taining, with the hamlet of Hensington, 510 inhabitants.
The living is a rectory, with the chapelry of New Wood-
stock anunexed, in the archdeacoury and diocese of Ox-
ford, rated in the king's books at £16. 0. b., end. in the
patronage of the Duke of Marlborough. - The church is
dedicated to St. Martin, There is a small endowment
tor the education of poor children,

BLAENAVON, a parochial chapelry in the hundred
of ABERGAVENNY, county of MoNMoUTH, 5 miles (8. w.)
from Abergavenny, qontaining about 2500 inhabitants.
The living is a perpetual curacy, in the archdeaconry
and diocese of Llandaff, endowed with £400 royal
bounty, and £2000 parliamentary grant, and in the pa-
tronage of Thomas Hill, Esq. There are two places
of worship for Baptists. The village, which has of late
assumed the appearance of a thriving town, lies ina
mountainous district, near the source of the Avon Lwyd,
whence it derives its name ; many of the houses are ex-
cavated in the solid rock. The neighbourhood abounds
with iron-ore, coal, and limestone; and iron-works, on
an cxtensive scale, were completed here in 1789, since
which they have been progressively increasing: the
major portion of the pig iron is conveyed, by means
of a canal and a rail-road, to Newport, whence it is
exported. A customary market is held on Saturday.
Ncar the iron-works stands a spacious English free
school, endowed in 1816 by Mrs, Sarah Hopkins, for
the instruction of the children of the miners : the pre-
sent number, including both sexes, is about two hun-
dred and forty.

BLAGDON, a township in the parish of Stanning.
ToN, western division of CAsTLE ward, county of NorTa-
UMBERLAND, 63 miles (8.) from Morpeth, containing 64
inhabitants.

BLAGDON, a tything in the parish of PrrmiNsTer,
hundred of TauntoN and Taunton-DEeaN, county of
SomerseT, 5 miles (8, by W.) from Taunton. The po-
pulation is returned with the parish. There is a place
of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.

BLAGDON, a parish in the hundred of WiNTER-
STOKE, county of Somerset, 6} miles (N. E. by E)
from Axbridge, containing 1068 inhabitants, The living
is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of
Bath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £29. 13. 9.,
and in the patronage of George Thorne, Esq. The church,
dedicated to St. Andrew, has lately been rebuilt, towards
defraying the expense of which the Incorporsted So-
ciety for the enlargement of churches and chapels grant-
ed £500. John Langhorne, D.D., a poet and miscella-
neous writer, and for some time rector of this parish,
lies interred in the churchyard. There is 2 place of
worship for Methodists. Lapis calaminaris is found in
the vicinity, aud teasel, for the use of the clothiers, is
cuitivated to a great extent : here is also & paper-miil.
Thomas Baynard, by indenture dated November Sth,
1687, gave land for the instruction of eight poor chil-
dren: the endowment now produces £17. 10. per an-
num, for which seventeen children are gratuitously
taught to read and write. There ave also benefactions
for the use of the poor, and & fund of £13 per annum,

arising from land given by Joht Leman, for apprenticing

children. At a place called Reg-hill-bury, where are some
ruins, tradition relutes that a roysl palace once stood, "
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BLAGRAVE, o joint tything with Hadley, i the
parish and hundred of Lammovry, county of Berxe,
containing, with Hadley, 451 inhabitants, S

BLAISDON, a parish in the hundred of WesrsuURY,
county of GLOUCESTER, 33 miles (E. 5. ,%l') from Mit.
chel-Dean, containing 248 inhabitants. The living is
a discharged rectory, in the archdeaconry of Hereford,
and diocese of Gloucester, rated in the king's books at
£5.7. 3., and in the patronage of Anna Gordon. The
church is dedicated to St, Michael. ‘

BLAKEMERE, a parish in the hundred of Wen-
TREE, county of HEREFORD, 104 miles (W.by N.) from
Her&ord, containing 163 inhabitants. The living is a
discharged vicarage, with that of Preston upon Wye
united, in the peculiar jurisdiction and patronage of the
Dean of Hereford, rated in the king's books at £3,
endowed with £400 royal bounty, and in the patronage
of the Dean apd Chapter. The church is dedicated to
St. Leonard. .

BLAKENEY, a chapelry iff the parish of Awnz,
hundred of BripesiLox, county of GLOUCESTER, 15
miles (S. W. by W.) from Gloucester. The population
is returned with the parish. The chapel, dedicated to
All Saints, has lately been enlarged by the addition of
five hundred sittings, three hundred and sixty-four of
which are free, and towards defraying the expense the
Incorporated Society for the enlargement of churches
and chapels granted £110. There is a place of wor-
ship for Baptists. The navigable river Severn passes
through the vicinity. Fairs for the sale of live stock
are held on April 23rd anfl November 12th.

BLAKENEY, a small sea-port and parish in the
hundred of Howt, county of Norrork, 1} mile (N, w.)
from Clay, and 125 (N. E.) from London, containing
408 inhabitants, This place is chicfly noted for its
excellent harbour, which is well situated for sheltering
vessels, and has a good opening to the North sea. 1t
was called Snitterley in the reign of Henry 111, who
grauted it a market ; it first assumed its present name
in the reign of Edward IIL, in the 31st of which a sta-
tute was passed for the regulation of the fish trade,
which was then carried onto a considerable extent, and
attracted a great number of German merchants, several
of whom fixed their residence in the town, The har-
bour has been improved under an act of parliament
obtained in 1817, and vessels of considerable burden
can now approach the quay. The port is under the
superintendence of the custom-house establishment at
Clay : the trade with the northern states of Eurcpe. js
rapidly increasing; a few vessels are cmployed in th
oyster fisheries, and the coasting trade is' consid
The number of vessels belonking to the poet, s
to the return made in 1828, was fifty, averagii
five tona' burden. There is an ancient guil
town, relative to which some old deeds
The living is 8 rectory, with the re
the vicarage of Little Langham, an
racy of Glandford ennexed, in the 3
folk, and diocese of Norwich, rate
at £26. 13.4, and in the patrenage;
The  church, - dedicated to St N
structure of stone and fint, with
tower, which serv land-mark tg
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Aor the goidewice: of vassels ; the roof of the chaueel is
coriously vatlted with stone. There is & place of ‘wor-
jp for Methodists. The ‘Sunday school' near the
eidrch wisserdeted by Lord Celthorpe, and is conduct-
_eduponi'Dry Bell's system. There arc some remains,
coneisting ‘principally of several fine arches, of un an-
clentt midnbistery for Carmelites, founded in 1320 to the
honoarof God and the Virgin Mary, in which John de
Baconthorpe, a learned divine and acute metaphysician,
became a friar, and ultimately Provincial of the English
Carmelites; he was born here, and died in London in

1348, ‘ ,

- ‘BLAKENHALL, a township in the parish of Wy-

sUNBURY, hundred of NanTwics, county palatine of

Curerer, 54 wmiles (8. B, by B.) from Nantwich, con-

taining 225 inhabitants.

"“BLAKENHAM (GREAT), a parish in the hundred

of Bisuere and Cravpon, county of Svrronx, 3}

miles (8. E. by 8.) from Needham, containing 162 in-

habitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdeaconry of Suffolk, and diocese of Norwich, rated
in the king's books at £6. 16. 03., and in the patron-
age of the Provost and Fellows of Eton College. The
<hurch is dedicated to St. Mary, Walter Gifford, Earl
of Buckingham, appropriated this manor, in the time
of William II., to the abbey of Bec in Normandy, the
society of which established a cell here, which was
suppressed with other Alien priories, whereupon the
menor was given by Henry VI, to the provost and
fellows. The Stow-Market and Ipswich canal passes
along the south-eastern side of the parish.
BLAKENHAM (LITTLE), a parish in the hundred

of Bosmere and Craypon, county of Surrork, 5

miles (N. W.) from Ipswich, containing 120 inhabitants,

The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffolk,

and diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at

£10. 3. 4., and in the patronage of the Rev. Stephen

Jackson. The church is dedicated to St. Mary.

» - BLAKESLEY, a parish in the hundred of GREENS-

"NoRTON, county of NorTHAMPTON, 4 miles (W.N. W.)

from Towcester, containing, with the hamlet of Wood-

end, 762 inhabitants, The living is a discharged vi-

carage, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, and dio-

ces¢ of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at

£9.17. The King, for that turn, was patron in 1828.

Thie church is dedicated to St.Mary. A free school

was founded by William Foxley, in 1669, and endowed

with:property now producing about £85 per annum ; it

s open 1o all bdys whose parents reside in the parish.
Bunday school is endowed with a bequest of £200

‘John Knightley, Bart. There are also charities

‘Cleave's charity, the Foxley and Bidford chari-

others, some of which Blakesley enjoys in

¢ith ‘other parishes. Blakesley Hell is stated

-anciently occupied by a fraternity of the

¢ Jolm of Jerusalem.

MEAND (HIGH), a chapelry in the parish
n division of TiNpaLE ward, coun-
wp, 10 miles (8. by E) - from

‘4149 inhabitants. The living is
the archdeaconry of Nortlium-

Durham, endowed with £400

#B00 Moyl bounty, and £300 par-

“ ronage of Lord Crewe's

, i 176%, bythe trus.
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tees of Bishop Crewe, out of the tower of an abbey of
Premonstratensian canons, founded by Walter de Reol-
‘bec, in 1175, in honour of the Blessed Virgin, the abbot
of which was elevated to the house of peers in the 28rd
of Edward I.: the ecstablishment, at the time of the
dissolution, consisted of an abhot and fourteen, canons,
and the revenue amounted to £44. 9. 1.  After having
passed through various hands, the estate was pur-
chased by Bishop Crewe, who bequeathed it for cha-
ritable purposes: besides that part converted into a
chapel, the principal gateway and other portions of the
conventual buildings are still visible, The trustees also
endowed a free school with £50 per annum, allowing
the master to charge a small quarterage in addition.
This township is situated on the north side of the
river Derwent, and is celebrated for its lead mines,
which have been extensively worked for a very long
period: the company of proprictors have a large
smelting-farnace at Shildon.

BLANDFORD (ST. MARY), a parish in the hun-
dred of Coomss-DircH, Blandford (North) division of
the county of Dorser, £ of a mile (8.) from Bland-
ford-Forum, containing 358 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Dorset, and diocese of
Bristol, rated in the king’s books at £15. 17. 8%., and
in the patronage of the Rev.T. Burrough. The church,
with the exception of the tower, was rebuilt in 1711.
Browne Willis, L.L.D., the celebrated antiquary, was
born here, September 14th, 1682 ; he died at Whaddon
Hall, in Buckinghamshire, February 5th, 1760, and
was interred in the chapel at Fenny-Stratford, which
had heen built chiefly through his exertions in solicit-
ing contributions.

BLANDFORD-FORUM,
a market town and parish ¥
in the hundred of Pim-
rerNE, Blandford (North)
division of the county of
Dorser, 16 miles (N. E.)
from Dorchester, and 104
(8. w.) from London, on {f
the road to Exeter, con- o
taining 2643 inhabitants.
This place derived its name
from being situated near
an ancient ford on the
river Stour, called by the Romans Trqjectus Belaniensis.
It was nearly destroyed by an accidental fire, in the year
1579, but was soon afterwards rebuilt. During the civil
war in the reign of Charles L, it suffered scverely for
its loyalty to that monarch. In 1644, it was plundered
by the parliamentarian forces under Major Sydenhain,
and not being fortified, became an easy prey to the
contending parties, having been frequently assailed and
alternately possessed by each of them. In 1677, and
in 17183, it again suffered greatly from fire, and, in 1781,
was, with the exception of forty houses only, consumed
by a conflagration, which destroyed also the hamlets of
Blandford St. Mary and Bryanston, in which only three

Corporate Seal.

-dwellings were left, After this calamity, which is re-

corded on a marble tablet over a pump near the charch,

_it was rebuilt by act of parliament, in 1732. - 'The town

is pleasantly situated within a curve of the river Stour,

.over which is a bridge of six arches ; there are also two

other bridges, erected to facilitate the entrance into it
2B 2
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during occasional overflowings of the river: the streets
are regularly formed and well paved, the houses mo-
dern and uniformly built of brick, and the inhabit-
ants amply supplied with water., The theatre, a neat
and commodious building, is opened occasionally ; and
the races, which have been estahlished for more than a
century, arc annually held, in August, on a fine down
near the town, the course being one of the best in the
kingdom. The manufacture of lace of a very fine
quality, equal, if not superior, to that made in Flanders,
and valued at £ 30 per yard, formerly flourished here ; the
making of shirt buttons, for which Blandford has long
been noted, affords employment to a very considerable
number of fermales in the town and the adjacent villages.
The market is on Saturday: the fairs, chiefly for horses,
horned cattle, and cheese, are held on March 7th, July
10th, aad November 8th, to cach of which a court of
pie-powder is attached. The government, by charter
of incorporation granted in the 8rd of James I., who
made the town a free borough, and confirmed and
extended the privileges which it had previously enjoyed
by prescription, is vested in a bailiff, seneschal, and
ten capital burgesses. The bailiff, who, with the in-
ferior officers of the town, is chosen annually at the
court Jeet of thelord of the manor; the seneschal, who
holds his office for life, and the two senior capital bur-
gesses, hold a court of record, for the determining of
suits, and the recovery of debts under £10, but they
do not exercise magisterial authority. The county ma-
gistrates hold petty sessions here for the North Bland-
ford division of the county. The bishop's and archdea-
con’s courts are held monthly. The town-hall is a neat
edifice of Portland stone, on pillars of the Doric order,
with an entablature. The burgesses exercised the elec-
tive franchise from the 23rd of Edward I. till the 22nd
of Edward IIIL, when it was discontinued.

The living is a vicarage, in the archdeaconry of Dor-
set, and diocese of Bristol, rated in the king's books at
£12. 8. 1., and in the patronage of the Dean and
Chapter of Winchester. The church, dedicated to St.
Peter und St. Paul, is a handsome modern edifice, in
the Grecian style of architecture, with a tower and
spire, and ornamented with a balustrade and urns.
There is a place of worship for Independents, The
free school, to the north-west of the church, is of un-
certain foundation ; it has a small endowment. Arch-
bishop Wake is said to have reccived the rudiments
of his education here. The Blue-coat school, for the
clothing and instruction of twelve boys, was founded
in 1729, by Archbishop Wake, who endowed it with
£1616, producing an amual income of £48. 9. 8.
Almshouses for ten aged persons were founded and
endowed by George Ryves, Esq., who, in 1685, be-
queathed the residue of his estate for apprenticing poor
boys: the entire annual income is about £120. In
the churchyard are others for six aged persons, which
were rebuilt by the corporation in 1786. William
Williums, in 1621, gave £3000, since laid out in land
producing £300 annually, for teaching four poor chil-
dren; and other charitable purposes. On a hill to the
north of the town wes formerly an intreschment, en-
closing an area of three hundred paces in length, and
two hundred in breadth, which has long been under
cultivation, and the omly relic ‘mow visible is an ad-
joining barrow. Sir Thomas Ryves, L.L.D., a learned
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antiquary and civilian; the Rev. Bruna Ryves, DD,
publisher of the Mercurius Rusticus, sn eavly newepa-
per in the time of the parliamentary war, and one of
the writers of the Polyglott Bible, bern in 1596 the
Rev. Thomas Creech, M.A,, translator of Luoretius,
born in 1659 ; William Wake, Archbishop of. Canter-
bury, born in 1657 ; Edward Wake, uncle tothat pre-
late, and founder of the institution for the sons of the
clergy ; Dr. Lindsey, Archbishop of Armagh; Dr.
Samuel Lisle, Bishop of Norwich; and the Rev. Chris-
topber Pitt, translator of Virgil's Aneid, born in 1700,
and who, dying in 1748, was buried in the church;
were natives of this parish. Blandford gives the inferior
title of marquis to the Duke of Marlborough.

BLANKNEY, a parish in the second division of
the wapentake of Lancox, parts of KesTevEs, county
of LincoLn, 94 miles (N.) from Sleaford, containing
495 inhabitants. The living i8 a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Lincoln, rated in t.he king's
books at £16. 10. 7X., and in the patronage of C. Chap-
lin, ¥sq. The church is dedicated to St. ()swald.'

BLASTON (ST. MICHAEL), a chapelry in the
parish of HaLraToxN, hundred of GarTres, county of
Lxicestir, 7 miles (N.E.) from Market-l'larbm:uugh,
containing, with Blaston St. Giles, 58 inhabitants.
The rhapel is a small plain building, without cither
tuwer or turret. Another chapel, called the Nether
chapel, dedicated to St. Giles, was founded by Ri-
chard I, to whom the manor belonged, and rebuilt
about 1710. He endowed it with all the tithes of the
manor, decreeing the payment of 5s. annually to the
rector of Medburn, for burial therc: this sum is still
paid, but the chapel is exempt from ecclesiastical j}lris~
diction, being a ddhative belouging to the lord of the
manor,

BLATCHINGTON (EAST), a parish in the hun-
dred of Frexnorough, rape of PeveNseY, county of
Sussex, $ miles (N, £.) from Brighton, containing 187
inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory, in the
archdenconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chichester, rated
in the king's books at £14, and in the patronage of
Mr. Chambers. The church is dedicated to St. Peter,
This parish iz bounded on the cast by the river Cack-
mere, and on the south-west by the English channel :
here is u strong battery for the defence ot the const,

BLATCHINGTON (WEST), u parish in the hun-
dred of WuALESBONE, rape of Lewgs, county of Sus-
sEX, 24 miles (N. W. by W.) from Brighton, containing
54 inhabitants. The living is a discharged rectory,
consolidated with the vicarage of Brighthelmstone, in
the archdeaconry of Lewes, and diocese of Chiches
rated in the king's bovks at £6. 4. 4§, The church]
dedicated to St. Peter. : S

BLATCHINWORTH, & chapelry in thet pars of
the parish of Rocupark which is in the hundred  of
SALFORD, county palatine of LANCABTER, 3 8 (N
E.) from Rochdale, containing 3143 inhabitants.. The
manufacture of flannel, and the printing of .calicp, pre-
vail extensively in this chapelry, whi¢ shounds
with coal-works. ] §YBSE

BLATHERWYCKE, a parish in the huegeed of
Conby, county of NorTHAMPTON, 8. miley (B.mal

s

fram Rockingham, containing 240 inhabitants. .,
living is a rectory, in the. y-qf. Not
tan, and diocese of Peter

i e
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hooks at #£14. 13. 8., and in the patronage of S.
0'Brien, Esq, 'The church is dedicated to the Holy
Trinity. Blatherwycke anciently comprised two parishes,
which ‘were: united in 1448, since which, one of the
shurchel, dedicated to St. Mary Magdalene, has been
femolished.

‘BLA , @ chapelry in the parish of ULves-
sroNE, hiindred of LowspaLe, north of the sands,
sounty palatine of LANcCAsTER, 7 miles (N.) from Ul-
rerstone, containing 190 inhabitants. The living is a
serpetual euracy, in the archdeaconry of Richmond,
md diocese of Chester, endowed with £800 royal
younty, and in the patronage of T. R. G. Braddyll, Esq.
in 1772, Margarct Lancaster bequeathed £50, and,
n 1777, William Lancaster gave £110 to trustees, di-
ecting the produce to be applied toward the support
f 2 8chool: a school-room has been built by the
nhabitants, but only four children are taught gra-
uitously,

BLAXHALL, a parish in the hundred of ProMEs-
+ATE, county of Surrornk, 3% miles (E. by N.) from
Nickham-Market, containing 474 inhabitants. The liv-
ng is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Suffulk, and
liocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £20,
nd in the patronage of Agnes Ingleby and others. The
‘hurch is dedicated to St. Peter.

BLAXTON, a township in that part of the parish of
TINNINGLEY which is in the soke of Doncaster, West
iding of the county of Yorg, 4§ miles (N. by E.) from
3awtry, containing 117 inhabitants,

BLAZEY (ST.), a parish in the eastern division of
he hundred of Pownger, county of CornwaLL, 4 miles
E.N.E.) from St. Austell, containing 938 inhabitants.
Che living is a vicarage, annexed # that of St. Austell,
n the archdeaconry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter.
There are places of worship for Wesleyan Methodists.
Fhe parish contains tin and copper mines. Hcere is
i almshouse of remote foundation.

BLEADON, a parish in the hundred of WINTER-
TOKE, county of SOMERBET, 52 miles (W.N.W.) from
\xbridge, containing 518 inhabitants. The living is a
‘ectory, in the archdeaconry of Wells, and diocese of
3ath and Wells, rated in the king's books at £27. 7. 8%.,
ind in the patronage of the Bishop of Winchester,
Che church is dedicated to St, Peter. The Rev. Meric
~asaubon, D.D., an eminent critic and divine, and sun
if the celebrated critic, Isaac Casaubon, was collated
o this benefice about 1624. The navigable river Axe
»agses through the parish, and by means of it a consi-
jerable trade in coal is carried on. Here are vestiges
of a British settlement, but the Roman road on which it

pod can scarcely be traced. There are several bar-

s on an eminence in the vicinity, some of which, on
ihg opened, were found to contain human bones,
vhich, from their position, and the evidence of some
wing lying near them, were supposed to have been
hose of Digmes; a large quantity of ancient armour

1

nm:tpy of Kxnr—See COSMUS (ST.)

SHY, » parish in that part of the liberty of
;&lscnoomr which separates the northern
i division of the wapentake of Thur.
county of Notriweuan, 3§ miles (8.8.E.) from

i), containing ‘996, inhabitants, The Lving is
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u discharged vicarage, in the peculir jurisdiction and
patronage of the Chapter of the Collegiate Church of
Southwell, rated in the king's books at £4, and endowed
with £200 royal bounty. The church, dedicated to St.
Mary, is an ancient edifice, in very good repair. The
village occupies a secluded situation on the westerr. side
of the river Trent, over which there is a ferry. The
free grammar school at East Retford has considerable
property i this parish.

BLEASDALL, a chapelry in that part of the parish
of LancasTer which is 1: the hundred of AMOUNDER-
NESS, county palatine of Lancasteg, 43 miles (E. by N.)
from Garstang, containing 212 inhabitauts. The forest
of Bleasdale, comprising eight thousand uacres, was co-
extensive with the township; a great part of it has been
enclosed. Christopher Parkinson, by will dated July 8th,
1702, founded a school, and endowed it with an estate
now yiclding ubout £65 per annum, onc-third of which
ig given to a schoolmaster, and the greater part of the
remainder to the poor; the school is kept in a building
adjoining the chapel at Admarsh, There are also some
minor charities for the beunefit of the poor.

BLEATARN, a hamlet in the parish of Warcop,
East ward, county of WesTMoRLAND, 43 miles (W.by8.)
from Brough, containing 129 inhabitants. John Tailbois,
in the reign of Henry 1L, gave this manor to the abbot
and convent of Byland, in Yorkshire, who founded a ccli
in the vicinity, the ruins of which indicate the conven-
tual buildings to have been somewhat extensive, The
Sawbridge estate, and others within the manor, are
tithe-free, if occupied by their respective owners, but
subject to the claim, if held by a tenant.  Limestone
abounds here,

BLECHINGDON, a parish in the hundred of
PLOUGHLEY, county of Ox¥oRp, 5 miles (E, by N.) from
Woodstock, containing 570 inhabitants. The living is
a rectory, in the archdeaconry and diocese of Oxford,
rated in the king’'s books at £12. 9. 4., and in the pa-
tronage of the Provost and Fellows of Queen's College,
Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Giles. Leonard
Power, by will in 1620, endowed an almshouse for four
poor persons, and a school, which he had previously
built, with £200, on condition that certain parcels of
land should be given by the respective owners for the
same purpose, which was accordingly done: the alme-
houses were rebuilt about the end of the lust century,
and about £33 per annum is assigned for the support
of the inmates: the school has been disconcinued, but
another, on a large scale, is supported byArthur Annesley,
Esq., in a building of his own. .

BLEDINGTON, & parish in the upper division of
the hundred of SLauveHTER, county of GLOUCKSTER,
3% miles (5.E. by E.) from Stow on the Wold, containing
340 inhabitants. The living is & discharged vicarage, in
the archdeaconry and diocese of Gloucester, rated in
the kiog's books at £6. 13. 4., endowed with #£600
private benefaction, and £600 royal bounty, and in.the
patronage of the Dean and Canons of Christ Chureh,
Oxford. The church is dedicated to St. Leonard.

BLEDLOW, s parish in the hundred of AvLus-
puiry, county of BUCKINGEAM, 5} miles (E.S.E.) from
Thame, contsining, with Bledlow-Ridge, 1050 inhabit-
ants. The living is a discharged vicarage, in the arch-
deaconry of Buckingbam, and diocese of Lincoln, rated
in the king's books at £16. 9. 7., endowed with £400
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private benefaction, and £200 royal bounty, and in the
patronage of Lord Carrington. The church, dedicated
to the Holy Trinity, stands on the edge of a cliff, over-
hanging a deep glen, into which several springs fall, and
uniting form a pool, called the Lyde, the water of which
is stated to be continuelly undermining the rock, go as
to have given rise to a rhyming distich, expressive of
the insecure foundatiogy of the church.

BLENCARN, a joint township with Kirkland, in
the parish of KinkrLanp, LeaTr ward, county of Cum-
BERLAND, 104 miles (1) from Penrith. The population
is returned with Kirkiand. At Blencarn-gate there is a
free school, erected in 1775, and endowed with one hun-
dred acres of land ailotted to it on encloging Culgaith
common, and now let for £42 per annum, for which the
master instructs gratuitously the children of Blencarn
and Culgaith. Near the village is a spring, the water
of which is of a powerfully astringent quality.

BLENCOGO, a township in that part of the parish
of BromFrerLp which is in CuMBERLAND ward, county
of CUMBERLAND, 44 miles (W.by 8.) from Wigton, con-
taining 216 inhabitants. The Rev. Jonathan Boucher,
who published a “ Supplement to Dr. Johnson's Dic-
tionary,” was born here, in 1738.

BLENCOW (GREAT), a township in the parish
of Dacre, Lratu ward, county of CUMBERLAND, 5
miles (W.N.W.) from Peuriti. The popnlation is ve-
turned with the parish. A grammar school, of high
repute, was founded in 1576, by Thomas Burbank, who
endowed it with property now producing about £200
per annum : it is free, with the exception of a small
entrance-fee, to children from all parts of the world,
for instruction in the classics. A mew school-room,
with a writing-school added to it, and a house for the
master, affording extensive accommodation for boarders,
were built in 1793. The late Lord Ellenborough re-
ceived a small portion of his early education at this
school, which hus also produced several distinguished
clergymen.

BLENCOW (LITTLE), a township in the parish
of GrevsTock, Leatu ward, county of CUMBERLAND,
4% miles (W. N.W.) from Penrith, containing 53 inha-
bitants. Near an ancient house, once the residence of
the fumily of Blencow, but now occupied by a farmer,

-are some dispersed ruins of buildings, particularly thosc
of a chapel, with a burial-ground adjoining; and not
far distant, near the road, there is an enclosed cemetery,
in which stands a stone cross, with the arms of the
family of Blencow engraved on it.

BLENDWORTH, & parish in the hundred of FivcH-
Dean, Alton (South) division of the county of Souru-
AMPTON, 8 miles (8. 8. W,) from Petersfield, containing
249 inhabitants. The living is a rectory, in the arch-
deaconry and diocese of Winchester, rated in the king’s
books:at £6. 7. 8., and in the patronage of the Rev.
Sir'8. C. Jervoise, Bart. The church is dedicated to

+ St.Giles. William Appleford, in 1695, gave £200 in
trust, directing it to be invested in land, and the pro-
ceeds to be -applied to the education of children : the
income is now about £19 per annum; five boys are
-sent to. a schoolmaster in the adjoining parish of
- Catherington, and twelve children are instructed by a
mistress at Blendworth. .

BLENHEIM-PARK, an extra-parachial district,
within the liberty of Oxromp, thongh locally in the
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handred ‘of Wootton, county of Oxronp, contaiiing
90 inhabitants, Blenheim castle was founded in 1704,
pursuant to a parliamentary grant of £500,000, to he
expended in raising the structure, and layin‘% out the
grounds, which, together with ‘the honour of Wood-
stock, were bestowed on John, Duke of Marlborough, in
testimony of national gratitude for his brilliant filitary
and diplomatic scrvices. The housc was built from a
design by Sir John Vanbrugh, and was called Blenheim
from a village of that name an the hanks of the Danube,
near which this illustrious general obtained a signal
victory over the French and Bavarians, on the 2nd of
August, 1704, on which day annually, the inheritors of
his Grace's honours and titles render at Windsor one
standard, or colours, with three fleurs-de-lis painted
thereon, as an acquittance for all manner of rents, suits,
and services. It has all the appendages of a first-rate
mansion, and the grounds and gardens are disposed
with the most refined taste, and princely magnificence.
The Roman road Akeman-street passes through the
northern part of the park, heing distinctly visible near
the north lodge ; and a little to the right of it, in the
parish of Stoncsfield, remains of Roman buildings were
discovered in 1711 and 1779, and, a little further om,
of a Roman villa, in 1813, For the carly national
events which took place at the old manor-house, see
WooDSTOCK.

BLENKINSOP, a township in the parish of Harr-
WHISTLE, western division of TrnpaLe ward, county
of NORTHUMBERLAND, 24 miles (W.) from Haltwhistle,
z There are coal-works on a
large scale in the neighbourhood, The ruins ot Blen-
kinsop castle, once the residence of a family of thut
name, occupy part ofan eminence in the neighbourhood,
which appears to have been surrounded by a ditch,

BLENNERHASSET, a joint township with Kirk-
land, in the parish of TorPENROW, ALLERDALE ward
below Derwent, county of CuMsERLAND, 8} miles (8, w.)
from Wigton, containing, with Kirkland, 224 inhabit-
ants. A chapel for Independents was rchuilt in 1528,

BLETCHINGLEY, or BLECHINGLEY, a borough
and parish (formerly a market town), in the first divi-
sion of the hundred of TanpripGE, county of SURREY,
24 miles (E.) from Guildford, and 20 (8.) from London,
containing 1157 inhabitants. The town is pleasantly si-
tuated on an eminence commanding an extensive pros-
pect of the South Downs and other parts of Sussex:
it is of considerable antiquity, and bad a castle, erected
soon after the Conquest, by Gilbert, Earl of Clare, which
was demolished by Prince Edward after the battle of
Lewes, which took place in 1264, and the Joundationg
alone are now remaining. The market has lon 3
discontinued : fairs are held on June 22nd and Novéd
ber 2nd, for horses and hogs, and for the salée of lean
cattle brought from Scotland and Wales. The Qpoydon
rail-road passes through the northern part of the parish.
A bailiff and other officers for the internal regulation
of the town are appointed at the. court lestiof the lord
of the manor. The borough received the elegtive fran-
chise in the 23rd of Edward L, since which thie it b
continued to return two memhets to pukM : the
right of election is vested in the burgage-holders, in

-number one hundred -and thirty. Matthew Russdl,
- Esq. is patron of the borough; there is no. retosh
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officer, the bailif teking no'Part in elections. " The livs
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ing is @ rectory, in the archdeaconry of Surrey, and
diocese of Winchester, rated in the king's books at
£10. 19. 44, and in the patronage of the Rev. J. Ken-
rick. The church, dedicated to St. Mary, is a spacious
and venerable structure, in the early style of English
architecture, with & low tower; it had a lofty spire,
which was destroyed by lightning in 1608, Near the
church is a charity school for twenty-five boys, founded
by Mr. John Whatman, who, in the 8th of Elizabeth,
endowed it with a messuage now producing £23 per
annum, to which Mr. Bostock, of Tandridge, added a
house and garden for the master. Almshouses for ten
aged men and women were built by the inhabitants, in
1668, to which the rector, Dr. Charles Hampton, added
another, and gave a rent-charge of £1. 6. 8., for supply-
ing the alms-people with fuel. This town is ncar a
Roman road, and at a short distance, in the parish of
Caterham, is a fortification, called the Cardinal's Cap.
At Pendhill, in this parish, some workmen discovered
part of the foundations of a Roman bath, the different
apartments in which were paved, and some of the walls
lined with Roman tiles. There are inconsiderable ves-
tiges of the residence of Earl Godwin, who retreated to
this place when his estates in Kent were inundated by
the sca.

BLETCHLEY, a parish in the hundred of New-
PORT, county of BuckinGraM, 13 mile (W. by 8.) from
Fenny-Stratford, containing, with the chapelry of Fenny-
Stratford (part of which is in the parish of Simpson),
and the township of Water-Eaton, 1160 inhabitants. The
living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry of Buckingham,
and diocese of Lincoln, rated in the king's books at
£29. 13. 11., and in the patronage of J. Fleming, Esq.
The church is dedicated to St. Margt  On the enclosure
of the common, an allotment of twenty-five acres was
assigned for the benefit of the poor, in licu of cutting
furze.

BLETSOE, a parish in the hundred of WiLLey,
county of Beprorp, 6§ miles (N.N.W.) from Bedford,
containing 383 inbabitants. The living is a rectory, in
the archdcaconry of Bedford, and diocese of Lincoln,
rated in the king's books at £17, and in the patronage
of Lord St.John, The church is dedicated to St. Mary.
The river Ouse ruus through the parish, in which are
the remains of an ancient castle, formerly belonging to
Lord Bolingbroke, part of which has been destroyed foar
the materials. Here is a mineral spring, but the water
is seldom used medicinally.

BLEWBERRY, a parish partly in the hundred of
Morgron, but chiefly in that of Reaping, county of
kRKS, 4§ miles (N.E. by N.) from East llsley, com-
ing .the ®thapelries of Aston-Upthurp and Upton,
he liberty of Nottingham - Fee, and containing
nhabitants, The living is a discharged vicarage,
i ‘the peculiar jurisdiction of the Dean of Salisbury,
rated in the king's books at £16. 6. 104., and in the
patronage of the Bishop of Salisbury. The church is

dicated to ichael. William Malthus, by will
ed No Gth, 1700, after specifying certain
the residue of his estate to be sold,

hase momey to be invested in land, part
Proce of which was to be applied to the
tenance and education of ten boys in the Blue-coat
Rerding, and allowing the bishop of tbe dio-
Slacretiopary power in the appropriation of the
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remainder. By deed dated May 13th, 1702, Dr. Bur-
nett, then Bishop of Salisbury, and five other persons,
were constituted governors, and agreed on a certain
modg of applying the rents, which was confirmed by a
decree in Chancery, on the 12th of June, but sltered,
pursuant to an order from Lord Chancellor King, in
1730, The clear annual income of the charity is about
£916, the disbursement of whfch is regulated by a
scheme devised in 1816, agreeably to which the trustees
allow annually £16) for the support of ten boys at
Reading ; £50 to a master, and £20 to a mistress, for
instructing thirty boys and thirty girls, who are partly
clothed and provided with books and stationery ; £60
for apprentigipg four boys, and £25 for apprenticing
four girls ; £100 for clothing sixty children ; and £70 in
compensation to the parents of some of the children for
the loss of their labour; besides paying small galarics
to certain officers, and defraying incidental expenses.
An almshouse for one poor man was founded, and
endowed with a gift of £271, 13. 4., by Mr. Bacon, in
1732. A large edifice, called the Charter-house, sup-
posed to have been used as a place of worship previ-
ously to the Reformation, has latcly been taken down.
The manor-house was formerly surrounded by an earth-
work, and a deep moat crossed by a drawbridge, the
remains of which have been obliterated within the me-
mory of man. A ficld between Blewberry and Aston is
thought to have been the scene of a severe conflict be-
tween the Saxons, under Ethelred and his brother Al-
fred, and the Danes, in which the latter were defeated
with great slaughter : in forming a new turnpike road,
in 1504, many human skcletons and military weapons
were found near the spot. The parish is intersected
by a Roman road and a British road, termed respec-
tively Ickleton and Grimsditch.  There is an cncamp-
ment of considerable extent on o hill called Blewberton ;
and Loughborough hill, the loftiest cminence in this
county, has been crowned by an ancient work, appas-
rently constructed for purposes of warfare.

BLICKLING, a parish in the southern division
of the bundred of ErrvingHaMm, county of NorroLk, 14
mile (N, W. by N.) from Aylsham, containing 359 inhabit-
ants, The living is a rectory, in the archdeaconry and
diocese of Norwich, rated in the king's books at £10.13.4.,
and in the patronage of Lord Suftield. The church is
dedicated to St. Andrew. In the time of the Confessor,
this ancient manor was in the possession of Harold, af-
terwards king of England, and, although subsequently
divided, it continued exempt from the hundred, and
cnjoyed all the privileges of royal demesne: it was
afterwards held by thesbishops of Norwich, who had
a palace here. Blickling Hall was built by Sir John
Hobart, Knt., in 1628, at which time the domestic
chapel was consecrated. The previous edifice, with the
estate, was in the possession of the family of Boleyne,
and in it was born Aunc Boleyne, afterwards gueen of
Henry VIIL.; this monarch is stated to have been
here on a visit. Blickling was subsequently visited by
Charles II. and his queen.

BLIDESLOE, a tything in the parigh of Awe,
hundeed of BrLivgsiLog, county of GrovcesTter., The
population is returned with the parish. .

BLIDWORTH, a parish within the liberty - of
SourswrLl and Scroory, though locally in the wa-
pentake of Broxtow, county of NorringhaMm, 5 miles



rume-work knitting, At the enclosure of waste land
arish, pugsuant to an act passed in 1806, up-
s of one thousand acres were planted, and are now
ourishing condition. In a field near the vi
rocky formation of sand and gravel, commonly
lled plum-pudding stone ; it is fourteen feet high,
- and eighty-four in circumference, and is supposed to
- have been'a Druidieal idol.
. BLINDBOTHEL, a township in the parish of
. Briguawm, Avierpare ward above Darwent, county
o MBERLAND, 24 miles (8.) from Cockermouth,
-~ containing 112 inhabitants.
~ BL E, a joint township with Isall and
ain, in the parish of Isapn, ALLerpane ward
h cics Darwent, county of Cumserraxp, 3§ miles
~ (N.E. by N.) from Cockermouth. The population is
! ‘with Isall.

- BLISLAND, a parish in the hundred of Tricg,
ty of Conxwary, 44 miles (N.N.E.) from Bodmin,

g 637 inhabitants, The living is a rectory, in
onry of Cornwall, and diocese of Exeter,
i's books at £13. 10., and in the pa-
Rev. C. Pye. The church is dedicated
r
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‘"There is a place of worship for Wesleyan
A cattle fair is held annually on the
- Monday next September 22nd. ,

'~ BLISWORTH, a parish in the hundred of Wy-

a7 , county of NonTaa , 34 miles (N.E. byN.}
" ¥ mm. enu:i:fhi‘:o?m%mm (The l!?ﬂné
| is & rectory, in the archdeaconry of Northampton, an

¥ diocese of Peterborough, rated in the king's books at

£20. 8. 9., and in the of F. Hatton,
iﬁq ‘The church is dedicated to St. John the Baptist.

. The Grand Junction canal enters this parish by means
of a tunnel from the adj

Alnd‘efmﬁnuﬂum until it is joined by
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Worcester is lord of the manor, and,
occasionally holds a manorial court.
the Reformation here was a palace in whi
resided, but the only memorial of it is
of a hill ite to the vicarage, called the
In a charter of King Buhrred, dated in 855,
is made| of & monastery, which then existed,
mmbamflny unnexed to the bishoprick
orcester. The Fosse-way passed between
and Moreton in the Marsh, Urns and
remains have been found on Moor hill ;
BLODWELL, county of Sator.— Sec LLAN-Y- |
BLODWELL., ;
. BLOFIELD, o parish fh the hundred of Brovretn,
county of Norrork, 44 miles (W. by :) 4 Ac
containing 979 inhabitants, The livi a rectory,

EREEFEEE
E*gggﬁ Eg
£E

b
]

-3




